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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

SOPHARMA GROUP (the Group) is comprised of the ppoempany and its twenty eight (31 December
2012: twenty two) subsidiaries. In addition, the@@ has investments in two joint ventures (31 Ddmm
2012: in two joint ventures) and one associatdd@&iember 2012: two associates).

Parent company

SOPHARMA AD (the parent company) is a businesstemggistered in Bulgaria with a seat and
address of management: Sofia, 16, lliensko Shdssse

The court registration of the Company dates fronNbyember 1991 — Decision No. 1/1991 of Sofia
City Court.

Subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 Decembe3 2@te as follows:

« Sopharma Trading AD — a business entity registeiedBulgaria by Decision No.
3594/16.10.1998 of Varna District Court, with atssad address of management: Sofia, Izgrev
Region, 5, Lachezar Stanchev Str., Sopharma Busiresers, Building A, floor 12;

» Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD — a business entityistered in Bulgaria by Decision No.
3912/1991 of Stara Zagora District Court, with atsend address of management: Kazanluk,
110, 2% Pehoten Shipchenski Polk Blvd.;

» Pharmalogistica AD — a business entity registeneBLilgaria by Decision of Sofia City Court
dated 12 August 2002, with a seat and address whgesment: Sofia, 16, Rozhen Blvd.;

» Elektroncommerce EOOD - a business entity regidtardBulgaria by Decision of Sofia City
Court under Company File No. 24456 of 1991, witteat and address of management: Sofia,
1, Samokovsko Shousse Str.;

» Biopharm Engineering AD — a business entity regésten Bulgaria by Decision No. 524/1997
of Sliven District Court, with a seat and addremanagement: Sliven, 75, Trakiya Blvd.;

* Momina Krepost AD — a business entity registere@irgaria by Decision No. 3426/1991 of
Veliko Tarnovo District Court, with a seat and aakl of management: Veliko Tarnovo, 23,
Magistralna Str.;

» Sopharma Buildings REIT — a business entity reggstén Bulgaria by Decision No. 1/14.08.07
of Sofia City Court, with a seat and address of ag@ment: Sofia, lzgrev Region, 5 Lachezar
Stanchev Str., Sopharma Business Towers, Buildinigpar 20;

» Unipharm AD - a business entity registered in Britgghy Decision of Sofia City Court under
Company File No. 3685 of 1994, with a seat and esldiof management: Sofia, 3, Traiko
Stanoev Str.;

e« Phyto Palauzovo AD - a business entity registerad Bulgaria by Decision No.
20120924105551/24.09.2012 of the Registry Agencyth wa seat and address of
management:Kazanluk, 110,"2Behoten Shipchenski Polk Blvd.;

» Sopharma Poland Z.0.0., in liquidation — a busirer##ty registered in Poland by Decision
No. KRS 0000178554 of 4 November 2003 of XX Ecormmivision of Warsaw Regional
Court Register, with a seat and address of managefeland, Warsaw, 58, Shashkova Str.;

e Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0.0. — a business entitgteegd in Poland by Decision No. DSR
0000372245 of 17 December 2010 by XIlI Economic §lon of the State Court Register of
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Warsaw, with a seat and address of managemennddarsaw, 8, Halubinskiego Str.;

e OOO Sopharma Ukraine — a business entity regibténe Ukraine by Decision No.
10691020000029051 of 7.08.2012 in the Unified SRegister of Legal Entities and Physical
EntitiesEntrepreneurs, with a seat and address of managetdkraine, Kiev, Oblonski
Region, prospect Moskovskii No. 9, unit 4, flooro#jce 4-203;

e Sopharma USA — a business entity registered in UgM®ecision No. 97227599 of 25 April
1997 in California State Secretary Office, with eatsand address of management: USA,
California, Los Angelis, 4622, Hollywood Blvd.;

» Extab Corporation USA — a business entity registéneUSA by Decision No. 090292393 of
06.11.2008 in the Delaware State Secretary Offidth a seat and address of management:
USA, Delaware, Wilmington, New Castle Region, 1Z0¥dgne Str.;

« Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom — a businaggt\eregistered in England by Decision
No. 06751116 of 17 November 2008, with a seat aifdltess of management: Oxfordshire,
RG9 1AY, Henlay on Thames, 10 Station Road;

* PAO Vitamini — a business entity registered in Ukeaby Decision No. 133/15.04.1994 of
Uman City Court, with a seat and address of managenikraine, Cherkasy Province, Uman,
31, Leninski Iskri Str.;

» lvanchich i Sinovi d.o.0. — a business entity reggisd in Serbia by Fi-11350/91 on 14 October
1991 by the Commercial Court of Belgrade with & sea address of management: Republic of
Serbia, Belgrade, 13, Palmoticheva Str.;

» Briz Itd., Latvia — a business entity registered Liatvia by Decision No. 000302737 /
18.09.1991 of the Commercial Registry of the Rejoubl Latvia, with a seat and address of
management: Latvia, Riga, Rasas No. 5, LV — 1057;

» SOOO Brititrade , Belarus — a business entity tegisl in Belarus by Decision No. 1983 /
24.09.2004 of Minsk City Executive Committee, withseat and address of management:
Belarus, Minsk, 118, M. Bogdanomicha Str., offi@33- B;

» OOO Tabina, Belarus — a business entity registémedelarus by Decision No. 1432 /
29.12.1999 of Minsk City Executive Committee, withseat and address of management:
Belarus, Minsk, 57, Kuybisheva Str., ap.1;

» ZAO Interpharm, Belarus - a business entity regéstéen Belarus in the Unified State Register
of Legal Entities and Individual Entrepreneurs unide. 300000556, with a seat and address of
management: Belarus, Vitebsk, Stroitelei Squdre ap. 2;

* SOOO Brizpharm, Belarus — a business entity regidten the Minsk City Executive
Committee in the Unified State Register of Legatittes and Individual Entrepreneurs under
No. 800007989 / 07.07.2009, with a seat and addressgmnagement: Belarus, Minsk, Esenina
Str., d. 16, ap. 1H;

 ODO Alean, Belarus — a business entity registene8elarus by Decision No. 100160720 /
29.05.2001 in the Minsk City Executive Committeetle Unified State Register of Legal
Entities and Individual Entrepreneurs, with a seat address of management: Belarus, Minsk,
Tashkentskaya Str., d. 16, unit 1;

e OOO Farmacevt Plus, Belarus — a business entitisteegd by the Minsk City Executive
Committee on 24.11.2000 / No 1348 in the Unifiedt&tRegister of Legal Entities and
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Individual Entrepreneurs under No. 190174236, wittseat and address of management:
Belarus, Minsk, 1 Tverdiy Pereulok, d. 7;

UAB TBS Pharma, Lithuania — a business entity,steged by the Lithuanian Register of Legal
Entities on 01.03.2013 / 303011389, with a seataaititess of management: Lithuania, Vilnius,
8 Vytauto / 7 Liubarto Str., POB 08118;

ODO Vestpharm, Belarus — a business entity regidter Belarus by Decision No. 590002202
of Grodno City Executive Committee, with a seat address of management: Belarus, Grodno,
Dombroskogo Str., d. 47, k. 3;

OOO NPK Biotest, Belarus — a business entity regést in Belarus by Decision No. 48 /
24.07.1990 of Lenin District Council of People's pDées, with a seat and address of
management: Belarus, Grodno, 2, Grojskaya Styr.;

ODO BelAgroMed, Belarus — a business entity registén Belarus by Decision No. 009126 /
29.06.2001 of Grodno City Executive Committee, withseat and address of management:
Belarus, Grodno, 17 Sentyabrya Str.

In 2012 the Group entirely disposed of its intefeghe following subsidiaries:

ZAO Rostbalkanpharm — a business entity registeréde Russian Federation by Decision No.
1026101791594 / 9.10.2002, with a seat and addrfessanagement: the Russian Federation,
Azov, 10 Osipenko Str. The Group sold its investnenl0 April 2012.

Superlats Itd., Latvia — a business entity registen Latvia by Decision No. 40003960404 /
05.10.2007 of the Commercial Registry of the Rejoubl Latvia, with a seat and address of
management: Latvia, Riga, 117 Dzelzavas Str., LNM)21 — sold on 15 February 2012.

Joint ventures

The joint ventures of the Group as at 31 Decemb#&B 2vere as follows:

OO0 Vivaton Plus, Belarus — a business entity tegisl in Belarus by Decision No.
590004353 of Grodno City Executive Committee, withseat and address of management:
Belarus, Grodno, Kletskova Pr., d. 13 B, office 2.

00O Med-dent, Belarus — a business entity regidtereBelarus by Decision No. 0018240 /
11.03.2013 of the Department of Economy at the Bydk City Executive Committee, with a
seat and address of management: Belarus, MogilBistkict, Bobruysk, 120, K. Marx Str.,
office 4.

The joint venture Sopharma Zdrovit SA, Poland, wateted from the National Court Register of
Poland on 25 February 2013.

Associates

Group's associated company as at 31 December 2BAO0O SpetzApharmacia, Belarus — a business
entity registered in Belarus by Decision No. 22-80.10.2000 by Mogilevsk District Executive
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Committee, with a seat and address of managemetérus, Mogilevsk District, Bobruysk, 120, K.
Marx Str., office 2. The company was acquired y@roup through Briz, Latvia.

The companies, acquired by the Group in 2012, OD#3tpharm, Belarus, and ODO Alean, Belarus,
initially had the status of ‘associates' (ODO Mestm from 29.10.2012 to 04.07.2013 and ODO Aleamfr
26.09.2012 to 07.02.2013) but subsequently the g>afatained control over them and their status was
changed to 'subsidiaries' (Note 44.1).

OO0 Vivaton Plus, Belarus, acquired by the Groupdh2, initially had the status of an associatn(fil
June 2012 to 20 December 2012) but subsequentijntacpntrol over it was obtained and its status wa
changed to 'joint venture' (Note 44.3).

1.1. Ownership and management of the parent company

SOPHARMA AD is a public company under the Bulgafablic Offering of Securities Act. Starting from
November 2011, the shares of the company are beithed in the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

The joint-stock capital structure of the parent pany as at 31 December 2013 was as follows:
%

Donev Investment Holding A 25.4¢
Telecomplect Invest AD 20.42
Rompharm Company OOD 14.11
Universal Pension Fond Doverie AD 6.75
Sopharma AD (treasury shar 4,14
Other legal persons 25.60
Physical persons 3.53

SOPHARMA AD has a one-tier management system wiitleamember Board of Directors as follows:

Ognian Donev, Ph Chairmal
Vessela Stoeva Member
Ognian Palaveev Member
Alexander Chausht Membe
Andrey Breshkov Member

The parent company is represented and managesd Byetutive Director Ognian Donev, PhD.

1.2. Structure of the Group and principal activise

The structureof the Group includes SOPHARMA AD as a parent camypand the subsidiaries stated
below:
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Subsidiaries 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 Date of Date ol
Interest Interest acquisition disposa
% % of control of control
Companies in Bulgaria
Sopharma Trading AD 75.92 81.01 08.06.2006 -
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD * 49.99 52.77 22.04.2004 -
Pharmalogistica AD 76.54 76.54 15.08.2002 -
Electroncommerce EOOD 100 100 09.08.2005 -
Biopharm Engineering AD 97.15 97.15 10.03.2006 -
Sopharma Buildings REIT 42.89 42.64 04.08.2008 -
Momina Krepost AD * 53.29 51.3 01.01.2008 -
Unipharm AD * 51.87 52.21 27.10.2010 -
Phyto Palauzovo AD ** 47.49 50.13 21.09.2012 -
Companies abroad
Sopharma Poland Z.0.0. —in liquidation 60 60 16.10.2003 -
Sopharma USA 100 100 25.04.1997 -
Extab Corporation 80 80 05.08.2009 -
Extab Pharma Limited ** 80 80 05.08.2009 -
Briz Itd. 53.14 51 10.11.2009 -
SOOO Brititrade ** 52.34 50.24 10.11.2009 -
PAO Vitamini 99.56 99.56 18.01.2008 -
Ivanchich i Sinovi d.o.o. 51.00 51 10.04.2008 -
Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0.0. 100 100 23.11.2010 -
OOO Tabina ** 47.29 47.94 08.04.2011 -
ZAO Interpharm ** 29.71 36.31 17.12.2011 -
SOOO Brizpharm ** 31.35 26.01 20.12.2012 -
ODO Alean ** 37.73 - 07.02.2013
OO0 Sopharma Ukraine 100 100 07.08.2012 -
0OOOQO Farmacevt Plus ** 27.10 - 31.05.2013 -
UAB TBS Pharma ** 27.10 - 01.03.201. -
ODO Vestpharm ** 43.04 - 04.07.2013 -
00O NPK Biotest ** 30.29 - 02.09.2013 -
ODO BelAgroMed ** 30.29 - 30.07.2013 -
ZAO Rostbalkanpharm - - 27.07.2001 10.04.2012
OOO Superlats ** - - 20.05.2011 15.02.2012

* efficient percentage of interest
** indirect interest

» Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD is a subsidiary of SBRMA AD, the control thereon being
acquired and exercised through the direct participaof the parent company in the ownership
of Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD with 49.99% anduijue of a concluded written control
agreement between SOPHARMA AD and Telso AD, a $twdder with 9.99% interest as at 31
December 2013;

* Unipharm AD is a subsidiary to SOPHARMA AD, the twh thereon being acquired and
exercised through the direct participation of tiaeept company in the ownership of Unipharm
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SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

AD with 49.99 % and the indirect participation b&tparent company with 1.88 % through the
subsidiary Sopharma Trading AD holding 2.47% ofdhpital of Unipharm AD;

» Sopharma Buildings REIT is a subsidiary by virtfi@ evritten agreement for control concluded
between SOPHARMA AD and other shareholders;

» Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom, is a subsidi@airough Extab Corporation, USA, the
latter company being 100% capital holder of Extabriha Limited, United Kingdom;

» SOOO Brititrade, Belarus, is a subsidiary of Biit,| Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 98.50% of the
capital of SOOO Brititrade;

e« OOO Tabina, Belarus, is a subsidiary through Btdlz, ILatvia — Briz Itd. holds 89% of the
capital of OOO Tabina;

» ZAO Interpharm, Belarus, is a subsidiary througiz Bd., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 55.90% of
the capital of ZAO Interpharm;

» SOOO Brizpharm, Belarus, is a subsidiary through Bdl., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 59% of the
capital of SOOO Brizpharm;

e ODO Alean, Belarus, is a subsidiary through Brit,ltLatvia — Briz Itd. holds 71% of the
capital of ODO Alean;

e OOO Farmacevt Plus, Belarus, is a subsidiary thrdanig Itd., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 51% of
the capital of OOO Farmacevt Plus;

» UAB TBS Pharma, Lithuania, is a subsidiary thro@gtz Itd., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 51% of
the capital of UAB TBS Pharma,;

e ODO Vestpharm, Belarus, is a subsidiary througlz Bd., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 81% of the
capital of ODO Vestpharm;

« OOO NPK Biotest, Belarus, is a subsidiary througiz Bd., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 57% of the
capital of OOO NPK Biotest;

« ODO BelAgroMed, Belarus, is a subsidiary througlieBtd., Latvia — Briz Itd. holds 57% of
the capital of ODO BelAgroMed.

The principal activities of the Group companies fareused on the pharmaceutical sector except for
separate companies having principal activities elgbe field of investment in real estate and sities.

The principal activities of the companies withie fGroup are as follows:

e SOPHARMA AD - production and trade in medicinal staimces (active ingredients) and
finished drug forms; research and developmentitietivin the field of medicinal products;

» Sopharma Trading AD — trade in pharmaceutical prtsju

» Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD — production of firgdrdrug forms;

» Biopharm Engineering AD — production and tradenfizigion solutions;

» Pharmalogistica AD — secondary packaging of phaewécal products and real estate leases;

» Electroncommerce EOOD - trade, transportation aatkgmging of radioactive materials and
nuclear equipment for medicinal use, householdreleics and electrical equipment;

» Sopharma Buildings REIT — investment of funds, anglated by issuance of securities, in real
estate (securitisation of real estate) through mage of title and other real rights over real
estate, rent-out, lease, and/or sale;
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Momina Krepost AD — development, implementation gmdduction of medical goods for
human and veterinary medicine;

Unipharm AD — production and trade in pharmaceigijca

Phyto Palauzovo AD — production, collection, pusshagrowing and trade in herbs and
medicinal plants;

PAOQ Vitamini — production and trade in pharmacealsic

Ivanchich i Sinovi d.o.0. — production and trad@armaceuticals;

Sopharma Poland Z.0.0., in liquidation — market jamblic opinion research;

Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0.0. — market and publicdapisearch;

OO0O Sopharma Ukraine — trade in pharmaceuticalgrarllet and public opinion research;
Sopharma USA — trade in pharmaceuticals and fopdlsments;

Extab Corporation, USA — market and public opiniesearch;

Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom — market anbljg opinion research;

Briz Itd., Latvia — trade in pharmaceuticals;

SOOO Brititrade, Belarus — trade in pharmaceutjcals

OOO Tabina, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

SOOO Brizpharm, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

ODO Alean, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals (aigliary as from 7 February 2013);

OOO Farmacevt Plus, Belarus — trade in pharmacgsitfa subsidiary as from 1 June 2013);
UAB TBS Pharma, Lithuania — trade in pharmaceuigatoduction of finished drug forms and
pharmaceutical products, research and developroévitias in the field of biotechnology;

ODO Vestpharm, Belarus — retail trade in medicpraducts and medical equipment;

OO0 NPK Biotest, Belarus — production of medicipabducts on the basis of plant raw
materials;

ODO BelAgroMed, Belarus — retail trade in medicipedducts and pharmaceuticals.

The parent company and the subsidiaries Sopharradiny AD, Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD,
Pharmalogistica AD, Electroncommerce EOOD, BiophdEmgineering AD, Sopharma Buildings
REIT, Momina Krepost AD, Unipharm AD, Phyto PalauacAD perform their activities in Bulgaria;
Sopharma Poland Z.0.0. — in liquidation and Sophawarsaw SP. Z.0.0. operate in Poland, PAO
Vitamini, OOO Sopharma Ukraine — in Ukraine, Ivaicbhi Sinovi d.0.0. — in Serbia, Briz Itd. — in
Latvia, SOOO Brititrade, OOO Tabina, ZAO Interphar@DO Alean, SOOO Brizpharm, OO0
Farmacevt Plus, ODO Vestpharm, OOO NPK Biotest@B®D BelAgroMed — in Belarus, UAB TBS
Pharma — in Lithuania, Extab Pharma Limited — i thited Kingdom, and Sopharma USA and Extab
Corporation, USA —in USA.

As at 31 December 2013, the interest of the Graupejoint venturesis as follows:

OO0O0 Vivaton Plus, Belarus, with 50% interest togettvith Apteka Group Holding and a
physical person. The principal activities of th@enfoventure include trade in pharmaceuticals
and food supplements. The company has been aviittre for the Group since 20 December
2012.
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« OOO Med-dent, Belarus, with 50% interest togethé&hwa physical person. The principal
activities of the joint venture include trade inapimaceuticals and food supplements. The
company has been a joint venture for the GroupesliicDecember 2013.

The joint venture Sopharma Zdrovit SA was deletednfthe National Court Register of Poland on 25
February 2013. The principal activities of the joienture was research and development activities i
the field of medical science and pharmacy, whoesalde in pharmaceuticals.

As at 31 December 2013 the Group has intereseimollowingassociate:

«  BOOO SpetzApharmacia, Belarus — a business emtifigtered in Belarus by Decision No. 22-
8 / 30.10.2000 by Mogilevsk District Executive Coitiee, with a seat and address of
management: Belarus, Mogilevsk District, BobruyBR), K. Marx Str., office 2. The company
was acquired by the Group through Briz, Latvia.

The companies ODO Vestpharm, Belarus, and ODO AlBatarus, acquired by the Group in 2012,
had the status of ‘associates' as at 31 Decemb@rt2Q in 2013 the Group obtain control on them and
their status was changed to 'subsidiaries'.

The companies OOO NPK Biotest, Belarus, and OD@&elMed, Belarus, acquired by the Group in
2013 initially had the status of associates respagtfrom 18 January 2013 to 2 September 2013 and
from 18 January 2013 to 30 July 2013 but subsetyudre Group obtained control on them and their
status was changed to 'subsidiaries'.

From 4 April 2013 to 3 September 2013 the Groupl radirectly interest of 19% in the associate OO0
Med-dent; from 3 September 2013 to 17 December g4 &roup held indirectly 38% of the company and
subsequently acquired a joint control thereon.

From 1 June 2012 to 28 December 2012 the Group ihdidectly 18.87% of the associate OOO
Vivaton Plus and after that period it acquired j@antrol thereon.

At the date of these consolidated financial statémehe average number of Group's personnel was
4,122 workers and employees (2012: 3,945).

1.3. Main indicators of the economic environment

The main economic indicators of the business enmient that have affected the activities of the @rou
companies throughout the period 2011 — 2013, &septed in the table below:
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Indicator 2011 2012 2013

GDP in million levs (Bulgaria) 75,308 78,089 78,115¢
Actual growth of GDP (Bulgaria) 1.80% 0.60% 0.9% ¥

Year-end inflation (Bulgaria) 2.80% 4.20% -1.609

Year-end inflation (Belarus) 108.70% 21.70% 16.60%
USD/BGN average for the year 1.4065 1.52314 1.4736p
USD/BGN at year-end 1.5116 1.4836 1.4190p
PLN/BGN average for the year 0.4759 0.46772 0.4660D
PLN/BGN at year-end 0.43872 0.47926 0.47143
RUB/BGN average for the year 0.04787 0.04902 0.04630
RUB/BGN at year-end 0.04683 0.04862 0.04330
RSD/BGN average for the year 0.01918 0.0173 0.0172p
RSD/BGN at year-end 0.01869 0.0172 0.0170p
UAH/BGN average for the year 0.1766 0.19042 0.1843p
UAH/BGN at year-end 0.18992 0.18561 0.17713
GBP/BGN average for the year 2.25443 2.41278 2.30321
GBP/BGN at year-end 2.34147 2.39406 2.33839
LVL/BGN average for the year 2.76943 2.80501 2.78820
LVL/BGN at year-end 2.79604 2.80285 2.78410
1000 BYR/BGN average for the year 0.1813 0.18249 0.1661pD
1000 BYR/BGN at year-end 0.1813 0.17256 0.1496(7
LTL/BGN average for the year 0.56645 0.56645 0.56645

LTL/BGN at year-end 0.56645 0.56645 0.56645

Basic interest rate at the year-end (Bulgaria) 0.22% 0.03% 0.029

Unemployment rate at the year-end (Bulgaria) 10.40% 11.40% 11.80%

*The data for 2013 are preliminary.

Source: BNB, National Banks of Ukraine, the RusBiegieration, Poland, Serbia, Belarus, Latvia anthuania.

2. SUMMARY OF THE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES O F THE GROUP
2.1. Basis for the preparation of the consolidatiidancial statements

The consolidated financial statements of SOPHARMAUP have been prepared in accordance with all
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR8)ich comprise Financial Reporting Standards and
the International Financial Reporting InterpretaidCommittee (IFRIC) interpretations, approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) well as the International Accounting

Standards (IAS) and the Standing Interpretationsn@ittee (SIC) interpretations, approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (IAS@hich are effectively in force on 1 January

2013 and have been accepted by the Commissiore &utopean Union.

For the current financial year the Group has adbpsd new and/or revised standards and
interpretations, issued by the International AcdmgnStandards Board (IASB) and respectively, iy th
International Financial Reporting Interpretatiormn@nittee (IFRIC), which are relevant to its actist

The adoption of these standards and/or interposiatias caused changes mainly to Group’s accounting
policies on the principles, rules and criteria widgard to the accounting for the following repugti
items: other comprehensive income and retirememeéfiteobligations as well as to the presentatiot an
disclosure of financial information about them aimbut some other reporting iterfidote 3, Note 16
and Note 32).
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The changes are resultant from the applicatioh@fdllowing standards and interpretations:

IAS 1 (amended) "Presentation of Financial Statesigin force for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012 — endorsed by EChe amendment introduces a requirement for
entities to present the components of other congmstie income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in two separate categdeapsnding on whether they may or may not
be subsequently reclassified to current profit ass| including the tax effect thereof. In
addition, the name of the consolidated statemenbofprehensive income has been changed to
‘consolidated statement of profit or loss and ottenprehensive income'. Clarifications have
been added as to the disclosing of comparativerirdton for prior periods and the including
of a third consolidated statement of financial posionly in case of material retrospective
adjustments. The management of the parent compngdne research and has concluded that
the amendment affects only the presentation ofcatdrs on Group's operations and has no
impact on the financial position and performancerabf. It has made the necessary changes
while deciding to keep unchanged the name of thesaaated statement of comprehensive
income itself regardless of the amendment whereloyh&r new name has been introduced for
this statement;

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) "Employee Benefits'fdime for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 — endorsed by EThe amendments refer to defined benefit plans and
termination benefits. The fundamental change isetiraination of the ‘corridor' approach and
the introduction of a rule that all subsequent r@sneements (referred to so far as actuarial
gains or losses) of obligations and the fair vahiedefined benefit plan assets shall be
recognised when occurred in a component of 'otlenpcehensive income’, as well as the
accelerated recognition of past service costs. ,Tthes net liability/(asset) of the respective
pension plan, recognised in the consolidated stterof financial position, reflects the full
value of the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermdtes interest cost and the expected return on
plan assets are replaced with a net interest amatitth is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net plan asset/(liability). In additionore extensive disclosure requirements have
been introduced along with a requirement for sasitsitanalysis of the variables in the actuarial
assumptions set for the obligation calculation. e Thanagement of the parent company has
done research and has concluded that these ametsdhsare an impact on the accounting
policies and on the value and classification of Upte assets, liabilities, transactions and
performance, with regard to: employee benefits egpeother components of equity and long-
term retirement benefit obligations to personittehas also made the necessary restatements,
reclassifications and disclosures retrospectiyidigte 3, Note 16 and Note 32);

IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement" (in force for amhgeriods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 — endorsed by EQhis standard represents a single source of metbgidal
guidance for fair value measurements applied végard to particular reporting items by virtue
of other IFRSs and the mandatory disclosures anptfocess. The standard contains a precise
definition of the term 'fair value', a framework wéluation approaches and measurement
techniques, including input data hierarchy (Levkl® and 3) as well as extensive disclosure
requirements as to fair value measurement proaasshé respective items under IFRS. It
applies to both financial instruments and non-foiahassets and liabilities when fair value is
required or permitted by IFRS and/or IFRS requiralisclosure of their fair value. The
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management of the parent company has done resaadchas concluded that the amendments
through the new standard have an impact on theuatiog policies and the extensive
disclosures regarding the fair values of the foitayassets and liabilities, and the transactions
with them, namely: property, plant and equipm@te 17) investment propertfNote 19)and
available-for-sale investmen(blote 21) IFRS13 requires prospective application and &uohit
disclosures in certain cases. Therefore, the Ghagpmade the necessary new disclosures for
year 2013 only without supplementing the compaeatiformation for year 2012 with such
disclosures under IFRS IRote 17, Note 19 and Note 21)

« Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle (ME2R- improvements to IAS 1, 16, 32,
34, IFRS 1 (in force for annual period beginningasrafter 1 January 2013 — endorsed by EC).
These improvements introduce partial amendmentisetoespective standards primarily with a
view to remove existing inconsistency or ambigugitie the application rules and requirements
of individual standards as well as to set up maezipe terminology. These amendments are
basically focused on the following items or transacs: (a) borrowing costs for qualifying
assets for which the capitalisation commencemetet idgprior to the date of transition to IFRS
(IFRS 1); (b) clarifications about the requiremefas presentation of voluntary additional
comparative information (IAS 1) and a third statemef financial position in the case of
retrospective restatement and reclassification; c(gjifications about the classification and
treatment of spare parts and specific stand-bysandicing equipment as property, plant and
equipment (IAS 16); (d) the accounting for the &dfect of distributions to holders of equity
instruments according to the requirements of IAS(IBS 32); and (e) interim reporting of
segment information on total assets for achievomgistency with IFRS 8 (IAS 34).

With regard to the other standards and interpiatati stated below, the management of the parent
company has assessed their possible effect antbhakided that they would not have an impact on the
accounting policies and respectively, on the as$iatslities, transactions and performance du¢hto
fact that the Group does not possess/operate s$epfs iand/or does not perform such deals and
transactions;

« 1AS 12 (amended) "Income Taxes" (in force for ahpesaods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 — endorsed by ECllhe amendment clarifies explicitly that the asses# of deferred tax
(assets or liabilities) on the underlying assetutdhdoe based on the manner in which the
respective entity intends to recover the investntettie carrying amount of the asset — though
sale or through continuing use. It sets out spedifiles for cases of non-current assets
measured by applying the revaluation model in 14Sbiit mostly for investment properties
measured by applying the fair value model in IAS h@luding those acquired in a business
combination, i.e. a rebuttable presumption is uhiieed that deferred tax should be determined
on the basis that the carrying amount will normakyrecovered through sale;

- IFRS 7 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Disclosireregarding the offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities (in force for araluyeriods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 — endorsed by ECJhese amendments are related to the enhanceddlises for all
financial instruments, which will be presented (adfset) in accordance with IAS 32 (par. 42)
as well as with the rights of set-off under theoeodable arrangements;
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« IFRIC 20 "Stripping Costs in the Production PhadeacSurface Mine" (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — esdd by EC)This interpretation sets out
the accounting treatment of the overburden wasteval (stripping) costs in the production
phase of surface mining operations intended to gaproved access to mineral ore deposits
that will be mined operatively in future periodsheTinterpretation provides guidance on the
treatment of these costs as a particular typesdtgdmtangible asset or inventory) as well as its
initial and subsequent measurement.

At the date when these consolidated financial stateés have been approved for issue, there areatever
new standards and interpretations as well as ardestdadards and interpretations, issued but ndhyet
force for annual periods beginning on or after fuday 2013, which have not been adopted by the
Group for early application. The management ofghreent company has concluded that out of them the
following are likely to have a potential impacttime future for changes in the accounting policied a
the classification and values of reporting itemshia consolidated financial statements of the Gifoup
subsequent periods, namely:

« IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) "Separate Financialte&teents" (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — endorseERy— for mandatory application in the
European Union for annual periods beginning on fieal January 2014).The standard was
reissued with a changed title as the part of itiming the composition of, criteria about and
technology for preparation of consolidated finahstatement was entirely separated in a new
standard — IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial StatésherThus, remaining in the standard are
basically the accounting and measurement rulesrdiggp investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures at the level of sépdinancial statements of investors in their
capacity as parent companies, investors with samif influence and venturers in joint
ventures as well as the disclosures specific fiertfipe of financial statements;

« |AS 28 (as revised in 2011) "Investments in Assegiand Joint Ventures" (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — esedd by EC for mandatory application in
the European Union for annual periods beginningoorafter 1 January 2014).The standard
has a changed title and scope and outlines thécapph of the equity method in consolidated
financial statements both for investments in asgesi and in joint ventures, which were
previously included in the scope of IAS 31 "Intesem Joint Ventures", and starting from 1
January 2013 — in line with the new IFRS 11;

« IAS 32 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Presentati (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 — endorsed6Y — regarding the offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilitieSfThese amendments relate to a clarification akdapplication
of the rules on offsetting financial instrumentshey are mainly in four directions: (a)
clarification of the meaning of 'current legallyfercteable right of set-off'; (b) the application
of the simultaneous realisation and settlementrnoit; (c) offsetting of cash provided as
collateral; (d) the unit of account for the applica of the offsetting requirements —
prospectively;

« IFRS 7 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Discloslire- regarding the relief from the
requirement to restate comparatives and the reldtedeto disclosures when applying IFRS 9
(effective date — deferred to 1 January 2015 —ematorsed by EC)The amendment is related
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to a relief from the requirement to restate the garative financial statements and the option
to present modified disclosures on the transitirmmfIAS 39 to IFRS 9 (when this happens)
depending on the date of the standard applicatyothd Company and whether it chooses the
option to restate prior periods;

« IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" (effective date fedeed to 1 January 2015 — not endorsed by
EC). This is a new standard for financial instrumehts is ultimately intended to replace IAS
39 in its entirety. The replacement project cossidtthree phases: PhaseClassification and
measurement of financial assets and financialliiesi; Phase 2Impairment methodology;
and_Phase:3Hedge accounting. At present, IFRS 9 has beewrdsthree times, in November
2009, October 2010 and in November 2013. Phas€ldssification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities — by fhiet issues it replaces those parts of IAS 39 tha
refer to the classification and measurement ofnigie instruments. It sets out new principles,
rules and criteria for classification, measuremandl derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities, including hybrid contracts. IFRS 9iiatiuces a requirement that financial assets are
to be classified based on entity’s business maatethfeir management and on the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the respective asdetastablishes two primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost fairdvalue. The new rules will lead to
possible changes mainly in the accounting for fa@rassets as debt instruments and financial
liabilities designated at fair value through cutr@mofit or loss (for credit risk). Phase 2
Impairment methodology — it is at the level of aised exposure draft, which suggests the
application of the "expected loss" model under Wwhidl expected losses are recognised
throughout the life of an amortisable financialtinment and not only after a loss event has
been identified as per the current model in IASR®ase 3Hedge accounting — a new Chapter
6 to IFRS 9 has been added for this purpose, issuddvember 2013, whereby a new hedge
accounting model is introduced that permits coasisand complete reflection of all financial
and non-financial risk exposures, subject to hadggsactions, and also, better presentation of
risk management activities in the financial statetseand especially, their relation to hedge
transactions, and the scope and type of documentttibe used. In addition, the requirements
to the structure, contents and presentation apprimacedge disclosures have been improved.
Furthermore, an option is introduced fair valuergjes of own debts, measured at fair value
through profit or loss, in the part thereof duehanges in the entity’s own credit quality, to be
presented in other comprehensive income ratherithprofit or loss. This option is valid also
for entities that apply IAS 39. The amendmentsRBS 9 of November 2013 again defer the
effective date of the standard;

« IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" (incéofor annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 — endorsed by EC — for mangtagpplication in the European Union for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20IFransitional guidance (in force for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2818ndorsed by EG) regarding the first-
time application of this standard. This standaglages a significant part of the old IAS 27
("Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemerist SIC-12 ("Consolidation - Special
Purpose Entities"). Its main objective is to estibimproved principles and methods for the
preparation and presentation of financial statemeiten an entity controls one or more other
entities. It gives a new definition for the terraritrol' as comprising three elements, establishes
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control as the only basis for consolidation andvighes more detailed rules and guidance for
identifying existing relationships of control. Tlstandard also sets out the main mandatory
rules for the technology to prepare consolidatedrfcial statements;

+ IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements" (in force for annu&ripds beginning on or after 1 January
2013 — endorsed by EC — for mandatory applicatiothe European Union for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014). Transitiomglidance (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — endorse®6Y — regarding the first-time application
of this standardThis standard replaces IAS 31 "Interests in Jdartures", including SIC-13
"Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contrilons by Venturers". It introduces only
two types of joint arrangements — joint operaticansd joint ventures — whereas the
classification criterion used is not the legal fdont rather the rights and obligations of each
party to an arrangement, i.e. whether they reptesghts to the assets and liabilities and
respectively, to the expenses and revenue frorothiearrangement (joint operation) or rights
to the net assets of the joint arrangement (joamtwre). The standard removes the option for
proportionate consolidation and requires applicatidthe equity method for consolidation of
jointly controlled entities;

« IFRS 12 "Disclosing of Interest in Other Entitig# force for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 — endorsed by EC — for mangapplication in the European Union for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014ransitional guidance (in force for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 281@ndorsed by EC) — regarding the first-
time application of this standardhis standard introduces a new frame of requiresnenthe
scope of the disclosures in the consolidated fimdrstatements regarding the interest of the
reporting entity in other companies and entitiesiicw are subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures or unconsolidated structured entitieduding to the content of the information in
order to ensure an option for a reasonable evaluaif the effects and the risks of those
interests;

» 1AS 36 (amended) "Impairment of Assets" (in foozeahnual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014 — endorsed by EC) — regarding recdderseamount disclosures for non-
financial assetsThis amendment relates to the necessity to dexrpadicular disclosures
regarding recoverable amount under IAS 36 in cotimeavith the requirements of IFRS 13
when applying methods for calculating the recovieramount of non-financial assets at fair
value less costs of disposal;

« Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (Dbeef013) — improvements to IFRS 2,
IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 24, IAS 3&f(ice for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014 — not endorsed by ET)ese improvements introduce partial amendments to
and editions of the respective standards primanlth a view to remove the existing
inconsistency or ambiguities in the applicatioresudnd requirements of individual standards
as well as to set out more precise terminology s€lmmendments are basically focused on the
following items or transactions: (a) change in dedinition of 'vesting conditions' and 'market
conditions' and add of separate definitions forf¢genance condition' and 'service condition’
(IFRS 2); (b) clarification on the accounting forcantingent consideration in a business
combination that meets the definition for ‘finahdnstrument’ (as a financial liability or equity
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instrument) and its measurement at fair value @etid of each reporting period, including the
effects of that in the statement of comprehensieeme (IFRS 3, IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IAS 37);
(c) requirement for disclosure on the criteria agapin the aggregation of operating segments
for segment reporting purposes (IFRS 8); (d) add#i clarification on the adjustment
technique regarding the gross carrying amount arwliraulated depreciation in cases of
revalued assets whereas setting a requiremenbfaistency with the revaluation approach of
the carrying amount of the respective asset (IASIA6 38); (e) clarification that an entity
providing key management personnel services tchan@hntity it is also a related party thereto
(IAS 24);

« Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (Dbee 2013) — improvements to IFRS 1,
IFRS 3, IFRS 13, IAS 40 (in force for annual pesibe&ginning on or after 1 July 2014 — not
endorsed by EC)These improvements introduce partial amendmentntb editions of the
respective standards primarily with a view to remdtive existing inconsistency or ambiguities
in the application rules and requirements of indlinal standards as well as to set out more
precise terminology. These amendments are basifatlysed on the following items or
transactions: (a) clarification that a first-timgoater of IFRS may apply standards that are not
yet effective provided that the standards themselwermit early application (IFRS 1); (b)
clarification that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope faaccounting for the formation of a joint
arrangement in the financial statements of thetjamangement itself (IFRS 3); (c)
clarification regarding the scope of contracts tiaditwithin the scope of the exception for a
group of financial assets and financial liabilitiwgh offsetting positions in market and credit
risk (IFRS 13); (d) clarification that in the tre@nt of a transaction, which simultaneously
meets the criteria of IFRS 3 and refers to investnmoperties under IAS 40, requires the
separate application of both standards independehéach other (IAS 40).

Additionally, in regard of the stated below new nstards, amended/revised standards and new
interpretations that have been issued but notrydbiice for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, the management of the parent confmsgoncluded that the following would not have
a potential impact for changes in the accountingies, the classification and values of reportitegns

in the consolidated financial statements of theuprmamely:

« IFRIC 21 "Levies" (in force for annual periods bexging on or after 1 January 2014 — not
endorsed by EC) — regarding levies imposed by a@muorent. This interpretation provides
guidance about the criteria for recognising a ligbio pay a levy (charge, tax or other similar
amount) imposed by the government in accordandelests and regulations;

« 1AS 19 (as revised in 2011) “Employee Benefits"flirce for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014 — not endorsed by EThis amendment relates to clarification regardhneg
treatment of contributions from employees or thpdrties to defined benefit plans in
accordance with the formal terms of the respectilan. The change sets out that these
contributions shall be treated as either a reduoctio service costs or an effect in the
remeasurements of the net liability (asset) ofglam depending on whether the contributions
are related to the service or not;
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« 1AS 39 (amended) "Financial Instrumen®ecognition and Measurement” (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 — esdd by EC) — regarding novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge accountifibis amendment has been introduced in
response to legislative changes across certaisdjations whereby entities that use over-the-
counter derivatives are required to novate themataentral counterparty (a clearing
organisation/agency) in order that continuing desiippn to hedge accounting is allowed.

* |IFRS 14Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective frbanuary 2016 — not endorsed by the EC). This
standard introduces a framework of rules for redtign, valuation and impairment, presentation and
disclosure of balances for deferred expenses awdnie as a result of business activities, whose
products, goods and services are subject to reguiat/

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on a historical cost basis except for: a/
property, plant and equipment, which are measureevalued amount; and 2/ investment property and
available-for-sale financial instruments, which aneasured at their fair value at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position. Thgures of the companies, consolidated in these
financial statements, which operate in the enviremimof hyperinflationary economy, have been
restated for the effects of hyperinflation with tespective inflation inde@Notes 2.6, 2.10, 2.12, 2.16)

The Bulgarian companies of the Group maintain thetounting books in Bulgarian Lev (BGN), which
is accepted as being their functional and predentaturrency. The subsidiaries, associates and join
ventures abroad organise their accounting and tiagoin accordance with the requirements of the
respective local legislation (OOO Sopharma Ukraind PAO Vitamini — Ukraine, Ivanchich i Sinovi
d.o.0. — Serbia, Extab Pharma Limited — United iy, Briz Itd. — Latvia, SOOOQO Brititrade, OO0
Tabina, ZAO Interpharm, SOOO Brizpharm, OO0 Farma&tus, ODO Alean, OOO NPK Biotest,
ODO BelAgroMed, ODO Vestpharm — Belarus and ZAO tRakanpharm — the Russian Federation,
the joint ventures OOO Vivaton Plus and OOO Medtddre associate BOOO SpetzApharmacia —
Belarus, UAB TBS Pharma — Lithuania, Sopharma U8@ BExtab Corporation — USA legislation and
Sopharma Poland Z.0.0. — in liquidation, Sopharmarddw SP. Z.0.0. and the joint venture
Sopharma Zdrovit SA — deleted from the National I€&egister of Poland on 25 February 2013 — the
Polish legislation) and keep their accounting ledde the respective local currency — Rouble (RUB),
Ukraine Hryvnia (UAH), Serbian Dinar (RSD), EuroUR), British Pound (GBP), Latvian Lat (LVL),
Belarus Ruble (BYR), US Dollar (USD), Polish ZIg®LN) and Lithuanian Lit (LTL).

The data in the consolidated financial statemeamistiae notes thereto are presented in thousandiarg
Levs (BGN'000), unless explicitly stated otherwisad the Bulgarian Lev is accepted as reporting and
presentation currency of the Group. According topblicies of the Group, the financial statemefithe
Group companies abroad are restated from the tareéncy to Bulgarian Levs for the purposes of the
consolidated financial statemerftdote 2.5).The financial statements of the Group companiesseh
functional currency is a currency in hyperinflatioyp economy are restated with an inflation index so
that they are expressed in measurement units &atige end of the reporting period and after thayt
are restated from the local currency to Bulgariew for the purposes of the Group consolidation.

The presentation of the consolidated financial esta&nts in accordance with IFRS requires the
management to make best estimates, accruals asahedde assumptions that affect the reported values
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure oftiogent receivables and payables as at the dateeof
financial statements, and respectively, on thented@amounts of income and expenses for the reyporti
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year. These estimates, accruals and assumptiofmsee on the information, which is available at th
date of the consolidated financial statements,thacefore, the future actual results might be défifie
from them (whereas in the conditions of financigkis the uncertainties are more significant). The
items presuming a higher level of subjective assess or complexity or where the assumptions and
accounting estimates are material for the condaltléinancial statements, are disclosedNote 2.33,
Note 17, Note 18, Note 19 and Note 21 .

2.2. Definitions
Parent company

This is the company that has control over the eson@nd financial policies and the operation of the
subsidiaries by holding more than 50% of their dmhares and/or voting rights or by virtue of a
written control agreement concluded between thectindders.

The parent company is SOPHARMA AD, Bulgaria (Not&)1

Subsidiaries

These are companies, including such that are gal lentities, in which the parent holds directly or
indirectly more than 50% of the voting rights iret@eneral Meeting (in the joint-stock capital) amd/
has the right to appoint more than 50% of the Badidirectors of the respective company or by értu
of a written control agreement, concluded betwéenshareholders, and can exercise control over thei
financial and operating policy (including by virtugf a control agreement concluded between
shareholders). The subsidiary companies are caoiaetl as from the date on which the effective
control over them has been acquired by the Groupaae de-consolidated as from the date when the
control over them ceases and is transferred outs@l&roup. The full consolidation method is apgplie
for their consolidation.

The subsidiary companies are presenteddte 1.2.

Joint venture

A joint venture is established by virtue of a caotual agreement based on which two or more parties
(companies) start a common business undertakinighvig subject to joint control.

The joint control represents a contractual shapingontrol on a particular business. It is deteeity
the requirement that strategic financial and ojp@gadecisions relating to the business activitied the
development of the joint venture shall be takerhwitandatory unanimous consent of the controlling
shareholders.

A controlling shareholder (venturer) in a joint W is the party (company), which participateshia
joint venture and shares the joint control on #ttet.

The proportionate consolidation method is appliedtfie consolidation of the joint venture. The foin
venture is being consolidated as from the date bittwthe joint control has been acquired by the
venturer (the parent company) and its consolidatiogier this method is ceased when the joint venture
is transformed into a subsidiary or when joint cohis transferred from the venturer to third pesti
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The joint ventures are: OOO Vivaton Plus, Bela@®0O Med-dent, Belarus and Sopharma Zdrovit SA,
Poland — until 25 February 20{Sote 1.2).

Associate

An associate is a company in which the investog (thrent company) exercises significant influence
but is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venturehwite investor.

Significant influence is the right of participatian decision-taking with regard to financial and
operation policies of the entity, subject to inmesit, but not control or joint control over thesdigies.
Usually it exists in case of: (a) possession byitivestor, directly or indirectly, of 20% to 50% thfe
shares in the capital of the investee company ydioh by virtue of an agreement between
shareholders), and (b) in addition, the investorejgresented in the managing body of the investee
and/or participates in the decision-taking proceitks regard to the policy and strategy of the inges
and/or significant transactions exist between tivestor and the investee.

The associate is included in the consolidated firdrstatements of the Group by applying the equity
method — from the date on which the investor (thept company) acquires significant influence and
its consolidation under this method is ceased vasmociate is transformed into a subsidiary or when
is accepted that the significant influence is tfamed from the investor to third parties.

BOOO SpetzApharmacia, Belarus, is an asso{iate 1.2).

2.3. Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include thential statements of the parent company and the
subsidiaries, the joint ventures and the assogiptepared as at 31 December, which is the datieeof
Group'’s financial year. The ‘economic entity’ asqfion has been applied in the consolidation except
for the measurement of non-controlling interegbiisiness combinations and other forms of acquisitio
of subsidiaries for which the ‘proportionate shaf@et assets’ method has been chosen.

For the purposes of consolidation, the finandialesnents of the subsidiaries, the joint venturesthe
associates have been prepared for the same repqeinod as the parent company using uniform
accounting policies.

2.3.1. Consolidation of subsidiaries

In the consolidated financial statements, the figlnstatements of the included subsidiaries are
consolidated under the ‘full consolidation’ methbide-by-line, by applying accounting policies tlzae
uniform with regard to the significant reportingnts. The investments of the parent company are
eliminated against its share in the equity of tbbsfiaries at the date of acquisition. Intra-group
transactions and balances, including unrealised-gmoup gains and losses, are eliminated in Tiie
effect of deferred taxes has been taken into a¢cénuhese eliminating consolidation entries.

The shares of shareholders — third parties in thsidiaries other than these of the shareholdetiseof
parent company are presented separately in theolsied statement of financial position, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income thadstatement of changes in equity as 'non-
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controlling interest'. The non-controlling interéstludes: (a) the combined share of the sharerolde
third parties at the date of initial consolidationthe fair value (deemed cost) of all identifialalgsets
acquired, liabilities and contingent (crystallisei@bilities of the respective subsidiaries assumed
determined (based on the share) through the piopate method, and (b) the change in the share of
these third parties in the equity of each respecdtivbsidiary from their initial consolidation tcetiend

of the reporting period.

2.3.2. Acquisition of subsidiaries

The acquisition (purchase) method of accountingsisd on the acquisition of a subsidiary (entity) by
the Group in business combinations. The consideratansferred includes the fair value at the ddte
exchange of the assets transferred, the incurredsumed liabilities and the equity instrumentagds
by the acquirer in exchange of the control overabguiree. It also includes the fair value of anyed

or liability resulting from a contingent considecet arrangement. Acquisition-related direct costs a
recognised as current expenses when incurred efmefiie issue costs of debt or equity instruments,
which are recognised as equity components.

All identifiable assets acquired, liabilities andntingent (crystallised) liabilities assumed in the
business combination are measured initially atrtfai values at the date of exchange. Any excéss o
the aggregate consideration transferred (measutriadr ¥alue), the amount of non-controlling intstre

in the acquiree and, in a business combinatioreseliin stages, the acquisition-date fair valuthef
acquiree's previously held equity, over the acguidgentifiable assets and assumed liabilities ef th
acquirer, is treated and recognised as goodwilactjuirer's share in the fair value of acquired net
identifiable assets exceeds the cost of acquisiifdhe business combination, this excess is rasedn
immediately in the consolidated statement of cofm@nsive income of the Group in the item
‘gains/(losses) on acquisition/(disposal) of sulasids’. Any non-controlling interest in a business
combination is measured based on the method ofptloportionate share of the net assets’ of the
acquiree.

When a business combination for the acquisitiora afubsidiary is achieved in stages, all previous
investments held by the acquirer at the acquisitiate are revalued to fair value and the effecthisf
revaluation are recognised in the current profitoms of the Group, respectively in ‘finance income
and ‘finance costs’ or ‘gains/(losses) from an aige’, including all previously recorded effects i
other comprehensive income are recycled.

2.3.3. Disposal of subsidiaries
On sale or other form of loss (transfer) of contreér a subsidiary:

» Assets and liabilities (including any goodwill) tfie subsidiary are derecognised at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

« The non-controlling interest in the subsidiary isretognised at carrying amount in the
consolidated statement of financial position at foss of control date, including all
components of other comprehensive income rela&etb;
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e The fair value of the consideration received frdme transaction, event or operation that
resulted in the loss of control is recognised,;

« All components of equity, representing unrealis&ing or losses in accordance with the
respective IFRS under the provisions of which thesaponents fall, are reclassified to profit
or loss for the year or are transferred directlyetained earnings;

« Any resulting difference as a ‘gain or loss frordisposal (sale) of a subsidiary’ attributable to
the parent is recognised in the consolidated sttenf comprehensive income.

- The remaining shares held that form investmentsgociates or available-for-sale investments
are initially measured at fair value at the datesafe and subsequently — following the
accounting policy adopted by the Graiyotes 2.14 and Note 2.15).

The acquisition (purchase) method is applied atstansactions for mergers and/or transformation of
companies under common control if they represesttiacquisitions from the perspective of the plaren
company.

2.3.4. Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controllimtgrests as transactions with holders of the commo
equity of the Group. The effects from sales of pa@mpany’s shares, without loss of control, to
holders of non-controlling interests are not trdaés components of the current profit or loss ef th
Group but as movements directly in its equity congrds, usually to the 'retained earnings' reserve.
And vice versa, when the parent company purchaddiianal shares from holders of non-controlling
interest, without acquisition of control, the diface between the consideration paid and the meva
share acquired of the carrying amount of net agssfetise subsidiary is also directly recognisedha t
consolidated statement of changes in equity, ustmthe 'retained earnings' reserve.

When the Group ceases to have control and signfficdluence, any retained minority investment as
interest in the capital of the respective entityemeasured to its fair value, with the changeaimying
amount recognised in profit or loss. Respectivelpy amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entityaamunted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of all components related to the initial investmg@nta subsidiary or associate).

2.3.5. Consolidation of joint ventures

The proportionate consolidation method is usediricluding the joint ventures in the consolidated
financial statements. In the proportionate conswiith method, the share of the venturer (the parent
company) in each of the assets, liabilities, incand expenses in the jointly controlled company is
combined (added) line-by-line with the analogoesns in the financial statements of the venturee Th
Group recognises only the attributable portionhaf tecorded gains and losses on transactions for sa
of assets by the Group to the joint venture, whigflers to other investors and venturers. At theesam
time, all intra-group transactions and accountshtite joint venture are eliminated, including the
unrealised intra-group gains or losses on purchafsassets of the joint venture by the Group tarthe
resale to third independent parties by also makhmerks for impairment in case of loss. The effdct o
deferred taxes on these consolidation procedurealba been taken into account.
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2.3.6. Consolidation of associates

Associates are included in the consolidated firerstatements by applying the equity method whereby
the investment of the parent company is initiathtesd at cost and is subsequently recalculateeffect

the changes in investor's (the parent company)esimathe post-acquisition net assets of the as®ocia
Group’s investment in an associate includes alsatodwill identified on their acquisition net afya
recognised impairment.

The post-acquisition profits or losses for the Gr@hrough the parent company) from the assocate f
the respective reporting period represent its simattge net financial results (after taxes) ofdpgerating
activities for the period, which share is recogdis@ad presented on a separate line in the consadida
statement of comprehensive income. Analogously,Gheup’s share in post-acquisition changes in
other components of comprehensive income of theciss is also recognised and presented as
movement in the other components of comprehensmenie in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and respectively the coretelitireserves of the Group - in the statement of
changes in equity. The Group recognises its shfifesses in an associate up to the amount of its
investment, including the internal loans granted.

The internal accounts between the Group and theciase are not eliminated. The unrealised gains or
losses from transactions between them are elimintdethe percentage of Group’s interest in the

associate by also making checks for impairmentasecof loss. The effect of deferred taxes on these
consolidation procedures has also been taken quimuat.

2.4. Comparatives

In these consolidated financial statements, theumresents comparative information for one prior
year.

Where necessary, comparative data is reclassified (estated) in order to achieve comparability in
view of the current year presentation changes.

Retrospective restatements and reclassificatiotseotomparative information for 2012 were made in
2013 with regard to the following items: long-teratirement benefit obligations to personnel, other
comprehensive income (remeasurements of defineefib@ension plans) and accumulated profits and
losses (retained earnings reserve). The revised 183Note 3) provides the grounds for these
restatements and reclassifications. The manageafight parent company assessed the materiality of
these changes and concluded that it was not negeasthird consolidated statement of financial
position at the beginning of the prior period (huary 2012) to be prepared and presented. In additi
the management of the parent company did not ademendment to IAS 1 for a change in the name
of the consolidated statement of comprehensiveniecto consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, as far as it was notiatary.

In 2013, the Group adopted for application alsortbe IFRS 13. In accordance with the guidance for
transition of the standard, it has presented tlygired information only for the current year 2013
without additional comparative information for ye2f12.
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2.5. Functional currency and recognition of exchaedlifferences

The functional currency of the Group companies uigBria being also presentation currency for the
Group is the Bulgarian Lev. The Bulgarian Lev ieefi by the BNB Act to the Euro at the ratio BGN
1.95583:EUR 1.

Upon its initial recognition, a foreign currencyarisaction is recorded in the functional currency
whereas the exchange rate to BGN at the date dfdheaction or operation is applied to the foreign

currency amount. Cash and cash equivalents, rddetvand payables, as monetary reporting items,
denominated in foreign currency, are recorded énftimctional currency by applying the exchange rate
as quoted by the Bulgarian National Bank (BNB) ttoe last working day of the respective month. At

31 December, these amounts are presented in B&N atosing exchange rate of BNB.

The non-monetary items in the consolidated staténoénfinancial position, which are initially
denominated in a foreign currency, are accountedirfothe functional currency by applying the
historical exchange rate at the date of the trdisaand are not subsequently re-valued at thergos
exchange rate.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on tliersent or recording of foreign currency commercial
transactions at rates different from those at whilwodly were converted on initial recognition, are
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmstie income in the period in which they arise and
are presented net under ‘other operating inconssgls)’.

The functional currency of the companies in Pold8dpharma Poland Z.0.0. — in liquidation,
Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0.0. and Sopharma Zdrovit-S&ound-up through liquidation on 25
February 2013) is the Polish Zloty, of the subsidia the Russian Federation (ZAO Rostbalkanpharm)
until 10 April 2012 — the Russian Federation Rubfehe subsidiaries in Ukraine (PAO Vitamini, OO0
Sopharma Ukraine) — the Ukrainian Hryvnia, of thbsidiary in Serbia (Ilvanchich i Sinovi d.o.0.)het
Serbian Dinar, of the subsidiary in Latvia (Brid.}t — Lat, of the subsidiaries in Belarus (SOOO
Brititrade, OOO Tabina, ODO Alean, ZAO Interphai®@OO Brizpharm, OO0 Farmacevt Plus, ODO
Vestpharm, OOO NPK Biotest, ODO BelAgroMed) — Betan Ruble, of the subsidiary Extab
Pharma Limited (United Kingdom) — the British Pounfithe companies in USA (Sopharma USA and
Extab Corporation) — the US Dollar and the subsydia Lithuanie (UAB TBS Pharma) — Lithuanian
Lit.

For the purposes of the consolidated financiakstants, the financial statements of the subsidiarie
abroad are restated from the functional currendh®fespective subsidiary to the presentatiorecgsr
(BGN) accepted for the consolidated financial steiets, whereas:

(a) all assets and liabilities are restated toctimeency of the Group by applying the closing exadjea
rate of the local currency thereto at 31 December;

(b) all items of income and expenses are restatédet currency of the Group by applying an average
rate of the local currency thereto for the repagriieriod or by applying the closing exchange rétth®
local currency to the currency of the Group — fompanies whose financial statements are being
restated due to hyperinflatigNote 2.6);
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(c) all exchange differences resulting from thdatesnents are recognised and presented as a separat
component of equity in the consolidated stateméritnancial position, net of deferred tax effects —
‘translation of foreign operations reserve', and

(d) the exchange differences resulting from theatement of the net investment in the companies
abroad together with the loans and other currenstyuments, accepted as hedge of these investments,
are presented directly in equity.

On disposal (sale) of a foreign operation (compathg cumulative amount of exchange differences
that have been directly stated as a separate canpohequity, are recognised as part of the paofit
loss in the consolidated statement of compreheris@me on the line ‘gains/(losses) on acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, net’, obtained opatial (sale).

Goodwill and adjustments to fair value arising ocgusition of a company abroad are treated
analogously to the assets and liabilities of thisipany and are restated to the presentation cyrignc
closing exchange rate.

2.6. Restatement of figures in the financial statenis of Group companies operating in the
environment of hyperinflation (restatements for hgpnflationary economies)

The figures in the financial statements of subsigig&aoperating in hyperinflationary economies are
firstly restated on the basis of the general pinckex to the measuring unit at the end of the rapepr
period with the aim to reflect the changes in tliecpasing power of the money for the period and
secondly they are translated to the presentatimerey of the Group.

Monetary items in the statement of financial positiwhich include cash and cash equivalents as well
as items that will be settled in cash and cash vetpnts, are not restated for the effects of
hyperinflation. All other assets and liabilitiesich as: property, plant and equipment; intangibkets;
investments, inventories, goodwill as well as gguibmponents, are non-monetary items in the
statement of financial position for the purposeseastatements for the effects of hyperinflationnNo
monetary items, presented at amounts current artief the reporting period, are not restated aith
inflation index. All other non-monetary items, mesed at cost or at cost less accumulated deprecjati
are restated for the effects of hyperinflation ksing the general price index — from the date of the
transaction (acquisition) to the end of the curmneporting period. Non-monetary items, carried at
amounts current at dates other than the acquiditide (revalued amounts) or the end of the repprtin
period, are restated from the date of revaluatiotihé end of the reporting period. The restatelchtied
amount of a non-monetary item is reduced, in acwd with the appropriate IFRS, when this amount
exceeds the recoverable amount of the non-moniésany

All equity components, except for accumulated sodind all revaluation reserves, are restatedhior t
effects of hyperinflation by applying a generakprindex — from the dates of contribution or agsir
the respective components to the end of the curegairting period.

All items in the statement of comprehensive incaane restated for the effects of hyperinflation by
applying a general price index — from the date s initial recognition of the respective business
transactions to the end of the current reportingpde
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The gain or loss on the net monetary positiotlecéhg the effects of restatements for hyperiidlabf
non-monetary items and items in the statement ohpcehensive income, are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoméigwiirofit or loss) in the item 'gain or loss ort ne
monetary position from restatements for hyperirdlary economies'.

2.7. Revenue

Revenue in the Group is recognised on accrual lzagisto the extent and in the way the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and respectiveljpetbusiness risks are born thereby, and as far as
revenue can be reliably measured.

The types of Group’s revenue are presentédiotes 4, Note 5 and Note 12.

Upon sale of finished products, goods and materialgenue is recognised when all significant risks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer.

Upon rendering of services, revenue is recognisgdeference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting periothid stage as well as the costs incurred for gngsaction
and the costs to complete the transaction, candasuned reliably.

Revenue is measured on the basis of the fair vallube products, goods and services sold, net of
indirect taxes (excise duties and VAT) and anydlists and rebates granted.

Foreign exchange gains or losses related to aasle teceivables and payables, denominated irgforei

currency, are recognised in the consolidated seewf comprehensive income (within profit or loss
for the year) in the period, in which they arisedaare presented net under ‘other operating
income/(losses), net'.

The gains from revaluation of investment propendyfair value are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitlass for the year) on the line ‘other operating
income/(losses), net'. Revenue from investment gntypeased-out under the terms of operating lease
is also accounted for under this item of the cddated financial statements.

Upon sale on an instalment plan, revenue is resedgndn the date of sale, excluding the incorporated
interest.

Finance income is included in the consolidatedestant of comprehensive income when earned and
comprises: interest income on granted loans and taposits, interest income on receivables under
special contracts, interest income on past dudvadaes, income/gains from deals with investments i
available-for-sale securities including dividena&t gains on exchange differences under loans in
foreign currency, income from debt settlement taatisns, gain on measurement of available-for-sale
investments at fair value when a subsidiary is dpeiaquired in stages. They are presented separately
from of finance costs on the face of the consatidattatement of comprehensive income.
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2.8. Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Group when theyinatered based on the accrual and matching
concepts (to the extent that this would not leadetmgnition of an asset or liability not satistyithe
definitions for assets and liabilities in the Framwek and IFRS themselves).

Deferred expenses are put off and recognised asntuexpenses in the period when the contracts,
whereto they refer, are performed.

Losses from revaluation of investment propertyaio ¥alue are presented in the consolidated stateme
of comprehensive income (within profit or loss fthhe year) on the line ‘other operating
income/(losses)’.

Finance costs are included in the consolidatecersetit of comprehensive income when incurred
separately from finance costs and comprise: intezgpenses under loans received, bank fees and
charges under loans and guarantees, foreign exehaety loss from loans in foreign currencies,
expenses/losses from investments in availabledtar-ssecurities, expenses on debt settlement
transactions, loss on fair value measurement oiladle-for-sale investments in the acquisition of a
subsidiary performed in stages.

2.9. Mandatory dividend for distribution

The subsidiary company Sopharma Buildings REIT ties status of a joint-stock special-purpose
investment company within the meaning of the BulgaiSpecial Purpose Investment Companies Act
(SPICA). For this reason, the company has spepdlicy for distribution of dividends to shareholder
in line with the requirements of the law, namely:

« the company is obliged by law to distribute as aivid not less than 90% of the generated
profit for the respective financial year adjustecdccordance with SPICA; and

« the distribution of the remaining 10% is determirgda decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as per the common procedure of thgaBah Commerial Act, including for
dividend payment.

The statutory dividend at an amount of not less tB@% of the generated profit is recognised as a
liability in the current year and in decrease (n&nody distribution) of the current profit for thear.

2.10. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (fixed tangible ajsere presented in the consolidated financial
statements at revalued amount reduced by the atatedulepreciation and impairment losses in value.

Initial acquisition

Upon their initial acquisition, property, plant aeduipment are valued at cost, which comprises the
purchase price, including customs duties and amgctlly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The dirgctttributable costs include the cost of site
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preparation, initial delivery and handling costsstallation costs, professional fees for peopl®lved
in the project, non-refundable taxes etc.

Property, plant and equipment of acquired subsafiaare measured at fair value at the transaction
(business combination) date which is accepted @qu@isition price for consolidation purposes.

Upon acquisition of property, plant and equipmerdar deferred settlement terms, the purchase isrice
equivalent to the present value of the liabilitgatiunted on the basis of the interest level ofthacted
by the Group credit resources with analogous mgtarid purpose.

The carrying amounts of all items of property, pland equipment of Group companies, operating in
the environment of hyperinflationary economies,tiatly measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation, are restated for the effects of hipflation by applying a general price index — froine
date of the transaction (acquisition) to the enthefcurrent reporting period or from the datehef tast
revaluation of the assets.

The Group has set a value threshold of BGN 50@vbe&thich the acquired assets, regardless of having
the features of fixed assets, are treated as d¢wexpense at the moment of their acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

The chosen by the Group approach for subsequerdureaent of property, plant and equipment, is the
revaluation model under IAS 16, i.e. measurement\atlued amount less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairloesds.

It is adopted that the revaluation of property,npland equipment shall be performed by certified
appraisers normally in a period of five years. hie fair value changes materially in shorterqaks;
revaluation may be performed more frequently.

Subsequent costs

Repair and maintenance costs are recognised antexpenses as incurred. Subsequent costs incurred
in relation to property, plant and equipment having nature of replacement of certain components,
significant parts and aggregates or improvements rastructuring, are capitalised in the carrying
amount of the respective asset whereas the regideéll life is reviewed at the capitalisation date

the same time, the non-depreciated part of theacepl components is derecognised from the carrying
amount of the assets and is recognised in therdugrpenses for the period of restructure.

Depreciation methods

The Group applies the straight-line depreciatiothoe for property, plant and equipment. Depreciatio
of an asset begins when it is available for usedLia not depreciated. The useful life of the gap
assets is dependent on their physical wear and ttearcharacteristic features of the equipment, the
future intentions for use and the expected obselest

The useful life per group of assets is as follows:
* buildings — 20-70 years;

» installations — 5-25 years;
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* machinery and equipment — 7-25 years;

» computers and mobile devices — 2-5 years;
* motor vehicles — 7-17 years;

e furniture and fixtures — 6-12 years.

The useful life, set for any tangible fixed asgeteviewed by the management of each companywithi
the Group and respectively, by the parent companthe end of each reporting period and in case of
any material deviation from the future expectatiafstheir period of use, the latter is adjusted
prospectively.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equiptnege reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgingunt might significantly differ from their
recoverable amount. If any indications exist timat ¢stimated recoverable amount of an asset i lowe
than its carrying amount, the latter is adjustethtrecoverable amount of the asset. The recoleerab
amount of property, plant and equipment is the éigif fair value less costs to sell or the valuese.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future ftaws are discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current macketditions and assessments of the time value oegnon
and the risks, specific to the particular assefpdimment losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitoaws for the year) unless a revaluation reserge ha
been set aside for the respective asset. Themtpairiment is treated as a decrease in this reserve
(through other comprehensive income) unless it dm¢sexceed its amount and the excess is included
as expense in the consolidated statement of compsele income (within profit or loss for the year).

Gains and losses on disposal (sale)

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised fh@rconsolidated statement of financial position
when they are permanently disposed of and no fieaomomic benefits are expected from or on sale.
The gains or losses arising from the sale of am it 'property, plant and equipment' group are
determined as the difference between the consideradceived and the carrying amount of the adset a
the date of sale. They are stated net under ‘atperating income/(losses), net’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitosis for the year). The part of ‘revaluation resér
component attributable to the sold asset is diydclnsferred to ‘retained earnings’ componenthia t
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

2.11. Biological assets
Biological assets (perennial plants) are measuréravalue less the estimated costs to sell.

The fair value of biological assets is determinedtioe basis of their present location and condition
based on a price quoted in an active market or @iternative sources of current prices. Gain es lon
initial recognition of a biological asset at faalue less estimated costs to sell and changes ivafae
less estimated costs to sell is recognised indhealidated statement of comprehensive income ifwith
profit or loss for the year) in the period in whigharises and is presented in ‘other operating
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income/(losses), net. When the fair value of aldgical asset cannot be reliably measured, it is

measured at cost less accumulated depreciationgaiiment losses. Subsequently, when the fair value
of this biological asset becomes reliably measeratle Group changes its approach and switches to
measuring the asset at fair value less the estihzatgts to sell.

2.12. Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of guiaition (the consideration given) over the faitue

of the Group’s share of the net identifiable aseétbe acquired company at the date of acquisitiloa
business combination). Goodwill is initially measdrin the consolidated financial statements at
acquisition cost (cost) and subsequently — at lesst accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not
amortised.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsididsy presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the group of ‘intangible atsewhile goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate (entity) is incorporated in the total amoof the investment and is stated in the group of
‘investments in associates’.

The goodwill on the acquisition of associates (&d] is tested as part of the total balance (amtyafn
the investment. The individually recognised gootwih the acquisition of subsidiaries (entities) is
mandatory tested for impairment at least once ipear. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
subsequently reversed. Gains or losses on the(dialeosal) of a particular subsidiary (entity) bet
Group include the carrying amount of the goodvélating to the entity sold (disposed of).

On the realisation of a particular business contliina each recognised goodwill is allocated to a
particular cash generating unit and this unit isdufor impairment testing. The allocation is made t
those cash generating units that are expectedrtefibédrom the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

Impairment losses on goodwill are presented incthesolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year) in the itemégreciation and amortisation expense’.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the consolidategin€ial statements at acquisition cost (cost) less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment logseslue except where they belong to companies
operating in hyperinflationary economy whose inthleg assets are restated for the effects of
hyperinflation from the date of their acquisitiop applying the changes in the general price index t
the end of the current reporting period. Intangimsets include mainly rights on intellectual prope
and software.

The Group applies the straight-line amortisatiorthoé for the intangible assets with determinedulsef
life from 5 to 10 years.

The carrying amounts of all intangible assets (idirig goodwill) of Group companies, operating ia th
environment of hyperinflationary economies, inlfialneasured at cost less accumulated depreciation
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(impairment), are restated for the effects of hiygktion by applying a general price index — frone
date of the transaction (acquisition) to the enthefcurrent reporting period or from the datehef tast
revaluation of the assets.

The carrying amount of the intangible assets isestilbo review for impairment when events or change
in the circumstances indicate that the carrying @amanight exceed their recoverable amount. Then
impairment is recognised as an amortisation expansiee consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year).

Intangible assets are derecognised from the caladeti statement of financial position when they are
permanently disposed of and no future economicfiterae expected therefrom or on sale. The gains
or losses arising from the sale of an item of igthle assets are determined as the difference batwe

the consideration received and the carrying amofithe asset at the date of sale. They are staed n
under ‘other operating income/(losses), net’ in doasolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

2.13. Investment property

Investment property is property lastingly held Wye tGroup to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. They are presented in the consolidstiitement of financial position at fair value.irga

or losses arising from a change in the fair valdeinoestment property are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomdnifwijirofit or loss for the year) as ‘other opergtin
income/(losses), net’ for the period in which theise. The income gained on investment property is
presented in the same item of the consolidatedratait of comprehensive income.

Investment property is derecognised from the cadateld statement of financial position when thay ar
permanently disposed of and no future economic fiitsrae expected therefrom or on sale. The gains
or losses arising from the sale of an item of itwemt property are determined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds and the carrying mnafuthe asset at the date of sale. They are
presented under ‘other operating income/(lossexs),im the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year).

Transfers to, or from, the group of ‘investmentgaendy’ is made only when there is a change in the
functional designation and the use of a particyli@perty. In case of a transfer from ‘investment
property’ to ‘owner-occupied property’, the assetacognised in the new group at deemed cost, which
is its fair value at the date of transfer. To thmpasite, in case of a transfer from ‘owner-occupied
property’ to ‘investment property’ the asset is swead at fair value at the date of transfer while t
difference to its carrying amount is presented asomponent of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within other comprehensigerite) and within ‘revaluation reserve — property,
plant and equipment’ in the statement of changesg)uity.

2.14. Investments in associates

The long-term investments representing sharessocéstes are presented in the consolidated finlancia
statements under the equity method — value thatdes the acquisition cost being the fair valu¢hef
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consideration paid, including the direct costs mvestment acquisition adjusted by investor's sbére
profits or losses and respectively the other resseof the associate after the date of its acquiisiti

The share of profits and losses after the dateaiiaition of an associate is presented on a seplime

in the consolidated statement of comprehensiveniec@within profit or loss for the year) while the
share of other components of comprehensive inconmm -the respective line of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within otherpratmensive income) and as a separate movement
of the individual components of reserves in thesolidated statement of changes in equity.

The investments in associates held by the Grouptheg with the included goodwill are subject to
review for impairment at the date of the financgtdtements. Where conditions for impairment are
identified and its amount is determined, the impaint is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for ttear) in the item ‘gains/(losses) from associates’

In purchases and sales of investments in assodiateslate of trading (conclusion of the deal) is
applied.

Investments in associates are derecognised whetgttie related thereto are transferred to thindigs
as a result of occurrence of legal rights for thatl thus the significant influence over the ecomomi
benefits from the investments are being lost. Tieerine from their sale is presented in ‘gains/(Igfsse
from associates’ of the consolidated statementoafprehensive income (within profit or loss for the
year).

2.15. Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments (financial asset®) mon-derivative financial assets representingesha
in the capital of other companies (minority intéyes

Initial measurement

Available-for-sale investments (financial assets) iaitially recognised at cost, being the fairuelof
the consideration given including the direct exgsnassociated with the investment (financial asset)
acquisition(Note 2.26)

Subsequent measurement

The available-for-sale investments (financial egsételd by the Group, are subsequently measured at
fair value(Note 2.32)with the assistance of an independent certifigrtaper.

The effects of subsequent revaluation of securitidair value are presented in a separate compafien
the consolidated statement of comprehensive inc@within other comprehensive income) and
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmtie income (within profit or loss for the yean)
disposal (sale) of the respective investment bgdstated as ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’.

Dividend income related with long-term investmeffisancial assets) representing shares in other
companies (minority interest) is recognised as emiriincome and presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitogs for the year) within the item ‘finance incame
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When shares are written-off due to sale, the Compaes the method of weighted average price
determined at the end of the month in which wrifésomade.

Any purchase or sale of available-for-sale invesitiméfinancial assets) is recognised on the trade, d
i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchaselbthe asset.

The available-for-sale investments (financial agsate reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and if conditions for permanent impairment are fidien, the latter is recognised in the consolidate
statement of comprehensive income (within profitogs for the year) under ‘finance costs’.

Where conditions for impairment are identified, th#er is determined as the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable value of theestment and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitaws for the year) unless a positive reserveHisr t
investment was formed in prior periods — then thpdirment is at first covered at the account of thi
reserve and is presented net in the consolidaieénsént of comprehensive income (within other
comprehensive income).

2.16. Inventories

Inventories are measured in the consolidated fiahstatements at the lower of acquisition coss{;o
including restated for the subsidiaries operatimghie environment of hyperinflationary economy for
the changes in the general price index from thestetion date to the date of the statement of €iia&n
position, and the net realisable value.

Expenses, incurred in bringing a particular prodadts present condition and location, are inctude
the acquisition cost (cost) as follows:

e raw materials, materials in finished form and goedsl delivery costs, including the purchase
price, import customs duties and charges, tranapont expenses, non-refundable taxes and
other expenses, incurred for rendering the maseaiatl goods ready for usage/sale;

» finished products and work-in-progress — cost ofecti materials and labour and the
attributable proportion of the manufacturing overtie based on normal operating capacity of
production facilities, but excluding administratiegpenses, exchange rate gains and losses and
borrowing costs.

The inclusion of fixed production overheads in tlst of finished and semi-finished products is Hase
on normal production capacity.

They are allocated to finished products on theofuihg bases chosen by the Group:
» for production of medicinal products — direct labwalued on the basis of labour norms;
« for production of infusion solutions — quantityrafinufactured finished products;
- for production of plastic medical disposable prdduestandard cost of production.

On use (sale) of materials and finished produaswbighted average cost method is applied while on
sale of goods — the first-in first-out (FIFO) medho
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The net realisable value represents the estimaiidgs price of an asset in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completiontendstimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.17. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised in the consotidatancial statements and carried at fair valuselda

on the original invoice amount (cost) less anywadince for uncollectable debts. In case of payments
deferred over a period exceeding the common ctedits, where no additional interest payment has
been envisaged or the interest considerably diffessn the common market interest rates, the
receivables are initially valued at their fair valand subsequently — at amortised cost, after deduc
the interest incorporated in their nominal value aletermined following the effective interest rate
method(Note 2.26)

An estimate of allowances for doubtful and bad slébtmade when significant uncertainty exists as to
the collection of the full amount or a part ofBad debts are written-off when the legal grounddlis

are available. Writing-off is against the formedoalance and/or as expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive incomer (within prafitoss for the year).

2.18. Interest-bearing loans and other financialgeurces granted

All loans and other financial resources grantedigitilly recognised at cost (nominal amount), grhi

is accepted to be the fair value of the considemateceived on the transaction, net of the dirests
related to these loans and granted resources. thigeinitial recognition, the interest-bearing lsand
other granted resources are subsequently measurgdpresented in the consolidated financial
statements at amortised cost by applying the éffeatterest rate method. Amortised cost is catedla

by taking into account all types of charges, corsiniss, and other costs, associated with these.loans
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidgsésment of comprehensive income (within prafit o
loss for the year) as 'finance income' (interestfimance costs' throughout the amortisation mkrar
when the receivables are settled, derecognisesdoiced.

Interest-bearing loans and other financial resaugranted are classified as current ones unlesisf¢an
the relevant portion thereof) the Group has und@illy the right to settle its obligation withaterm
of more than 12 months after the end of the repgeriod(Note 2.26)

2.19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and cash at currentiaiscerhile cash equivalents include short-term bank
deposits the funds of which are freely availabléh® companies of the Group in accordance with the
terms and conditions agreed with the banks withéndeposit term regardless of the original matwfty
the respective depogitlote 2.26)

For the purposes of the consolidated statemerdasif lows:

e cash proceeds from customers and cash paid toisigppre presented at gross amount,
including value added tax (20%);
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« interest on investment purpose loans receivedgsrted as payments for financial activities
while the interest on loans related to currentvit@s (working capital) is included in the
operating activities;

« short-term blocked funds (for up to 3 months) aeated as cash and cash equivalents. Long-
term blocked funds (for more than 3 months) are included as cash in the consolidated
statement of cash flows but are stated as ‘ottmrgmds/(payments), net’;

« interest received from short-term bank depositsi¢tuded in the composition of cash flows
from investing activities;

» VAT paid on fixed assets purchased from foreignptieps is presented on the line ‘taxes paid’
while that paid on assets purchased from local lgrgps presented as ‘cash paid to suppliers’
in the cash flows from operating activities asdaiit represents a part of the operating flows of
the Group companies and is recovered therewithamdspective period (month).

2.20. Trade and other payables

Trade and other current amounts payable are cawgidte consolidated financial statements at oaigin
invoice amount (acquisition cost), which is the failue of the consideration to be paid in the fieitior
goods and services received. In case of paymefasreleé over a period exceeding the common credit
terms, where no additional interest payment has bagisaged or the interest considerably diffepsfr
the common market interest rates, the payablemigiadly valued at their fair value and subseqienrt

at amortised cost, after deducting the interestoriporated in their nominal value, and determined
following the effective interest rate methfdote 2.26)

2.21. Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings

All loans and other borrowings are initially rectggd in the consolidated financial statements at co
(nominal amount), which is accepted to be the failue of the consideration received on the
transaction, netted of the direct costs relatettidse loans and borrowings. After the initial reatign,

the interest-bearing loans and other borrowings sadesequently measured and presented in the
consolidated financial statements at amortised lopsipplying the effective interest rate method.The
amortised cost is calculated by taking into accalhtypes of charges, commissions and other costs,
including any discount or premium on settlementeaisded with these loans. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmsatie income (within profit or loss for the yeas)
finance income or costs (interest) throughout theoréisation period, or when the liabilities are
derecognised or reduc€dote 2.26)

Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings arssiflad as current ones unless (and for the retevan
portion thereof) the Group has unconditionally thght to settle its obligation within a term of neor
than 12 months after the end of the reporting jgerio
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2.22. Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable twe tacquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset of the Group are capitalised as g@iathe cost of that asset. A qualifying asseam
asset that necessarily takes a period of at I@astdhths to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capgation to the value of a qualifying asset is detegioh

by applying a capitalisation rate. The capitalmatiate is the weighted average of the borrowirgisco
applicable to the borrowings that are outstandinging the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a quadifity asset.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part & tost of a qualifying asset commences when the
following conditions are met: expenditures for #eset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to peethee asset for its intended use or sale areogress.

Borrowing costs are also reduced by any investrirdme earned on the temporary investment of
those borrowed funds.

2.23. Leases
Finance lease
Lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group a antiat part of all risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased property, plant and equiprere recognised as assets in the statement of
financial position of the lessee and are preseatddased item of property, plant and equipmetiteit
immediate sale price or, if lower, at the presealu® of the minimum lease payments. The lease
payments are apportioned between the finance ouetdst) and the attributable portion of the lease
liability (principal) so as to achieve a consistarterest rate on the remaining outstanding pracip
balance of the lease liability. Interest expenseirnisluded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for thear) as finance costs (interest) based on the
effective interest rat@Note 2.26).

Assets acquired under finance lease are depre@atétke basis of their useful economic life anchimit
the lease term.

Lessor

Finance lease where a substantial portion of sKsriand rewards incidental to the ownership of the
leased asset is transferred outside the Groupittemoff from the goods of the lessor and is preed

in the statement of financial position as a reddivat an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease. The net investment in the lease agreemprasents the difference between the total amount of
minimum lease payments under the finance leaseciangm® and the non-guaranteed residual value,
accrued for the lessor and the non-earned finammme. The difference between the carrying amount
of the leased asset and the immediate (fair s¢hiafyie is recognised in the consolidated stateroent
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for ear) in the beginning of the lease term (when the
asset is delivered) as sales income.
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The recognition of the earned finance income aseatiinterest income is based on the application of
the effective interest rate method.

Operating lease
Lessee

Leases where the lessor keeps a substantial paft asks and economic benefits incidental to the
ownership of the specific asset are classifiedpesating leases. Therefore, the asset is not iedlinl
the statement of financial position of the lessee.

Operating lease payments are recognised as expentes consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) on aagght-line basis over the lease term.

Lessor

Lessor continues to hold a significant part ofredks and rewards of ownership over the said asset.
Therefore the asset is still included in the contfms of property, plant and equipment while its
depreciation for the period is included in the eatrexpenses of the lessor.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised straight-line basis over the lease term. Iitia
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrangingpperating lease are added to the carrying anadunt
the leased asset and recognised on a straightdisie over the lease term.

2.24. Pensions and other payables to personnel uride social security and labour legislation

The employment and social security relations witlirkers and employees of the Group are based on
the Labour Code and the provisions of the effecteeial security legislation for the companies
operating inBulgaria, the Polish Code — for the companiedPwland the employment legislation and
the Collective Labour Agreement — for the companyUkraine, the employment legislation, the
General Collective Labour Agreement and the effeckmployment Rules and Regulations — for the
company inSerbig the Labour Act — for the company limtvia, the employment legislation — for the
company inBelarus the Labour Code of the Russian Federationn Fadera for the company ithe
Russian Federatioand Labour Code — for the companyLithuania

Short-term benefits

Short-term benefits in the form of remunerationnimes and social payments and benefits (due for
payment within 12 months after the end of the mgkvithen the employees have rendered the service or
have satisfied the required terms) are recognisedrnaexpense in the statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) for tiperiod when the service thereon has been rendered
and/or the requirements for their receipt have baet) unless a particular IFRS requires capitétinat
thereof to the cost of an asset, and as a cuiigdility (less any amounts already paid and dedusti
due) at their undiscounted amount.

At each date of consolidated balance sheet, thgpanims of the Group measure the estimated costs on
the accumulating compensated absences, which arimarpected to be paid as a result of the unused
entittement. The measurement includes the estimatedunts of employee’s remuneration and the
statutory social security and health insurancerdmrttons due by the employer thereon.
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Tantieme and bonus schemes
Sopharma

In accordance with Articles of Association of thergnt company and upon a decision for approval of
the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Execiivector is entitled to one-off payment (tantierag)
the amount of up to 1% of Company's net profit erempowered to determine the circle of employees
among whom to distribute up to 2% of company'sipfof the year as a bonus for each calendar year.
When a certain portion is required to be defer@daf period of more than 12 months, this portion is
measured at present value at the reporting dateisarstiated within non-current liabilities in the
statement of financial position in the item ‘payeito personnel'.

Sopharma Trading

In accordance with the Articles of Association, teecutive Director is entitled to one-off payment
(tantieme) at the amount of 1% of company's nefitpes well as to distribution of up to 2% of
company's net profit between the members of theenignanaging personnel upon his own discretion
and in line with their individual contribution — tase of reported positive financial result for gaest
financial year and subject to a decision of the ésainMeeting of Shareholders. When a certain portio
is required to be deferred for a period of morentha months, this portion is measured at presdoeva
at the reporting date and is stated within nonenirtiabilities in the statement of financial pamit as
long-term payables to personnel. For the remaimagsonnel, including managing personnel, the
amount of bonuses is accrued in the period whehkeudsout.

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

In accordance with the Articles of Association dontlowing a decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Executive Director is entitledne-off payment (tantieme) at the amount of 1% of
company's net profit.

Momina Krepost

In accordance with the Articles of Association dotlowing a decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Executive Director is entitledne-off payment (tantieme) at the amount of 1% of
company's net profit.

Long-term retirement benefits
Defined contribution plans
For Bulgaria

The major duty of companies-employers in Bulgasatd make the mandatory social security
contributions for the hired employees to the PersiBund, the Supplementary Mandatory Pension
Security (SMPS) Fund, to the General Diseases aatgéiiity (GDM) Fund, the Unemployment Fund,

the Labour Accident and Professional Diseases (DARID for health insurance.

The rates of the social security and health inggarontributions are defined annually in the Law on
the Budget of State Social Security and the LavihenBudget of National Health Insurance Fund for
the respective year. The contributions are sptivben the employer and employee in line with rales
the Social Security Code (SSC) at the ratio 60241.2: 60:40).
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The pension plans, applied by the Company in itsacilly as an employer, are defined contribution
plans. Under these plans, the employer pays defimmtthly contributions to the government funds as
follows: Pensions Fund, GDM Fund, Unemployment FuniPD Fund as well as to universal and
professional pension funds — on the basis of rfikesl by law, and has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fundo not hold sufficient assets to pay the respecti

individuals the benefits they have worked-out awer period of their service. The obligations refegr

to health insurance are analogous.

For companies abroad

The rates of the social security contributions @haRd are approved by the Law on the National $ocia
Security System, in the Russian Federation — tllefaéLaw on Obligations for Pension Security ie th
Russian Federation and the Tax Code, in Ukrainaw &n Pension Provision, in Serbia — the Law on
Labour in the Republic of Serbia, in Latvia — thaw. on Social Security, in Lithuania - Law on
National Social Security and in Belarus — the Lawtbe Mandatory Contributions to the Fund for
Social Security of the Population of the Ministry laabour and Social Security. The social security
contributions are being apportioned between an eyapland employees at ratios regulated by the
relevant local laws.

There is no established and functioning privateintary social security scheme at the Group.

The contributions, payable by the companies ofGheup under defined contribution plans for social
security and health insurance, are recognised @asrant expense in the statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) unlesparticular IFRS requires this amount to be chpéd

to the cost of an asset, and as a current liatatittheir undiscounted amount along with the adasfia
the respective employee benefits to which the dmutions refer and in the period of rendering the
underlying service.

Defined benefit plans

In accordance with the requirements of the LabagteC the employer of the companieBulgaria is
obliged to pay to its personnel upon retiremeningiemnity, which depending on the length of service
at the entity varies between two and six gross hiprgalaries as at the termination date of the
employment. In accordance with the Law on Labougénbig the employer of the Serbian company is
obliged to pay to its personnel on coming of agerétirement an indemnity at the amount of at least
three average salaries calculated at the time yheat. In accordance with the employment legistatio
in Ukraine and the Collective labour Agreement of the Ukm@aincompany, the employer is obliged to
pay to its personnel on coming of age for retirei@nindemnity, which depending on the length of
service with the entity may vary between UAH 10@ &MH 200 (between BGN 25 and BGN 50).
Also, the company in Ukraine accrues social indéiesi which are paid before retirement of
employees due to specific labour conditions. Acitaydo the employment legislation in Poland, the
employer is obliged to pay upon retirement one gno®nthly salary. According to the employment
legislation, there are no obligations to the pengbon retirement in Lithuania, Latvia and Belarus.

In their nature these are unfunded defined besefitmes.
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The calculation of the amount of these liabilittexcessitates the participation of qualified acesin
order to determine their present value at the dftke financial statements, at which they are gmeed

in the consolidated statement of financial positiand respectively, the change in their value than
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomelbsvk: (a) current and past service costs, interes
costs and the gains/losses on a curtailment atléraents are recognised immediately when incurred
and are presented in current profit or loss uneemloyee benefits expense'; and (b) effects from
remeasurement of obligations that in substanceesept actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately when occurred and are presented torottenprehensive income in the item
'remeasurements of defined benefit pension plActiarial gains and losses arise from changesen th
actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments.

At the date of issue of the consolidated finansiatements, the companies of the Group assigriieérti
actuaries who provide their report with calculasioregarding the long-term retirement benefit
obligations. For this purpose, they apply the Ratgi@ Unit Credit Method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by disdom the estimated future cash flows, which are
expected to be paid within the maturity of thisigdlion, and using the interest rates of long-term
government bonds of similar term, quoted in th@eetve country where the company itself operates.

Termination benefits

In accordance with the local provisions of the esyplent and social security regulations of the Group
companies, the employer is obliged, upon terminatibthe employment contracts prior to retirement,
to pay certain types of indemnities.

The Group recognises employee benefit obligatiomsemployment termination before the normal
retirement date when it is demonstrably committedsed on an announced plan, including for
restructuring, to terminating the employment caettigith the respective individuals without possilil

of withdrawal or in case of formal issuance of doeumts for voluntary redundancy. Termination
benefits due more than 12 months are discountedpaesiented in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their present value.

2.25. Share capital and reserves

SOPHARMA AD (the parent company) is a joint-stoakmpany and is obliged to register with the
Commercial Register a specifiasthare capital which should serve as a security for the cresdlifor
execution of their receivables. The shareholdezdiable for the obligations of the Company uphte t
amount of the share of the capital held by eacthef and may claim refunding of this share only in
case of liquidation or bankruptcy proceedings. Pagent company reports its share capital at the
nominal value of the shares registered in the court

According to the requirements of the Commercial Aot the Articles of Association, the parent
company is obliged to set asid®aserve Fundstatutory reservepy using the following sources:

« at least one tenth of the profit, which should becated to the Fund until its amount reaches
one tenth of the share capital or any larger amaamnhay be decided by the General Meeting
of Shareholders;
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» any premium received in excess of the nominal vafughares upon their issue (share premium
reserve);
» other sources as provided for by a decision ofabreral Meeting.

The amounts in the Fund can only be used to covaral loss or losses from previous years. When the
amount of the Fund reaches the minimum value Spddif the Articles of Association, the excess may
be used for increasing share capital.

Thetreasury sharesre presented in the consolidated statement afifial position at acquisition cost
(cost) and Group'’s equity is decreased by theisgpmurchase price. Gains or losses on sales sitsea
shares are carried directly to Group’s equity m ‘tietained earnings’ component.

Revaluation reserve — property, plant and equipméenset aside from:

« the revaluation surplus between the carrying amotiptoperty, plant and equipment and their
fair values at the revaluation date;

« the revaluation surplus between the carrying amaidinproperty stated as owner-occupied
property and their fair values at the date wheg #re transferred to investment property.

Deferred tax effect on the revaluation reservarisctly carried at the account of this reserve.

Revaluation reserve is transferred to accumulateitp when the assets are derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position of @reup or are fully depreciated.

The revaluation reserve covers the impairment efassets to which it relates. It may be used in the
implementation of Group's dividend and capital giek only after it is transferred to the 'retained
earnings' component.

Available-for-sale financial assets reseri® being set aside from the difference betweerctreying
amount of the available-for-sale financial assetbtheir fair values at the revaluation date. Tagerve

is transferred to current profit and loss in thesmidated statement of comprehensive income (withi
profit or loss for the year) when the financial etssare disposed of (sold) by the Group and/or on
identified permanent impairment of particular fioah assets.

The Translation of foreign operations reseniacludes the effects of restating the financiateshents of
the companies abroad from local currency to thesgmition currency of the Group. This reserve is
recognised as a separate component of equity indhsolidated statement of financial position asd a
part of the profit or loss in the consolidated eta¢nt of comprehensive income on the line
‘gains/(losses) on acquisition and disposal of ®lidnses, net’ on disposal (sale) of a foreign @pien
(company)Note 2.5)

2.26. Financial instruments
2.26.1. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHiefdang categories: loans and receivables and abks}
for-sale assets. The classification depends ondah&e and purpose (designation) of the financstts
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at the date of their acquisition. The managemenhefparent company together with the management
of the respective subsidiary determine the clasgifin of the financial assets for the purposethef
Group at the date of their initial recognition iretstatement of financial position.

The Group companies usually recognise their firdrassets in the statement of financial positian o
the trade date, being the date on which they cortmmjiurchase the respective financial assets. All
financial assets are initially measured at theirfalue plus the directly attributable transactomsts.

Financial assets are derecognised from the Graugisolidated statement of financial position when
the rights to receive cash from these assets hegyieed or have been transferred, and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewarflswnership of the asset to another entity (p@rso
external thereto. If the Group retains substantiall risks and rewards associated with the ownprsh

a particular transferred financial asset, it camto recognise the transferred asset in its tidased
statement of financial position but also recogniaesecured liability (a loan) for the consideration
received.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivablese non-derivative financial assets with fixed etedminable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are measurdidei consolidated statement of financial posiabn
their amortised cost using the effective interesthod less any allowance for impairment. Thesetasse
are included in the group of current assets whempamaturity within 12 months or within a common
operating cycle of the respective Group companyenmtie remaining ones are carried as non-current
assets.

This group of financial assets includes: loans @@hntrade receivables, other receivables from
counterparts and third parties, cash and cash &lquits from the consolidated statement of financial
position (Notes 2.17, 2.18, 2.19 and 2.2M)terest income on loans and receivables is m@sed by
applying the effective interest rate except forrsterm receivables (less than three months) wtiere
recognition of such interest would be unjustifiabteimmaterial and within the common credit terins.
is presented in the consolidated statement of celhgmsive income (within profit or loss for the year
under the item ‘finance income’.

At the date of each statement of financial posijtitre Group companies assess whether events and
circumstances have occurred that indicate the exdst of objective evidence necessitating loans and
receivables to be impairébote 2.33)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those nerivdtive assets that are either acquired for thpgse

of being sold or are not classified in any otha@egary. For the Group, these are usually sharegj$o
or interest in other (third) companies, acquiredifi;vestment purposes (available-for-sale invests)en
and are included within non-current assets, exagygre a Group company intends to sell them in the
following 12 months and is actively searching fdnger(Note 2.15)

Available-for-sale financial assets are initiallgcognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given including acquisition costsasged with the investment.

44
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the condalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 813.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The available-for-sale financial assets are sulmd@tjumeasured at fair value except for the shiares
closed-end companies not traded in a stock-exchawagket(Note 2.15)

The effects, gains or losses, of revaluation to fa@lue of the available-for-sale investments are
included in the consolidated statement of comprsiverincome (within other comprehensive income)
under the item ‘net change in fair value of avdddor-sale financial assets’ and are accrued to a
separate equity component — ‘available-for-salaerfaial assets reserve’.

Where subsequent permanent impairment is identifiezh sale of an available-for-sale investmerd, th
amount of impairment and all previously accumuldteses (net) to the reserve are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomenifwitrofit or loss for the year) as ‘finance costs’
Analogously, on each sale of investment of thigtythe unrealised gains accumulated in the reseeve
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmstie income (within profit or loss for the yeas)
‘finance income’.

The recycling of accumulated effects from changthénfair value of available-for-sale investments a
presented with other comprehensive income (in thainge in fair value of available-for-sale finahcia
assets’), net of those resulting from new revaturetifor the period.

Dividends on shares, classified as available-fte-8nancial assets, are recognised in the coresaii
statement of comprehensive income (within profilass for the year) when the company’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

The available-for-sale investments are reviewedaah date of the statement of financial positian fo

events or circumstances indicating the existencebgdctive evidence for impairment of a particular

financial asset or group of assets. Financial asmet impaired if their carrying amount is highteaurt

the expected recoverable amount. The recognisediiment loss is equal to the difference between the
acquisition cost less the repayments and theirvezable amount, which is accepted to be equaléo th

present value of the expected future cash flows;adinted at the current interest rate or through th

yield for similar financial assets.

2.26.2. Financial liabilities and equity instrumest

The Group classifies debt and equity instrumeriteeis financial liabilities or as equity in actance
with the substance of the contractual arrangemeitts the respective counterparty regarding these
instruments.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Group include I@and payables to suppliers and other counterparts.
They are initially recognised in the consolidatéateament of financial position at fair value nettioé
directly attributable transaction costs and aressgbently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest metho@ote 2.20, Note 2.21 and Note 2.2).

2.27. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has amrebligation (legal or constructive) as a resfih
past event and it is probable that an outflow ebteces will be required to settle (repay) thegatilon.
The provisions are valued based on the best estiofathe respective company management and the
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Group at the date of the consolidated statemefihafficial position of the expenses necessary tteset
the respective obligation. The estimate is discedirif the obligation is long-term. When part the
resources required to settle the obligation areebenl to be recovered from a third party, the retbpe
company of the Group recognises a receivable i$ ivirtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, its amount can be reliably measured magwhie (credit) is recognised in the same item ef th
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoménifwrofit or loss for the year) where the provisio
itself is presente@ote 2.33).

2.28. Income taxes

Current income taxeef the Bulgarian companies of the Group are detexchin accordance with the
requirements of the Bulgarian tax legislation — tBerporate Income Taxation Act (CITA). The
nominal income tax rate in Bulgaria for year 201&85v0 % (2012: 10%).

The subsidiaries, joint ventures and associatesadbare charged in accordance with the requirements
of the respective local tax regulations by applyimg following tax rates:

Subsidiary company Country Tax rate

2013 2012
OO0 Sopharma Ukraine Ukraine 19% 21%
PAO Vitamini Ukraine 19% 21%
Ivanchich i Sinovi d.o.o. Serbia 15% 10%
Sopharma USA USA 15.35% 15.35%
Extab Corporation USA 15.35% 15.35%
Extab Pharma Limited United Kingdom 23% 24%
Briz Itd. Latvia 15% 15%
OO0 Tabina Belarus 18% 18%
ZAO Interpharm Belarus 18% 18%
SOOO Brititrade Belarus 18% 18%
SOOO Brizpharm Belarus 18% 18%
ODO Alean Belarus 18% -
OO0 Farmaceuvt Plus Belarus 18% -
UAB TBS Pharma Lithuania 15% -
ODO Vestpharm Belarus 18% 18%
OO0 NPK Biotest Belarus 18% -
ODO BelAgroMed Belarus 18% -
Sopharma Poland Z.0.0. —in liquidation Poland %19 19%
Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0.0. Poland 19% 19%
ZAO Rostbalkanpharm Russian Federation - 20%
Joint venture
00O Med-dent Belarus 18% -
OO0 Vivaton Plus Belarus 18% 18%
Sopharma Zdrovit SA — wound-up through liquidation
on 25 February 2013 Poland 19% 19%
Associat
BOOO SpetzApharmacia Belarus 18% -
ODO Alean Belarus - 18%

Deferred income taxeare determined using the liability method on athporary differences of each
consolidated company existing at the consolidaiedntial statements date, between the carrying
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amounts of the assets and liabilities and theibses, including for those arising from consoiaat
adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for allahle temporary differences, with the exceptionhaise
originating from recognition of an asset or lidyiliwhich has not affected the accounting and the
taxable profit/(loss) as at the date of the tratisac

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedactémporary differences and the carry-forward of
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is prabtiady will reverse and a taxable profit will beagable

or taxable temporary differences might occur, agfaivhich these deductible temporary differences can
be utilized, with the exception of the differenassing from the initial recognition of an asset or

liability, which has affected neither the accougtinor taxable profit or loss as at the date of the
transaction.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assetgvw&emwed at each balance sheet date and reduckd to t
extent that it is no longer probable that they wéllerse and sufficient taxable profit to be getastar
occurring in the same period taxable temporaryedifices to allow the deferred tax asset to bezeili
(deducted or compensated).

Deferred taxes, related to items that are accounteas other components of comprehensive income or
an equity item in the consolidated statement oarfaial position, are also reported directly in the
respective component of the comprehensive incomtherequity item in the statement of financial
position.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurdtleatax rates and on the bases that are expexted t
apply to the period and type of operations wherageet is realised or the liability — settled (fdpan

the basis of the tax laws that have been enactedbmtantively enacted, and at tax rates of thatcpu
under the jurisdiction of which the respective defé asset or liability is expected to be recoveyed
settled.

Deferred tax assets of a Group company are prabemieagainst the deferred tax liabilities of this
company when it is the tax payer in the respedtivisdiction, and this is only in cases where the
company is legally entitled to perform or receivat payments of current tax liabilities or incomg ta

receivables.

As at 31 December 2013, the deferred income takéiseoGroup companies are assessed at the rate,
valid for 2014, which is 10% for the Bulgarian caanges, while those of the subsidiaries, joint vezrgu
and associates abroad are as follows:
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Tax rate
Subsidiary company Country 2014
00O Sopharma Ukraine Ukraine 18%
PAO Vitamin Ukraine 18%
Ivanchich i Sinovi d.o.( Serbit 15%
Extab Corporatic USA 15.35%
Extab Pharma Limite United Kingdon 23%
Briz Itd. Latvia 15%
OO0O Tabin. Belaru: 18%
ZAO Interpharn Belaru: 18%
SOOO Brititrad Belaru: 18%
SOOO Brizpharr Belaru: 18%
ODO Alear Belaru: 18%
OO0 Farmacevt Pli Belaru: 18%
UAB TBS Pharm Lithuanie 15%
ODO Vestpharr Belaru: 18%
OOC NPK Biotes Belaru: 18%
ODO BelAgroMet Belaru: 18%
Sopharma Poland Z.0.+ in liquidatior Polanc 18%
Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0 Polant 18%
Joint venture
00O Mec-den Belaru: 18%
OO0 Vivaton Plu Belaru: 18%
Associat
BOOO SpetzApharmac Belaru: 18%

2.29. Government grants

Gratuitous aids from public institutions (municipgbvernment and international institutions, inahggd
under the procedure of using the European fundgparmgtammes), are initially recognised as deferred
income (financing) when there is reasonable assartrat they will be received by the Group and that
the latter has complied and still complies with #ssociated thereto conditions and requirements.

A government grant that compensates the Compangximenses incurred is recognised in current profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periaghich the expenses are recognised.

A government grant that compensates investmentnaggencurred to acquire an asset is recognised in
current profit or loss on a systematic basis oleruseful life of the asset usually proportionatelyhe
amount of the recognised depreciation charge.

2.30. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividieigprofit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent company by the weighted aeeraimber of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.
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The weighted average number of ordinary sharestamdig during the period is the number of
ordinary shares outstanding during at the beginointipe period, adjusted by the number of ordinary
shares bought back or issued during the periodipligl by a time-weighting factor. This factor
represents the number of days that the sharesutstauading as a proportion of the total numberayfsd

in the period.

In case of a capitalization, additional issue dit,sfine number of the outstanding ordinary shaest
the date of such event, is adjusted as to reffextproportional change in the number of outstanding
ordinary shares as if the event has occurred ibéiginning of the earliest presented period.

Diluted earnings per share are not calculated Isecao dilutive potential ordinary shares have been
issued within the Group.

2.31. Segment reporting

The Group identifies its reporting segments andloées segment information in accordance with the
organisational and reporting structure used by tfamagement of the parent company for current
general monitoring and management of the Grouptarmbmponents. Operating segments are business
components, which are regularly measured by key lmesnof the management who take operating
decisions by using financial and operating infolioratprepared specifically for the segment for the
purposes of current monitoring and assessmentrédrpgance and allocating Group’s resources.

Group’s operating segments are currently monitasdi directed separately as each of them represents
a separate business area that bears various lsislesand rewards. The operating segments byhwhic
the Group’s management monitors, measures andotetite risks and returns thereof are identified in
line with the main business activities performethvgharmaceuticals, namely: production and trade.

Information by operating segments

The Group uses one measuring unit — gross margafitjpfor measuring the results in the operating
segments and allocation of resources between theisi.defined as the difference between segment
revenue and segment expenses directly attributalttee respective segment.

Segment assets, liabilities, respective revenugereses and results include those that are andecan b
directly attributable to the respective segmemnwal as such that can be allocated on a reasobabie,
including inter-segment ones. Usually, these akfdr revenue — sales of finished products andigpo
(b) for expenses - raw materials and consumabled, Wepreciation and amortisation and production
staff remuneration, carrying amount of goods sét); for assets — property, plant and equipment,
inventories, receivables from related parties, dreeceivables; (d) for liabilities — current paysblo
personnel and for social security, payables tdedlparties and trade payables.

Capital expenses (investments) by business segraentdifferentiated expenses incurred in the period
of acquisition or construction of segment non-cotrrassets, which are expected to be used for more
than one period.

The Group manages its investments in securitiedainetrade accounts and financial resources
granted/received as well as taxes at Group andaepeompany level but they are not allocated at
segment level.

The results of the operations regarded as accidents compared to the main types of operations
(activities) of the Group as well as revenue, espen liabilities and assets that are not subject to
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allocation are stated separately in the item "@t&roup level'. In general, these amounts incloteer
operating income unless originating from the operadf a particular segment, administrative expsnse
interest income and expenses, realised and uredalimins and losses from foreign currency
transactions and investments, investments in atberpanies, other receivables, loans received, tax
accounts, general-purpose production and admitiisgraquipment.

Intersegmental transfers: segment revenue, segmgidgnse and segment results include internal
transfers between business segments. These tsmaséestated at competitive market prices charged t
non-related clients for similar goods and are elatéd at consolidated financial statements level.

The investments in associates recorded under thayemethod are excluded from the assets by
segment and the revenue by segment. They are dses part of unallocated assets and the income
therefrom is presented in ‘gains/(losses) fromssoaiate, net'.

The applied accounting policy for segment reportiagbased on that used by the Group for the
preparation of its statutory financial statementspublic purposes.

In addition, the Group discloses information regagdmportant clients when the amount of achieved
revenue from a client exceeds 10% of the total arhofi consolidated revenue earned from Group’s
operations.

2.32. Fair value measurement

Some of Group's assets and liabilities are measamdgresented and/or just disclosed at fair viaiue
financial reporting purposes. Such are (a) on arrem basis— available-for-sale financial assets,
investment property, granted and received bankdcamd loans from third parties, certain trade and
other receivables and payables, finance lease vabées and payables; and oth@n) on a non-
recurring basis- non-financial assets such as property, plant angmygent.

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddib an asset or paid to transfer a liability inaderly
transaction between market participants at the uneasent date. Fair value is an exit price and sebta

on the assumption that the sale transaction wi#t f@lace either in the principal market for thisetsor
liability or in the absence of a principal markein-the most advantageous market for the asset of
liability. Both the designated as a principal maraad the most advantageous market are markets to
which the Group companies must have an access.

Fair value is measured from the perspective ofgusive assumptions and judgments that potential
market participants would use when pricing the eetipe asset or liability assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

In measuring the fair value of non-financial asdées starting point is always the assumption what
would be the highest and best use of the parti@dset for the market participants.

The Group applies various valuation techniques Wwild be relevant to the specific features of the
respective conditions and for which its has suffitiavailable inputs while trying to use at a maxim
the publicly observable information, and respedyiveo minimize the use of unobservable information
It uses the three acceptable approachése—market approach, the income approach and thst co
approach —whereas the most frequently applied valuation teghlesinclude direct and/or adjusted
quoted market prices, market comparables (analpgures discounted cash flows, including based on
capitalised rental income.
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All assets and liabilities that are measured andisclosed in the consolidated financial statemaints
fair value, are categorised within the followingy fealue hierarchy, namely:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices invactinarkets for identical assets or
liabilities;
* Level 2 — Valuation techniques that use inputs rotthan directly quoted prices but are

observable, either directly or indirectly, inclugirwhere the quoted prices are subject to
significant adjustments; and

* Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowkstel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

The Group applies mainly Level 2 and Level 3 failue.

For assets and liabilities that are recognisediatvilue in the consolidated financial statemeamsa
recurring basis, the Group determines at the datthe consolidated financial statement whether
transfers between levels in the fair value hienarabe deemed to be made for a particular asset or
liability depending on the inputs available anddiaethat date.

Internal rules and procedures for measuring thevidue of various types of assets and liabilitiase
been developed centrally in the parent company ti®purpose, a specifically designated individual,
subordinated to the Finance Director of the Grarganised the performance of the overall valuation
process and also coordinates and observes theofititk external appraisers.

The Group uses the expertise of external certdiggraisers to determine the fair value of the fuithgy
assets and liabilities: available-for-sale finah@asets, investment properties, property, plamt an
equipment. The choice of such appraisers is madanoannual basis using the following criteria:
applied professional standards, professional expeei and knowledge, reputation and market status.
The need for rotation of external appraisers isop@rally assessed — every three to five years. The
applied valuation approaches and techniques as asethe used inputs for each case of fair value
measurement are subject to mandatory discussioncaodlination between the external experts —
appraisers and the specifically designated indalidengaged with measurements, and so is the
acceptance of the issued appraiser's reports €ialpeavith regard to the significant assumptiomsl a
the final conclusions and proposals for the failusaamount. The final fair value measurements are
subject to approval by the Finance Director / Ciie€ountant, Executive Director and the Board of
Directors of the respective company and the Fin&nctor of the Group.

In accordance with Group accounting policy, at dm of each reporting period the specifically
designated individual, engaged with measuremestonmms a general analysis of collected in advance
information about the movement in the values o&tssand liabilities of the Group companies that are
subject to valuation or to a disclosure at faiuealthe type of available data and the possibleifador

the observed changes, and proposes for approvhet&inance Director, the approach for measuring
the fair value of the respective assets and ligsliat that date. Where necessary, this is eHplici
consulted with the involved external appraisers.

The results of the assessment of the fair valuesarement procedure are presented to the audit
committee and to the independent auditors of tlepaetive companies as well as to the Finance
Director and the independent auditors of the Group.

For the purposes of fair value disclosures, theu@toas classified the respective assets and tiabili
on the basis of their nature, basic characteristickrisks as well as of the fair value hierardiieeel.
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2.33. Critical accounting judgments on applying tl&roup’s accounting policies. Key estimates and
assumptions of high uncertainty.

2.33.1. Group companies operating in the environmeh hyperinflationary economies

At 31 December 2013 the total inflation in Belafas the last three years exceeded 100%. Therefore,
the management of the parent company has defiredstbup companies performing their business
activities in Belarus as companies operating in ¢éneironment of hyperinflationary economy. In
addition, it undertakes all necessary measurehabthe subsidiaries in Belarus are maintained to
operate under the going concern princiiNete 44)

Because of these circumstances, for the purposteséconsolidated financial statements, the figure
in the financial statements of the companies ojmgrah Belarus — SOOO Brititrade, OOO Tabina,
ZAO Interpharm, SOOO Brizpharm, OOO Vivaton Plu@ Alean, ODO Vestpharm, OO0 NPK
Biotest, ODO BelAgroMed and OOO Farmacevt Plus rewestated for the effects of hyperinflation.

The prior period comparatives were not restatednabat those already restated with the relevant
inflation index (for year 2012) were used. The geh&dex of consumer prices officially determined
and published by the National Statistics CommitteBelarus was applied in these restatements.

The consumer price index in Belarus for the pefioth 2010 to 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Year 201( 2011 201z 2013
Consumer price indt
compared to prior period (%) 10.1 108.7 21.¢ 16.5
2013
Q1 % Q2 % Q3 % Q4 %
January 3.0 April 0.5 July 1 October 1.9
February 1.2 May 0.7 August 0.1 November 1.6
March 1.1 June 0.3 September 1.7 December 2.4
2012
Q1 % Q2 % Q3 % Q4 %
January 1.9 April 1.7 July 1.3 October 1.8
February 1.5 May 1.6 August 2.3 November 1.7
March 1.5 June 1.8 September 1.3 December 1.4
Q - quarter

Inflation indices in the range from 1.076 to 1.18ére used for the restatement of the figures in the
financial statements of the subsidiaries in Bel¢R04.2: from 1.01 to 1.22).

The gain on the net monetary position from restatgmfor hyperinflationary economy at the amount
of BGN 1,690 thousand (2012: BGN 823 thousand)uihes profit from remeasurement of goodwill of
the entities in Belarus at the amount of BGN 15iutand (2012: BGN 1,227 thousand).
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2.33.2. Recognition of tax assets

On recognition of deferred tax assets, the managenfethe Group has assessed the probability the
individual deductible temporary differences to mseein the future and each of the Group companies’
capability to generate sufficient taxable profir fineir offset. The management of the Group has
assessed at the date of issue of the consoliditadcfal statements the subsidiaries that contibue
report losses in the last years with regard totiexjssignificant uncertainties as to whether anaviat
extent within the final term, determined with thespective local tax regulations for tax loss carry
forward, these companies would be able to genstdfizient taxable profit. As a result of this aysis,

it has taken a decision to not recognise defear@ssets in the consolidated financial staterraritse
amount of BGN 2,174 thousand (2012: BGN 3,850 tandiNote 31).

2.33.3. Inventories
Normal capacity

The normal production capacity of the Group comesuis determined using the following bases: (a)
man-hours worked-out (weighted average per mofibh)machine-hours worked-out (weighted average
per month); (c) production volume in quantitatieents, in kind (weighted average per month).

The normal capacity is determined by type of préidncand based on observations of the respective
indicator movement within a period between threfvimyears.

The choice of a specific base for the respectivapamy depends on the characteristic features of the
organisation of production, including the laboueirsity and machinery performance.

Allowance for impairment

At the end of each financial year, the Group congsareview the state, useful life and usabilitytho#
existing inventories. Where inventories are idésdifthat are potentially likely to not be realisgdheir
current carrying amount in the following reportipgriods, the Group companies impair the inventories
to net realisable value.

As a result of the performed reviews and analysest 81 December 2013, impairment of inventories at
the amount of BGN 1,654 thousand has been recabimigbe consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) (20BGN 967 thousandNote 10).

2.33.4. Impairment of receivables

The losses from doubtful and bad debts are estihatthe date of the consolidated financial statéme
on individual basis for each receivable. Whereidiffies in collecting certain receivables are aled,
they are subject to analysis in order to deterntireeactually collectable portion while the remagnin
portion to the nominal value is recognised in tlomsolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year) as impairméNite 10)

After 180 days of delay it is already consideredttindicators for impairment may exist. In the
assessment of the collectability of receivableg thanagement of the Group companies perform
analysis of the total exposure of each counterpariyrder to establish the actual possibility foeit
collection and not only at the level of past dudividual receivables from the total amount due oy t
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counterparty, including the potential for colle¢tinnterest for compensating delays. When the
collectability of a receivable (a group of receile) is highly uncertain, an assessment is madd¢ wha
part thereof is secured by collateral (pledge, gayé, guarantees) and thus with ensured collection
(through future realisation of the collateral oragantee payment). Where the management has
concluded that a very high uncertainty exists ath&collectability of certain receivables or paft
them and they are not secured by collateral, tbeivables are impaired to 100®4otes 25, 26 and 25).

The amount of recognised impairment losses for Z8&Bof the reversed ones) is BGN 2,366 thousand
(2010: BGN 2,201 thousan@lote 10).

2.33.5. Actuarial calculations

Calculations of certified actuaries have been @y year when determining present value of long-
term payables to personnel upon retirement on disés lof assumptions for mortality rate, staff tweo
rate, future salaries level and discount fafimte 32).

2.33.6. Operating lease

The Group classified a building, part of which Hambn leased to related parties under operating leas
terms, in the group of ‘property, plant and equipthef the consolidated statement of financial
position. Since a significant part of the buildimgs used by the Group as well, the management
decided that the building should not be treateithasstment property.

2.33.7. Litigation provisions

With regard to the pending litigations against camips of the Group, the management of the
respective companies, jointly with their lawyerayé judged that at this stage the probability askbkr

of a negative outcome is still below 50% and thenesfno provisions have been included for litigatio
liabilities in the consolidated statement of fin@hgosition as at 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012: nonelNote 41).
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3. EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The management of the parent company has perfoanstnmarised assessment of the effects of the
amendments tbAS 19 (revised) (in force for annual periods begig on or after 1 January 2013 —
endorsed by EUfor the GroupThe necessary restatements were made in the adatsalistatement of
financial position as at 1 January 2012 and aslabD8cember 2012 as well as in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the periddnliary — 31 December 2012.

(a) in the consolidated statement of financial pogias at 1 January 2012:

The effects of changes in the accounting policresresult of additionally recognised actuarial gam
the obligation for long-term benefits to persoramed are as follows:

originally statec change in the restatel
accounting
policies
01.01.2012 01.01.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Retained earnini 154,46" (48) 154,41
Retirement benefit obligations to personnel 2,390 (48) 2,438

(b) in the consolidated statement of financial posias at 31 December 2012:

The effects of changes in the accounting policresrasult of additionally recognised actuarial loss
the obligation for long-term benefits to persoramed are as follows:

originally statec change in the restate
accounting
policies
31.12.2012 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Retained earnings 177,900 (283) 177,617
Retirement benefit obligations to persol 2,331 283 2,61/

(c) in the consolidated statement of compreherisa@me for 2012:

The effects of changes in the accounting policresrasult of additionally recognised actuarial logs
the obligation for long-term benefits to persoramed are as follows:

originally statec change in the restatel
accounting
policies
2012 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit oisk
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension - (235 (235
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The effect of the change in accounting policiestlie other comprehensive income component
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension ftangear 2013 is a recognised actuarial loss on the
obligation at the amount of BGN 117 thousand.

4. REVENUE

Group revenueancludes:

2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Goods 495,035 422,317
Finished products 267,654 266,262
762,689 688,579
Sales of goods by type 2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Tablet dosage forms 230,743 204,399
Ampoule dosage forms 135,152 115,617
Consumables, dressing materials and appar: 36,717 27,67¢
Drops 24,95, 20,47¢
Syrup dosage forms 13,389 10,220
Cosmetic 12,31¢ 7,66:
Food supplements and herbs 10,032 8,916
Other 19,651 17,270
Total 495,035 422,317
Sales of finished products by type 2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Tablet dosage forms 170,741 185,081
Ampoule dosage forms 44 979 33,434
Syrup dosage forms 14,951 15,163
Lyophilic product: 9,19¢ 5,16¢
Ointment: 7,725 8,13¢
Drops 4,552 5,007
Syringe! 3,31¢ 2,37¢
Infusion solution 1,92 1,76:
Blow-moulded article 1,13¢ 1,03
Veterinary vaccines 1,596 876
Other 7,535 8,228
Total 267,654 266,262
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This is a translation from Bulgarian of the condalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 813.



SOPHARMA GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND LOSSES, NET

Other operating income and losses, ristlude:

Services rendert

Rentals

Government grants

Social activites and even

Liabilities written-off

Income from penalties

Gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets
Loss from sales of materials

Insurance indemnities received

Net loss from exchange differences under tradevaiskes and
payables and current accounts

(Loss)/gain on changes in the fair value of investhpropert
(Note 19)

Other

Total

6. RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED

Expenses on materialsiclude

Basic materials

Spare parts, laboratory and technical materials
Electric energy

Heat power

Fuels and lubricating materi.
Watel

Impairment of materials
Labour safety measures
Scrapped materials

Other

Total
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2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
5,333 2,394
776 735
573 563

168 598

144 12
131 705

23 (88)

(268) (171)
6 43

(2,775) (3,683)
(31) 116

831 1,104
4,911 2,328
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
62,401 64,725
6,427 6,985
5,606 4,866
4,367 4,994
3,971 3,731
88¢ 947

226 88

170 138

129 119
3,020 2,976
87,166 89,575
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Expenses obasic materialdnclude:

Substances (ace ingredients
Packaging materie

Liguid and solid chemicals
Aluminium foil

Ampoules

Herbs

Polypropylene, polyethylene, polystyr
Solution sack

Other

Total

7. HIRED SERVICES EXPENSE

Hired services expensacludes:

Advertising

Consulting services

Rental:

Buildings and equipment maintena
Forwarding and transportation services
Manufacturing of medicinal produr
Bank and regulatory charges
Subscription fees

Services under civil contrax

Local taxes and charg

Services on medicinal products registration
Security

Insurance

Announcements and communications
Motor vehicles repair

Medical servic

Taxes on expenses

Desruction of pharmaceutice
Commission fee

Logistic services

Documentation translation

Othel

Total

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the condalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 813.

2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
31,22¢ 33,32¢
9,49¢ 10,43t
6,371 6,822
5,472 5,88:
2,384 2,593
2,242 1,178
1,58¢ 1,46¢
1,12C 1,10(
2,505 1,924
62,401 64,725
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
17,662 16,698
7,729 4,969
6,141 4,438
3,06: 3,712
2,984 3,335
2,97( 4,773
1,748 1,638
1,555 1,497
1,51¢ 1,794
1,40z 1,171
1,282 1,241
1,27 1,118
987 1,403
953 1,102
835 724
738 609
704 644
44~ 305
43¢ 344
522 952
366 630
3,99( 2,395
59,305 55,492
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Current wages and salaries 56,257 51,966
Social security/health insurance contribut 11,57: 10,785
Social benefits and payme 3,80¢ 3,631
Tantieme 1,105 1,288
Accruals for unused paid lear 713 727
Social security/health insurance contributionseavée 227 190
Accruals for long-term benefits to personnel upstirement 977 385
(Note 32)
Total 74,659 68,972
9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Charged/(reversed) impairment of current assetgNate 10) 3,79¢ 3,08(C
Entertainment allowances 3,29¢ 2,77¢
Business trig 1,59¢ 1,741
Scrap and shortages of go 1,21¢ 1,11¢
Taxes and interest on taxes paid 77€ 22t
Scrap and shortages of finished products and wegedgress 64¢ 18¢
Receivables writte-off 623 14€
Donations 541 51¢
Training 382 31€
Scrapping of no-current asse 377 22¢
Unrecognised input tax 213 20C
Awarded amounts under litigations 123 76€
Other 54¢€ 24E
Total 14,131 11,548
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10. IMPAIRMENT OF CURRENT ASSETS

Impairment losse®n receivables and inventory, net include:

Impairment of receivables

Reversed impairment of receivables

Net change in the impairment of receiva

(Notes 9, 25, 26 and 27)

Impairment of finished produc{blote 9)

Impairment of goodéNote 9)

Impairment of material\ote 6)

Impairment of receivables under trade loans granted
Reversed impairment of trade loans granted

Net change in the impairment of trade loans granted
Impairment of work-in-progress
(Note 9)

Total

11. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Impairment losses on non-current assetglude:

Impairment of property, plant and equipm@xbte 17)
Impairment of goodwil(Note 18)
Total

The impairment of tangible fixed assets and goddisilpresented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for thiear) within ‘depreciation and amortisation

expense’.
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2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
3,561 1,939
(1,202) (313)
2,359 1,626
901 727
429 147
226 88
7 575
7 575
98 5
4,020 3,168
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
2,303 -
140 2,108
2,443 2,108
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12. FINANCE INCOME

Finance incomeincludes:

Interest income on loans granted

Interest income on past due receivables

Income from equity invements (dividend:

Interest income on bank deposits

Net gain from exchange differences on loans iniforeurrenc

Total

13. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costanclude:

Interest expense on loans received

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

Expenses on investments in secur

Net loss from exchange differences on loans inigoreurrency
Bank fees and charges on loans and guarantees

Interest expense on finance lease

Total

14. LOSSES FROM ASSOCIATES

Losses from associat@sclude

Share in (profits)/losses of the Group
Valuation of previouly held shares on acquisition of coniin the
companiefrom the Grou|

Total

2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
3,700 4,109
2,452 1,246
393 184

8 71

- 433

6,553 6,043
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
8,429 7,338
6,769 1,071
5,068 31
1,197 -
684 520

367 381
22514 9,341
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
(105) 56
841 -

736 56
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(profit or loss for the year)

Taxable profit of the Group companies for the

Revaluation rserve included as an increase in the annual tam
Taxable profit for the year

Current income tax expense for the y— 10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 189
19%, 23%(201: 10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 18%, 19%, 20 %, 21% , 2
Prior periods tax expense

Deferred income taxes

Occurrence and reversal of temporary differe

Tax rate chang- Ukraine

(2012: Ukraine, Belarus)

Total income tax expense carried to the consolidadestatement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for theyear)

Reconciliation of income tax expense applicable the
consolidated accounting profit or loss

Accounting profit for the y«
Income tax- 10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 18%, 19%, 23% (2(10 %, 15%
15.35%, 18%, 19%, 20 %, 21% , 24% )

Unrecognised amounts under the tax re

Related to increases

Related to decreas

Tax loss for the current year on which no defeteedassets are
recognised

Recognised deferred taxes due to temporary difteefrom prior
periods

Prior periods tax exper

Tax rate changes — Ukraine (2012: Ukraine, Belarus)

Total income tax expense carried to the consolidadestatement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for theyear)
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2013 2012
BGN ‘000  BGN ‘000
66,62t 58,93
(263 (588
66,363 58,344
(7,331 (6,194
(37) (62)
2,18¢ 1,58¢
4 (264)
(5,179) (4,934)
2013 2012
BGN'000  BGN'000
37,817 42,900
(3,244 (4,125
(2,912) (1,035)
1,053 80€
(238) (269)
195 15
(37) (62)
4 (264)
(5,179) (4,934)
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The tax effects regarding other components of cetmgmisive income are as follows:

2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Tax
Pre-tax benefit/y  Amount Pre-tax Tax benefit/ Amount
amount (expense) net of tax amount  (expense) net of tax
Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or
loss
(oss)/gain orrevaluatior
of property, plant and
equipment (353) 35 (318) 18 2) 16
Remeasurements of
defined benefit pension
plans (117) - (117) (235) - (235)
(470) 35 (435) (217) (2) (219)
Items that may e
reclassified to profit or
loss
Net change in the fair
value of available-fosale
financial assets (217) - (217) 1,214 - 1,21¢
Exchange difference
from restating foreign
operation (1,406 - (1,406 (507, - (507,
(1,623) - (1,623 707 - 707
Other comprehensive
income for the year (2,093) 35 (2,058) 490 (2) 48¢
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16. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other components @omprehensive incommclude:

Other components of  Other components of Total other components
comprehensive income comprehensive incom of comprehensive income
attributable to the Group  attributable to non-
controlling interests

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN '000

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

(Loss)/gain on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment (353) 18 - - (353) 18
Remeasurements of defined benefit

pension plans (117 (235) - - 117) (235)
Items that may be reclassified to profi

or loss

Net change in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets:

Gains arising during the year 633 1,113 (119) 101 514 1,214

Less: Reclassification adjustments for
(gains)/losses included in profit or loss

for the current yee (720) - (11) - (731) -
Exchange differences from restating

foreign operations (857) (349) (549) (158) (1,406) (507)
Income tax relating to components of

other comprehensive income 35 (2) - - 35 (2)
Other comprehensive income

for the year (1,379) 545 (679) (57) (2,058) 488
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Plant and Other Assets Total
buildings equipment in progress
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN000 BGN'000 BGNO0O00 BGN'000  BGN'000
Book value
Balance at 1 January 14145  137,35¢ 128,03: 116,121 41,107 32,93t 81,94¢ 36,467 392,54. 322,91!
Additions 6,973 3,176 4,134 2,647 3,608 5,097 25914 65,484 40,629 76,404

Assets in newly acquire

subsidiaries and joint

ventures 33¢ 16 13¢ 18 13z 29 14t - 754 63
Effects of foreign currency

and hyperinflationary

restatements 61 (337) 18 (153) 2) (201) 2) (198) 75 (889)

Disposals (248, (616, (1,405 (1,295 (3,874 (1,995 (761, (338, (6,288 (4,244
Written-off book value of
assets on sale of

subsidiaries - (502) - (544) - (61) - (181) - (1,288)
Allowance for impairment (379, - (74) - 2 - - - (455 -

Transfer to property, plant

and equipment 44,096 2,597 53,194 11,379 2,157 5,312 (99,447) (19,288) - -

Transfer to investme

property - (236) - (171) - (12) - - - (419)
Balance at

31 December 192,298 141,457 184,038 128,032 43,126 41,107 7,795 81,946 427,257 392,542

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 1 Januar 13,89: 1057¢ 67,37¢ 59,68t 19,19¢ 16,31° - - 100,46¢ 86,577
Depreciation charge for tt

year 4,307 3,504 11,491 9,305 4,911 4,740 - - 20,709 17,549
Allowance for impairment 2,291 - 12 - - - - - 2,303 -
Effects of foreign currency

and hyperinflationary

restatements 189 5 195 24 61 (21) - - 445 8

Depreciation written-off (14) a7) (1,261) (1,076) (2,267) (1,779) -
Written-off depreciation of
assets on sale of

(3442) (2,872

subsidiaries - (174) - (559) (7) (61) - - (7) (794)
Balance at
31 December 20,666 13,893 77,816 67,379 21,994 19,196 - - 120,476 100,468

Carrying amount at 31
December 171,63z 127,564 106,222 60,653 21,132 21,911 7,795 81,946 306,781 292,074

Carrying amount at
1 January 127,564 126,784 60,653 56,46€ 21,911 16,621  81,94€ 36,467 292,074  236,33¢

As at 31 December 2013, the tangible fixed asddtseecGroup include: land amounting to BGN 44,281
thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 42,012 thousardipaitdings of carrying amount BGN 127,351
thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 85,552 thousand).

Tangible fixed assets in progress as at 31 Decemdlede:

» advances - BGN 5,290 thousand (31 December 201Rt 8332 thousand);
» supply of equipment — BGN 846 thousand (31 Decerfb&2: BGN 20,271 thousand);
» buildings reconstruction — BGN 588 thousand (31lddawer 2012: BGN 775 thousand);
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» expenses on new buildings construction — BGN 28&ghnd (31December 2012: BGN 56,353
thousand);
« other — BGN 776 thousand (31 December 2012: BGNtRagsand).

Finance lease

The carrying amount of the tangible fixed assetstémvehicles) of the Group obtained under finance
lease as at 31 December 2013 was BGN 5,433 tho@3aridecember 2012: BGN 3,789 thousand).

Operating lease

The Group has leased fixed tangible assets wittyiogr amount of BGN 3,368 thousand as at 31
December 2013 to related parties BGN 1,138 thoysdndaddition, tangible fixed assets at carrying
amount of BGN 844 thousand were leased to thirtgsaas at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:
BGN 492 thousand).

Other data

The following encumbrances were constituted onitdadixed assets of the Group as at 31 December
2013 in relation to received loans (Notes 30 anda35ollows:

* Land and buildings with carrying amount of BGN ZB8housand and BGN 95,246 thousand,
respectively (31 December 2012: respectively, BGN913 thousand and BGN 53,128
thousand);

» Pledge on facilities with carrying amount of BGN98thousand (31 December 2012: BGN
1,214 thousand);

» Pledges on equipment, transportation vehicles diicecequipment — BGN 48,039 thousand
(31 December 2012: BGN 32,150 thousand).

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment toifaialue

As at 31 December 2011, the Company performed anativeview and assessment for price changes
of property, plant and equipment of the Group it assistance of certified appraisers: As a result
this review it made the latest revaluation of propeplant and equipment the results of which are
displayed in the consolidated financial statements.

The following two basic approaches and valuatiothogs were used in these revaluations to measure
the fair value of the different types (groups)ardible fixed assets:

« ‘Market-based approach” through the ‘Market compbea (analogues) method’ — with regard
to land and buildings for which actual market esdstanalogous properties and transactions
with them were observed and basis for comparisos aailable — their adjusted price
determined under the comparative method was aateptéir value;

« 'Assets (expenses)-based approach' through thadMlef amortised recoverable amount' — for
special-purpose buildings for which no actual markgisted, and comparative sales of
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analogous assets — their amortised recoverable rdgmeas accepted as their fair value and
under the hypothesis of their common use in teduichlly-related production business
process (including the term) and taking into actophysical ware, functional and economic
impairment.

Revaluation reserve at the amount of BGN 3,099 gdand was then recognised as a result of the
revaluation net of impairment.

The Group’s management again analyzed the pricegelsaof its key tangible fixed assets, occurred as
at 31 December 2013, and concluded that no conditand grounds were available for a new
revaluation of the assets before the expiry ofthepted usual term. (Note 2.10).

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intellectual property

Goodwill rights Software Other Assets in progre: Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Book value

Balance at 1
January 21,846 21,602 10,249 9,263 5,676 5,181 2,685 1,966 2,559 2,062 43,015 40,074
Additions 318 55 27 184 320 380 1 32 873 1,486 1,539 2,137
Acquired assets in
subsidiaries and joint
ventures - - 3,047 - 400 - 1,044 679 - - 4,491 679
Effects of foreign

currency and

hyperinflationary

restatements (205) 189 (150) 72 - Q) 32 20 - 4) (323) 276
Transfer - - 381 731 2,065 116 - (12) (2,446) (835) - -
Disposals - - (2 (1) (78) - (29) - (77) (150) (186) (151)
Balance at

31 December 21,959 21,846 13,552 10,249 8,383 5,676 3,733 2,685 909 2,559 48,536 43,015
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1

January 8,929 6,821 3,948 2,511 3,109 2,213 649 550 - - 16,635 12,095
Amortisation charge

for the year - - 1,667 1,493 1,001 898 367 141 7 - 3,042 2,532
Allowance for

impairment 14C 2,10¢ - - - - - - - - 14C 2,10¢
Effects of foreign

currency and

hyperinflationary

restatements - - 3 (56) 3 2) 1 (42) 7 - 14 (100)
Amortisation

written-off - - (2) - (31) - - - - - (33) -
Balance at

31 December 9,069 8,929 5,616 3,948 4,082 3,109 1,017 649 14 - 19,798 16,635
Carrying amount at

31 December 12,860 12,91 7,936 6,301 4,301 2,56 2,71¢€ 2,03¢ 89t 2,55¢ 28,73t  26,38(
Carrying amount at

1 January 12,917 14,78 6,301 6,752 2,567 2,96¢ 2,03¢ 1,41¢ 2,55¢ 2,06z  26,38( 27,97¢

The rights on intellectual property include mairgpyoducts of development activities related to
medicinal substances (active ingredients) and dodagns and acquired patents and trademarks.
Within the total intellectual property, owned byetlGroup, the largest share belongs to internally
created trademarks, which have not been capitaiistite consolidated statement of financial positio
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These trademarks grant exceptional rights on tmeesaof pharmaceuticals while those with biggest
relative share in the sales of the Group are: Cammpalgin, Broncholitin, Tabex, Analgin, Tribast
Vicetin, Sydnopharm, Antistenocardin, Spasmalgoaftedsif, Chlofadon, Chlofasolin, Sofafailin,
Sopral, Vasopren, Buscolisin, Nivalin, Marasla\ixigex, Allergosan, Aminalon.

Capitalised trademarks as a result of performednbas combinations are as follows: Probiotic,
Laxomucil, Alfalipoin, Influrex, etc. The patent Ideis for production of dosage forms containing
Ranitidin.

The other intangible assets include mainly the wesieé contracts with suppliers, licences and
distribution network, acquired in business comborat.

Goodwill impairment

For each reporting year, the management of the gspmrforms the necessary procedures for the
mandatory annual test for impairment of goodwitlagnised in the consolidated statement of financial
position on the acquisition of the subsidiariesgawmian Rose Sevtopolis AD, PAO Vitamini, lvanchich

i Sinovi d.o.0., Sopharma Buildings REIT, Mominaeiost AD, Unipharm AD, Briz Itd., Extab
Corporation USA, OOO Tabina, ZAO Interpharm, SOOGititBade, SOOO Brizpharm, OOO
Sopharma Ukraine and the joint-venture OOO Vivddus. For the purpose, it is accepted that each
individual company is in its capacity of a ‘cashngemting unit’. The calculations are made by the
management of the Group and the assistance ofd@peéndent certified appraiser was used. The (pre-
tax) projected cash flows are based on the finafmidgets developed by the management of the
respective companies and of the Group as a whalecdtbvered 3 to 5-year period as well as other
medium-term and long-term plans and intents fordbeelopment and restructuring of the activities
within the Group. The recoverable amount of eadh ¢generating unit is determined on the basiseof th
‘value in use’. The key assumptions used in theutations of recoverable amount of each unit are
within the following ranges:

» growth rate within a three (or five) year periottem -1 % to 20 %;

e growth rate of EBITDA — from 1% to 67%;

» growth after the projected period upon calculatbrerminal value — 0%;
« discount rate (based on WACC) — from 9 % to 30%.

The key assumptions used in the calculations haen lletermined specifically for each goodwill
bearing company, treated as a separate cash-gageurait, and in line with the characteristic faatu
of its operations, the business environment arkd.ris

The tests and judgments of Group’s managementnfipairment of recognised goodwill are made
through the prism of its projections and intentsoethe future economic benefits expected by thau@r
from its subsidiaries including through the usetdir internally created trademarks, commercial and
industrial experience and the generated thereby exeécted for the future volumes of revenue,
ensuring position in the Bulgarian and internatiomaarkets (development and retaining), the
expectations for future sales and restructurintpefactivities, etc.

With regard to this goodwill, the analysis of tlEasonably possible changes in the key assumptions,
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used for the calculation of value in use, showd tha carrying amount of the respective goodwill
would be higher than its recoverable amount maimha. change in the discount rate (increase) withi
the range from 0.2% to 4%; and b. change in EBIT(Bécrease)from 0.5% to 50%.

As a result of the calculations made as at 31 Dbeer2013, no need was identified for impairment of
recognised goodwill for the subsidiary OOO Tabimahe amount of BGN 140 thousand (31 December
2012: goodwill impairment at the total amount of B&,108 thousand was recognised (for the
subsidiary ZAO Interpharm — BGN 669 thousand, OO@bifia — BGN 543 thousand, Momina
Krepost5 AD — BGN 364 thousand, Sopharma BuildiRRESIT — BGN 484 thousand and Extab
Corporation USA — BGN 48 thousand). (Note 11).

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2013 2012
BGN '000 BGN '000

Balance at 1 January 7,11C 6,55k
Additions 3,35¢ -
Capitalised costs 99 -
Disposal 3)

Net loss from fair value adjustment, included iofjtror loss(Note 5) (31) 11€
Effect of restatement (8) 2
Reclassification from property, plant and equipni{didte 17) - 41¢
Net gain from fair value adjustment, included &niis that will not be

reclassified to profit or log@\Note 16) - 18
Balance at 31 December 10,52¢ 7,11C

Investment property represents buildings and the they stand on, differentiated parts of buildifgs
independent use, intended for long-term lease bsidiaries and third parties. By group they are as
follows:

Group of assets 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN '000 BGN '000

Warehouse premises 3,851 3,777
Offices 3,85¢ 1,53¢
Production buildings 2,38z 1,361
Social objects 434 437
Total 10,52¢ 7,11(

There are established encumbrances on investmepeny as at 31 December 2013 — mortgage of
offices — BGN 1,197 thousand (31 December 2012: BG95 thousand) (Note 35).
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Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the groups of investment prapsrare categorised as Level 2 fair values basetbeon
inputs to the valuation technique used.
The investment property measurement to fair vadue¢urring and is due to the application of the fa

value model under IAS 40. It is performed reguladythe end of each reporting period. The fair @alu
is determined with the assistance of independetified appraisers.

The table below shows reconciliation between thenom and closing balances of the fair values of
investment properties measured at Level 2:

Warehouse Offices Production Social Total
premises buildings objects

Opening balance at 1 January 3,773 1,539 1,361 437 7,110
Purchases and capitalised costs 94 2,332 1,032 - 3,458
Disposals - - 3) - 3)
Net change in fair value through (16) 4) (8) 3) (31)
profit or loss — unrealise@Note 5)

Effect of restatement - (8) - - (8)
Closing balance at 31 December 3,851 3,859 2,382 434 10,526

Valuation techniques and significant unobservabpaiis

The table below shows a description of the valuatéhniques, used in measuring the fair valudlof a
groups of Level 2 investment properties as wethasused significant unobservable inputs:
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Groups of assets Valuation approaches and Significant unobservable
(Level 2) techniques inputs
a. Income approach a. Weighted rate of return

Valuation technique:
Method of capitalised rental b. Term to entrance into rental deals
income as application of

i discounted cash flows (main
Warehouse premises valuation technique)

Production buildings b. Cost approach Adjusted prices for construction of

Valuation technique: identical properties and purchase prices

of machinery and equipment, similar to
Method of replacement costs — those attached

depreciated recoverable amount
(supportive valuation technique)

a. Income approach a. Weighted rate of return

Valuation technique: b. Term to entrance into rental deals

Method of capitalised rental
income as application of

Offices discounted cash flows (main
) ) valuation technique)
Social objects b. Market approach Comparability adjustments

Valuation technique:
Market multiples method
(supportive valuation technique)

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2013 an associated company isBSfetzApharmacia, Belarus, with trade in
pharmaceutical products being its main activity.

Acquisition Date of shares
Company % interest cost (cost) acquisition
BGN’'000
BOOO SpetzApharmacia 38 1,033 03.09.2013

The associates of the Group as at 31 December 261 as follows: ODO Alean, Belarus, and ODO
Vestpharm, Belarus, with trade in pharmaceuticatipcts being their main activity.
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Company Acquisition cost Date of share

acquisition
% interest BGN’'000
ODO Alear 38 18t 26.09.201
ODO Vestpharr 38 39¢ 29.10.201
Total 583
The movement of the investments in associateseisepted below:
2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Balance at 1 January 582 -
Acquisition of share 4,50: 58:¢
Transfer to subsidiarigdote 44.1) (4,052) -
Share in the (loss)/profit for the year 14 1)
Effect from recalculations (45)
Balance at 31 December 1,002 582

The share of the Group in the results of the aagexiand its aggregated assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities is as follows:

31.12.2013 Share of Share of the Share of Share of Interest
the assets liabilities revenue profit/(loss)
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 %
BOOO
SpetzApharmacia 450 339 624 14 38

The investment in the associate as at 31 Decemb&B thcludes also the recognised goodwill
amounting to BGN 455 thousand.

31.12.2012 Share o Share of the Share o Share o Interest
the assets liabilities revenue  profit/(loss)
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 %
ODO Alean 398 157 183 4) 38
ODO Vestpharm 548 291 226 3 38

The investment in associates as at 31 December ig0ll@les recognised goodwill at the amount of
BGN 21 thousand for ODO Alean and BGN 74 thousandDDO Vestpharm.
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The carrying amount of the investments by comparasifollows:

Country 31.12.2013 Interest  31.12.2012 Interest
BGN '000 % BGN '000 %
Medica AD Bulgaria 2,53¢ D.21 2,574 10.2C
Doverie Obedinen Holding AD Bulgaria 2,303 14.8¢ 15,036 18.8(
Olainfarm AD Latvia 1,31z 0.77 1078 0.77
Lavena AD Bulgaria 1,27¢ 10.9C 399 8.47
Hydroizomat AD Bulgaria 27C 10.0z 374 9.3€
Elpharma AD Bulgaria 13€ 19.0C 158 19.0C
Elana Agrocredit AD Bulgaria 101 1.95 - -
Sopharma Properties REIT Bulgaria 75 0.2C 234 0.7C
Todorov AD Bulgaria 39 4.5C 33 5.1C
CF Elana Money Market Fund Bulgaria - - 104 0.7€
Krimgaz OAO Ukraine - - 2,734 9.07
OO0 NPK Biotest Belarus - - 491 19.0C
BelAgroMed Belarus - - 92 19.0C
Other 132 118
Total 8,187 23,425

“Other” available-for-sale financial assets ag8atDecember 2013, amounting to BGN 132 thousand
(31 December 2012: BGN 118 thousand), include abeurof minority interests of the Group in the
capital of ten companies (31 December 2012: nimepemies). They are measured and presented in the
consolidated financial statements at acquisitiast.co

The available-for-sale investments measured at&dire as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

31.12.201 31.12.201

Number of  Fair value pel  Fair value as Number of Fair value pel Fair value as

shares heli share per the shares heli share per the

statement ¢ statement ¢

financial financial

positior postion

BGN BGN'00C BGN BGN'00C

Medica AD 1,027,561 2.47 2,539 1,026,969 251 2,574
Doverie Obedinen Holding AD 2,789,345 0.83 2,303 3,521,003 4.27 15,036
Olainfarm AD 108,500 12.10 1,313 108,500 9.94 1,078
Lavena AD 29,062 44.01 1,279 16,959 23.53 399
Hydroizomat AC 299,49¢ 0.9C 27C 280,43 1.3¢ 37z
Elpharma AD 95 1,431.58 136 95 1,663.16 158
Elana Agrocredit Al 100,00t 1.01 101 - - -
Sopharma Properties REIT 30,656 2.46 75 90,870 2.59 235
Todorov AD 152,919 0.25 39 173,469 0.19 33
Maritzatex AC 58,20: - - - - -
CF Elana Money Market Fund - - - 742 139.75 104
Krimgaz OAC - - - 1,335,17 2.0t 2,73¢
00O NPK Biotest* - - - - - 491
ODO BelAgroMed* - - - - - 92
Total 8,055 23,307
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* Due to the specifics of the Belarusian legislatibe proportion of the share in the capital of Be¢arusian companies OOO NPK Biotest and
ODO Belagromed is determined as % from the totaitah and corresponds to the ratio between theevalf the paid-in capital of the
corresponding company and its registered capitaé © this it is not possible to determine fairueaper share of the acquired investments in
these companies as at 31 December 2012

The table below presents Company's available-fierisaestments, which are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis in the consolidated statemefihafcial position:

Fair value hierarchy

Available-for-sale financial investments Fairvalue  (Level 1) (Level 2)  (Level 3)
31.12.2013

BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C

Medica AD 2,539 - - 2,539
Doverie Obedinen Holding AD 2,303 - - 2,303
Olainfarm AD — Latvia 1,313 1,313 - -
Lavena AD 1,279 - 1,279 -
Hydroizomat AD 270 - 270 -
Elpharma AD 136 - - 136
Elana Agrocredit AD 101 101 - -
Sopharma Properties AD 75 - 75 -
Todorov AD 39 39 - -
Total 8,055 1,453 1,624 4,978
Available-for-sale financial investments Fairvalue (Level 1) (Level 2)  (Level 3)
31.12.2012

BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C

Doverie Obedinen Holding AD 15,036 - - 15,036
OAO Krimgaz, Ukraine 2,734 - - 2,734
Medica AD 2,574 - - 2,574
Olainfarm AD — Latvia 1,078 1,078 - -
Lavena AD 399 - 399 -
Hydroizomat AD 374 - 374 -
Sopharma Properties AD 234 - 234 -
Elpharma AD 158 - - 158
CF Elana Money Market Fund 104 104 - -
Todorov AD 33 - 33 -
OO0 NPK Biotest, Belarus 491 - - 491
BelAgroMec, Belaru: 92 - - 92
Total 23,307 1,182 1,040 21,085
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The table below shows reconciliation between thenopy and closing balances of the fair values at
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3:

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Available-for-sale financial investments BGN’000 BGN’000 BGN’000 BGN’000
Balance at 1 January 2012 703 1,090 18,05: 19,84¢
Purchases 104 294 647 1,045
Emissions - 271 2,081 2,352
Sales - (10) (20) (20)
Realised gain/(loss) included in the current prafit loss
for the year in the iterkRinance income — Net gain on
transactions with securities - 1 ) (6)
Unrealised gain/(loss) included in the current iprarfid
loss for the yeafNote 13) - (606) (518) (1,124)
Unrealised gain included in other comprehensivenme
(Note 15) 375 - 839 1,214
Balance at 31 December 2012 1,182 1,040 21,085 23,307
Purchases 109 686 791 1,586
Emissions - 174 - 174
Reclassification to subsidiaries - - (583) (583)
Sales (113) (203) (4,132) (4,448)
Realised gain/(loss) included in the current prafit loss
for the year in the iterRinance costs — Net loss on
transactions with securities 1 (6) (5,721) (5,726)
Transfers to Level 1 - (29) - (29)
Transfers from Level 2 29 - - 29
Unrealised loss included in the current profit &oesb for
the yean(Note 13) - (316) (6,453) (6,769)
Unrealised gain/(loss) included in other comprehens
income(Note 15) 245 278 (9) 514
Balance at 31 December 2013 1,453 1,624 4,978 8,055
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Valuation techniques and significant unobservabpaiis
The table below shows the valuation techniques usadeasuring the fair value as at 31 December

2013 at Level 2 and Level 3 as well as the usetifiignt unobservable inputs:

Available-for-sale Valuation approaches and techniques Significant unobservable inputs
financial

investments

(shares

Level 2 Market comparables approach:

Valuation technique: -
Market multiples method

Level 3 a. Income approach * projected annual revenue growth rate
Valuation technique: * revenue growth rate after the projected period
Discounted cash flows method * projected annual growth rate of expenses

* discount rate (based on WACC)

b. Market approach

Valuation technique:

Market multiples method (supportive
valuation technique)

Quantitative information about fair value measuraisgLevel 3)

The table below presents quantitative informati@garding fair value measurements in which
significant unobservable inputs have been usedglL&v

Valuation Unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)  Relationship between significant
technique unobservable inputs and fair value
measurement — sensitivity to key
assumptions
Discounted cas The estimated fair value would increase
flows (decrease), if:
* projected annual revenue *0 % -3 % * the projected annual revenue growth
growth rate (weighted average 1.5%) rate was higher (lower)
* revenuegrowth rate after tt * the revenue growth rate after the
projected period *2 % projected period was higher (lower)

(weighted average 2 %)
* the projected annual growth rate of
* projected annual growth re expenses was lower (higher)
of expenses *0%
(weighted average 0 %) * the discount rate was lower (higher)

* discount rate (based on
WACC) *8.5%-11.30%
(weighted average 9.9 %)
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis of the fair value of aaale-for-sale financial investments (shares) L&ved
the significant unobservable inputs is based onr¢hsonably possible changes (increase or decrease)
by 0.5% of each of the individual indicators presen

a. projected annual revenue growth rate

b. revenue growth rate after the projected period
c. projected annual growth rate of expenses

d. discount rate (based on WACC)

while accepting that the others remain unchanged.

The effects of the change in the significant unokede inputs on(a) the fair valueof the measured
assets (Level 3), (khe current profit for the yeamnd (c) the equity componeAailable-for-sale
financial assets reserve as at 31 December 28d8presented in the table below:

Significant unobservable inputs Fair value of available-for- Current profit Equity — component

sale financial investments for the year Available-for-sale financial
(shares) (Level 3) assets reserve

Effect in BGN'000 Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

31 December 2013

Projected annual revenue grou 261 (321) 72 (188) 189 (133)

rate

Revenue growth rate after the 403 (359) 252 (233) 151 (126)

projected period

Projected annual growth rate of (1,401) 1,488 (2,379) 1,377 (22) 111

expenses

Discount rate (based on WACC) (536) 482 (399) 329 (137) 153

22. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES

Thenon-current receivables from related partigs at 31 December refer to companies relateddghrou
key managing personnel and include:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN '000 BGN '000
Long-term loans granted to related parties 25,221 748
Receivable under a lo-term rental deposit grant 435 43¢
Total 25,656 1,183
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The terms and conditions of the long-term loansitgato related parties are as follows:

Currency Contracted Maturity Interest % 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
amount

‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
including including
interest interest
EUR 10,637 01.12.2015 5.00% 22,554 1,750 -
EUR 1,278  01.12.2015 5.00% 2,660 160 -
BYR 84,500 30.09.2022 - 7 - -
BGN 1,100 31.12.2014 8.08% - - 748 25
Total 25,221 1,910 748 25

The long-term loans granted to related partiesatesecured by collateral.

The deposit receivable related with a rent undeorecluded rental contract for administrative office

with validity term on 1 August 2022.

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Theother non-current receivablesf the Group as at 31 December include:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Loans granted 467 1,314
Other 118 146
Total 585 1,460

Theloans grantedy the Group as at 31 December 2013 are to tlirtigs, without collateral and with

agreed annual interest from 2% to 8.08% (31 Dece2BE2: from 7 % to 8.08 %).
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24. INVENTORIES

Inventoriesinclude

Goods

Finished products
Materials
Work-in-progres
Sem-finished product
Total

Goodsby type are as follows:

Tablet dosage forms
Ampoule dosage forr
Syrups

Ointments

Drops

Goods in trans

Other

Total

Finished productsexisting at 31 December include:

Tablet dosage forr
Ampoule dosage forms
Syrup:

Other

Total

Materials by type are as follows:

Basic materials
Auxiliary materials
Materials in transit
Technical materials
Spare par

Other

Total

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
64,749 55,012
33,969 38,954
33,897 29,228
4,58¢ 4,574
2,392 3,182
139,596 130,950
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
35,167 26,986
10,44 10,37¢
2,72 2,314
2,072 1,472
1,454 2,177
88¢< 88¢
12,002 10,801
64,749 55,012
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
20,08: 26,14¢
5,081 6,969
2,97( 2,41¢
5,836 3,421
33,969 38,954
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
31,141 25,235
619 484
457 1,909
413 426
374 38¢
893 785
33,897 29,228
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Basic materialsby type are as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Substances (active ingredients) 20,789 15,573
Vials, tubes and ampoules 3,317 3,695
Chemicals 2,224 2,108
Packaging materials 2,013 1,351
PVC and aluminium fo 1,15¢ 1,27¢
Herb: 859 64¢
Other 780 581
Total 31,141 25,235

As at 31 December 2013, there were establishedadpdedges on inventories at the amount of BGN
75,509 thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 88,380 #ml)sas collateral under received by the Group
bank loans and issued bank guarantees (Notes 2hd51).

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivableinclude 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Receivables from clients 189,81¢ 158,12¢
Impairment of uncollectable receivables (2,758) (3,345)
Receivables from clients, net 187,06( 154,78«
Advances to supplie 4.12¢ 5,81¢
Impairment of advances (54) (42)
Advances granted, net 4,072 5,77¢
Total 191,13: 160,55¢

Thereceivables from clientare interest-free and are mainly denominated iNB@Gd EUR.

Usually the Group companies negotiate with thaents payment term within the range of 30 to 180
days for receivables under sales unless there et&rndned specific conditions for maturity for
particular clients or in the cases where new markatd products are developed and new trade
counterparts are attracted.

The Group has set a common credit period of 188 @taywhich no interest is charged to clients. Any
delay after this period is regarded by the Groupramdicator for impairment. The management of the
Group companies assess collectability by analydimg exposure of the particular client, the
opportunities for settlement (of the client andbtigh the collateral) and make a decision on theuatno
the recognition and charging of the respective impent.
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Theage structureof non-matured (regular) trade receivables iHe\s:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

up to 30 days 53,775 38,510
from 31 to 90 days 52,377 47,308
from 91 to 180 days 18,419 23,154
from 181 to 365 days 6,172 3,401

from 1 to 2 yeal 3,82« 891

over 2 yeat 63t -
Total 135,202 113,264

Theage structureof past due but not impaired trade receivables igllows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

from 31 to 90 day 9,40¢ 11,48t
from 91 to 180 days 4,287 3,507
from 181 to 365 days 11,006 7,131
from 1 to 2 years 2,520 3,102
over 2 years 365 1,291
Total 27,587 26,516

With regard to the past due but not impaired redaas, there are usually already achieved or pgndin
agreements for interest-bearing rescheduling ofrgsiys for each specific client (including penalty

interest for delay).

Theage structureof past due impaired trade receivables is asvaiio

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
from 31 to 90 days 822 390
from 91 to 180 days 3,343 1,788
from 181 to 365 days 10,042 5,041
from 1 to 2 years 9,464 7,652
over 2 yeat 3,358 3,478
Allowance for impairment (2,758) (3,345)
Total 24,271 15,004

The larger part of the past due impaired receialddrom state hospitals and interest is charget a
invoiced thereon. For this reason, the managenfaiieoGroup made an assessment that only a partial

impairment was necessary for the above receivables.
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As at 31 December 2013, there were establishedadg#edges on trade receivables at the amount of
BGN 88,700 thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 32,66Asand) as collateral under received by the

Group bank loans and issued bank guarantees (R0{&5 and 41).

Movement of the allowance for impairment

2013 2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,345 3,296
Impairment amount 1,368 274
Amounts written-off as uncollectable receivables (389) (29)
Reversed impairment (1,118) (156)
Transfer to impairment of legal clairfidote 27) (448) (30)
Effect of restatement - (10)
Balance at the end of the year 2,758 3,345

The advances grantedo suppliers are regular and are mainly denomihateBGN and EUR and are

for the purchase of:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Service 1,938 419
Raw materials and consumal 1,259 1,932
Goods 899 3,368
Othel 30 97
Allowance for inpairmen (54) (42)
Total 4,072 5,774

26. RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES

Receivables from related partiésclude 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000

Receivables from companies related through key giaga 20411 39,081

personne

Receivables from companies under a common indiaairo 8,352 12,359
Receivables from main shareholding companies - 8,531
Total 28,763 60,871
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Thereceivables from related partidsy type are allows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Trade loans granted 25,359 56,553
Receivables on sales of finished products and malter 3,404 4,318
Total 28,763 60,871

Trade loans granted to related partiéy type of related party are as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Companies related through key managing pers 17,72¢ 37,15¢
Companies under a common indirect control 7,633 10,866
Main shareholding compan - 8,531
Total 25,359 56,553
Thegranted loansare as follows:
Currency Contracted Maturity Interest 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
amount
‘000 % BGN '00C BGN'00C  BGN '00C BGN '00C
including including
interes interes
to companies related through key managing personnel
EUR 10,455  31.12.2014 4.50% 11,34¢ 16 12,257 62
BGN 27,050 31.08.2014 8.08% 5,662 14 9,23( -
BGN 1,300 31.12.2014 8.08% 551 50 51C 9
BGN 190 31.12.2014 8.08% 167 - 227 37
BGN 18,478 31.12.2013 8.30% - - 14,93 324
to companies under a common indirect control
EUR 7,661 31.12.2014 4.50% 1,477 - 10,010 -
BGN 120 10.02.2014 8.08% 156 36 146 26
BGN 1,375 31.12.2013 8.08% - - 710 -
to main shareholding companies
EUR 4,035 31.12.2013 4.80% - - 8,170 278
BGN 300 31.12.2013 8.08% - - 361 61
25,359 116 56,553 797

Thereceivables on sales of finished products and migsrare interest-free and denominated in BGN
and in EUR.

The Group companies usually negotiate payment téebseen 90 and 180 days for receivables on
sales of finished products and up to 30 days foeivables on sales of materials (incl. substances —
active ingredients).
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The Group has set a maximum credit period of up&® days to sales counterparts — related parties.
Any delay after this period is regarded by the @raa an indicator for impairment. The management of
the Group companies assess collectability by amajythe specific receivables and the position ef th
debtor company as well as the circumstances fodelesy and the opportunities for repayment and afte
that, they take a decision on whether impairmeatl 4fe recognised and charged on individual basis
and at what amount.

Theage structureof non-matured (regular) trade receivables frolateel parties is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

up to 30 day 1,561 50¢€
from 31 to 90 days 742 373
from 91 to 180 day 112 2,82¢
from 181 to 365 da 172 -
Total 2,587 3,703

Theage structureof past due but not impaired trade receivablesm frelated parties is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

from 31 to 90 days 145 275
from 91 to 180 days 92 -

from 181 to 365 da 247 2
Total 484 277
Theage structureof past due impaired receivables from relatedgmis as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

over 1 yee 51¢ 816

Allowance for impairmet (18€) (478
333 338

Movement of the allowance for impairment

2013 2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

Balance at 1 January 478 399
Impairment amoul 186 79
Reversed impairment (225) -
Impairment written-off as uncollectable receivables (253) -
Balance at 31 December 186 478
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27. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables and prepaymertfthe Group include:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Court and awarded receivables 6,023 13,06
Impairment of court receivables (5,226) (2,736)
Court and awarded receivables, 797 10,331
Taxes refundab 5,636 7,824
Prepayments 1,669 1,51¢
Loans granted to third parties 1,242 482
Guarantees under litigatio(ote 41) 733 84¢€
Receivables on deposits placed as guare 705 664
Amounts granted to an investment intermediary 327 652
Othel 530 203
Total 11,639 22,521

The court and awarded receivables originate mdinkelation to sales to state hospitals. Repayment
schedules have been agreed or in a process ofnagmedor most of them. For this reason, the
management of the Group has made an assessmeonnthat partial impairment is necessary for the
above receivables.

Taxes refundablenclude: 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Excise dutie 4,11( 3,87¢
VAT 861 2,30¢
Income tax 630 1,527
Withholding taxes 35 110
Total 5,636 7,824
Prepaymentsnclude: 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Insurance 603 587
Subscriptions 364 544
Advertising 287 14¢
Rentals 88 111
Licence and patent fees 49 23
Vouchers 33 8
Other 245 98
Total 1,669 1,519
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The loans granted to third parties amounted to BIGNI2 thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 482
thousand) and were granted to nine entities (20ih& entities) — counterparts for working capifdie
annual interest agreed for these loans for 2013beageen 2 % and 8.08 % (2012: 6% and 8.08%).

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31.12.2013  31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Cash at current bank accot 20,819 11,847
Short-term deposits 3,875 2,718
Cash in hand 1,870 1,129
Short-term blocked funds 65 73
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statentei cash flows 26,629 15,767
Blocked cash under litigatis 527 -
Cash and cash equivalents presented in the consaieéd statement 27156 15.767

of financial position

The available cash and cash equivalents of the g5ama mainly denominated in BGN,EUR and in
BYR (31 December 2012: BGN and EUR).

The average level of the annual interest on cumeobunts in BGN and foreign currency is within the
range from 0.01% to 0.5% (2012: from 0.10% to 0.1 E¥d that on deposit accounts in BGN and
foreign currency is mainly within the range fron3% to 5.25% (2012: from 0.43 % to 5.5 %).

The short-term blocked funds as at 31 December 20d@unting to BGN 65 thousand (31 December
2012: BGN 73 thousand) represent mainly performagegantees.

With regard to the current accounts in foreign encies there is an active distraint levied under a
litigation at the amount of BGN 527 thousand (USI2 3housand) (31 December 2012: notiédte
41).

29. EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2013, the registered share tapiBOPHARMA AD amounted to BGN 132,000
thousand distributed in 132,000,000 shares of naiwilue BGN 1 each.

The treasury sharesvere 5,675,342 at the amount of BGN 18,995 thoug&@idDecember 2012:
3,853,735 at the amount of BGN 13,594 thousandjedbaon a decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders of 23 June 2010.

Thestatutory reserveamounting to BGN 30,051 thousand (31 December 2BGN 25,934 thousand)
were set aside from allocation of profit of thegrarcompany and included all amounts for the Reserv
Fund.
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Therevaluation reserve — for property, plant and eqoipnt amounting to BGN 24,657 thousand (31
December 2012: BGN 26,395 thousand) was set asidethe positive difference between the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment of the @roompanies and their fair values at the datekeof t
respective regular revaluation. The effect of def@rtaxes on the revaluation reserve is statedttire
through other components of comprehensive incomthéoyear.

Available-for-sale financial assets resenamounting to BGN 961 thousand — a positive fig(B&
December 2012: BGN 1,048 thousand — a positivardijgwas set aside from the effects of subsequent
measurement of available-for-sale investments iloviaue (including the consolidated share of the
change in this reserve in associates on their tialuander the equity method).

The Translation of foreign operations reservamounting to BGN 4,661 thousand — a negative éigur
(31 December 2012: BGN 3,804 thousand — a negfitjuee) was set aside from exchange differences
arising as a result of translation of the curreimcthe financial statements of foreign companieth®
presentation currency of the Group.

The Retained Earnings reservéncludes also the component 'other reserves', whimfttains the
amounts distributed from profits of the Group comipa generated in prior years, as well as a
component 'accumulated profits/losses'.

Retained earningsamounting to BGN 194,585 thousand at 31 Decenkmlecember 2012: BGN
177,617 thousand), include also recognised accuetulactuarial loss at the amount of BGN 975
thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 858 thousand)edstapon remeasurements of defined benefit
pension plans in relation with the amendment to 18 & mployee Benefits.

Basic earnings per share

2013 2012
Weighted average number of shi 127,148,63 128,55760¢
Net profit for the year, attributable to
the equity holders of the par (BGN’'000) 29,24 35,19¢
Basic earnings per share (BGN) 0.23 0.27
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30. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

Contractec Maturity 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
loan amount Noncurrent~ ont portion Total Non-current ~ \ont portion Total
portion portion
‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Credit lines and working capital loans
EUR 1,452 31.12.2017 1,622 582 2,204 2,188 614 2,802
BGN 4,25 16.04.2023 1,342 201 1,543 - - -
EUR 450 31.12.2017 514 174 688 690 191 881
EUR 113 30.11.2015 62 68 130 130 74 204
EUR 500 07.04.2014 - 301 301 301 677 978
EUR 300 28.06.2014 - - - - 303 303
Investmen-purpose loans
EUR 32,000 15.04.2021 48,723 3,822 52,545 51,779 5,888 57,667
EUR 2,000 30.06.2018 3,341 566 3,907 - - -
EUR 1,800 25.07.2014 - 543 543 542 960 1,502
EUR 1,617 30.01.2015 40 479 519 519 479 998
EUR 800 09.12.2015 348 347 695 695 348 1,043
EUR 1,675 30.06.2013 - - - - 25 25
Total 55,992 7,083 63,075 56,844 9,559 66,403

The Group has gradually established a policy faruah re-negotiation of the terms and conditions of
initially agreed long-term credit lines, includingaturity terms. Starting from the date of re-neafiin,
the extended credit lines are presented as shantbiank loangNote 34)

The bank loans received in Euro are mainly agreéedterest rate based on EURIBOR plus a mark-up
of 5 points (2012: EURIBOR plus a mark-up of 5 gejn

Investment-purpose loans are intended for purcbbgible fixed assets and expanding of actisitie
The following collateral has been established uota of the creditor banks:

* Real estate mortgag@dote 17);

* Special pledges on:
- machinery and equipme(itiote 17);
- raw materials, consumables and finished prodi\idse 24)
- trade receivable@\ote 25).

As at 31 December 2013, there were establishedaspdedges on receivables from related parties
subject to consolidation and elimination for thegmse of the consolidation financial statementsat
amount of BGN 1,481 thousand (31 December 2012: B(@&1 thousand) as collateral under received
by the Group bank loans and issued bank guarafitetss 30, 35 and 41)
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The total change ideferred tax assets and liabilitiesf the Group for the respective financial yeaass
follows:

2013 2012
BGN'O0O0 BGN'000

Balance at 1 Januan (3,255) (4,822)
Acquired on purchase of a subsidiary (812 (70)
Recognised in profit or loss for the year 2,18¢ 1,32z
Recognised in other components of comprehensiv@ariac 35 2)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary - 29¢
Translation of foreign operations reserve 223 18
Balance at 31 December (1,620) (3,255)

On recognising deferred tax assets, the probalifityt reversal of the individual differences and th
abilities of the Group companies to generate defiictaxable profit in the future, have been takea
account (Note 2.33.2).

Deferred tax assets for the following temporaryedénces have not been recognised:

31.12.2013 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
temporan Tax temporan Tax
difference difference

Tax loss carried forwa 6,251 811 1057¢& 1,957
Impairment of assets 13,316 1,332 13,361 1,856
Other 314 31 374 37

19,881 2,174 24,310 3,850

The change in the balance déferred tax assetfor 2013 by items of temporary differences is as
follows:

Deferred tax assets (by Balance at:  Acquired or Recognise Recognisedi Derecognised o Translationof Balance at 3:

temporary differences) January 2013 purchase of i  in profit or other disposal of i foreign Decembe
subsidiary loss for the comprehensiv subsidiary operations 2013
year income reserve
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Intangible assets 200 - 4) - - 1 197
Available-for-sale

investments 199 - 51 - - (7) 243

Inventories 3,359 - 794 - - 47 4,200

Trade receivables 932 - 544 - - - 1,476
Retirement benefit

obligations to personnel 492 - 207 - - 3) 696

Other current liabilities 67 (2) 208 - - 15 288

Total 5,249 (2) 1,800 - - 53 7,100
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The change in the balance ddferred tax liabilitiesfor 2013 by items of temporary differences is as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities (by
temporary differences)

Property, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets acquired
in business combinatio

Balance at: Acquired or Recognisedi Recognisedi Derecognised o Translationof Balance at 3.
January purchase of i  profit or loss other disposal of foreign Decembe
2013 subsidiary  for the year comprehensiv subsidiary operations 2013
income reserve

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
(7,650) - 308 35 - 61 (7,246)
(854 (810 81 - - 10¢ (1,474
(8,504) (810) 388 35 - 17C (8,720)

Total

The change in the balance déferred tax assetfor 2012 by items of temporary differences is as

follows:

Deferred tax assets Balance a Acquiredon Recognisedi Recognised i Derecognise  Translation of Balance a
(by temporary differences) 1 January purchase of i  profit or loss other on disposal of . foreign 31 Decembe
2012 subsidiary ~ for the year comprehensiv subsidiary operation: 2012
income reserve
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Intangible assets 117 - 61 - - 22 20¢
Available-for-sale
investment 98 53 48 - - - 199
Inventorie: 2,771 - 642 - - (54) 3,35¢
Trade receivables 725 - 207 - - - 932
Retirement benefit
obligations to personr 465 - 70 - - (43) 492
Other current liabilities 69 - - - (2) - 67
Total 4,24¢ 53 1,02¢ - (2) (75) 5,24¢

The change in the balance ddferred tax liabilitiesfor 2012 by items of temporary differences is as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities
(by temporary differences)

Property, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets acquired
business combinatio

Total

Balancea  Acquired or Recognise Recognisedi Derecognise Translation of Balance a
purchase of i in profit or other on disposal @ foreign

1 January subsidiary loss for the comprehensiv  a subsidiary operatons 31 Decembe
2012 year e income reserve 2012

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
(8,129) - 12¢ ) 301 51 (7,650)
(938 (123 165 8 - 34 (854
(9,067) (123) 294 6 301 85 (8,504)
a0
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The long-term employee benefits as at 31 Decenniotrde:

2013 2012
BGN '000 BGN '000

Long-term retirement benefit obligations 3,412 2,614
Long-term benefit obligations for tantieme 14E -
Total 3,557 2,614

Long-term retirement benefit obligations

The long-term payables to personnel include thegorevalue of the obligation of the Group companies
operating mainly irBulgaria, Ukraine and Serbjao pay indemnities to the hired personnel atdie
of the statement of financial position on cominggé for retirement.

In accordance with the Labour CodeBulgariaeach employee is entitled to indemnity on retinetae
the amount of two gross monthly salaries, and ibhehe has worked for more than 10 years for the
same employer — six gross monthly salaries atitine of retiremen{Note 2.24).

The obligations of the employer to the personnaletinement for the companies abroad are as follows
» Serbia—the employer is obliged to pay 3 average saarie

* Ukraine — the employer is obliged to pay between BGN 28 B&N 50 depending on the
length of service as well as social pensions, whieh company accrues after employees’
retirement due to specific work conditions;

« The Russian Federation, Latvia and Belaruthe employer has no legal obligation to persbnne
upon retirement;

e Poland, USA and United Kingdorm the Group has no hired personnel and therefuoe,
obligation.

For the purpose of establishing the amount of tlebsigations to personnel, the Group companies have
assigned an actuarial valuation by using the sesvid a certified actuary.

Movements in the present value of retirement beoefigations to personnel were as follows:

2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN '000

Present value of the obligation at 1 January 2,614 2,438
Current service cost for the year 834 267
Interest cost for the year 139 118
Payments made in the y (296 (434
Effect of restatement - (20)
Remeasurement gains or losses for the year, imgudi 121 23k
Actuarial losses arising from changes in finan@ssumptions 80 166
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demogragssumptior 7 -
Actuarial losses arising from experience adjustrs 34 69
Present value of the obligation at 31 December 3,412 2,614
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The amounts of long-term retirement benefits ofspenel accrued in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:

2013 2012

BGN'000 BGN '000
Current service cost 83¢ 267
Interest cost 13¢ 11€
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profitrdoss
(Note 8) 977 38E
Remeasurement gains or losses on the retiremeefitebligations,
including:
Actuarial losses arising from changes in finan@asumptior 72 16€
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demogragssumptior 7 -
Actuarial losses arising from experience adjustrs 38 69
Components of defined benefit plan costs recogniséu other
comprehensive incomégNote 16) 117 23E
Total 1,09« 62C

The following actuarial assumptions were used loutating the present value of the liabilities the
companies in Bulgaria as at 31 December 2013:

The discount factor is calculated by using 4 % ahimterest rate as basis (2012: 4.5 %). The
assumption is based on yield data for long-termegawent securities with 10-year maturity;

The assumption for the future level of the salaisdsased on the information provided by the
Company’s management and amounts to 5 % annualttyroempared to the prior reporting
period (2012: 5 %);

Mortality rate — in accordance with the table isbby the National Statistics Institute for the
total mortality rate of the population in Bulgafiar the period 2010 - 2012 (2012: 2009 -
2011);

Staff turnover rate — from 0 % to 16 % for the fivge groups formed (2012: from 0% to 16
%).

This defined benefit plan exposes the Group congsatai the following risks: investment risk, intdres
risk, longevity risk and salary growth related ridkhe management of the parent defines them as

follows:

investment risk — as far as this is unfunded ptha, Group companies should monitor and
balance currently the forthcoming payments undewith the ensuring of sufficient cash
resources. The historical experience and thelilialsitructure show that the annual resource
required is not material compared to the commorayntained liquid funds;

interest risk — any increase in the yield of goweent securities with similar term will increase
the plan liability;

longevity risk — the present value of the retiretrgmefit liability is calculated by reference to
the best estimate and updated information aboutntirgality of plan participants. An increase
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in life expectancy would result in a possible imse in the liability. A relative stability of this
indicator has been observed in the recent yeads; an

- salary growth related risk — the present valuehefretirement benefit liability is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the future iserda plan participants' salaries. Such an
increase would increase the plan liability.

The sensitivity analysis of the main actuarial agstions is based on the reasonably possible changes
of these assumptions at the end of the reportimggeassuming that all other assumptions are held
constant.

The effects of the change (increase or decreasgydbgf salary growth, discount rate and staff tuero
rateon the amount of the stated current service casfraarest cost for 2013 and respectively, on the

present value of the obligation for payment of wedi retirement benefits, are assessed as follows:

Effects of changes in the basic assumptions oartt@int of stated expenses for 2013:

Increase Decrease
BGN '000 BGN '000
Change in salary growth 37 (33)
Change in discount re (16) 21
Change in staff turnover rate (26) 25

Effects of changes in the basic assumptions oratheunt of the stated liability as at 31 December
2013:

Increase Decrease

BGN '000 BGN '000
Change in salary grow 230 (198)
Change in discount rate (173) 200
Change in staff turnover rate (148) 158

The weighted average duration of the defined bieobligation to personnel is within the range b€ 3.2
years.

The expected indemnity payments upon retiremergnthe defined benefit plan for the following fiyears
are as follows:

Forecasted payments Total

BGN '000
Payments in 20! 75k
Paymentsn 201¢ 30¢€
Payments in 201 38¢
Payments in 201 404
Payments in 20! 40¢&
Total 2,261
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33. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

As at 31 December, the finance lease liabilities ander revocable contracts for motor vehicles
acquisition. They are presented net of the intehestin the future and are as follows:

Term

Up to one yeafNote 40)
Over one ye:
Total

The minimum lease payments under finance leaséusras follows:

Term

Up to one yes
From one to three ye:

Future finance costs under finance leases
Total

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
700 1,011

2,38: 2,50¢
3,082 3,520
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
797 1,512

3,13 3,583
3,934 5,095
(852) (1,575)
3,082 3,520

The lease payments due within the next 12 monthspeesented in the consolidated statement of

financial position as ‘other current liabilitie@lote 40)

34. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The government grants to Group companies as ae8&rmber include:

Government grants, non-current portion
Government grants, current porti@ote 40)

Total

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000

5,612 2,567

667 463

6,279 3,030

The government grants received as at 31 Decemédo &ne following Group companies:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Sopharma AD 3,712 -
Unipharm AD 1,690 2,024
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD 850 970
Sopharma Trading A 27 36
Total 6,279 3,030
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The government grants are received by the Group paaies under European Operational
Programmesmainly in relation to the acquisitiomafchinery and equipme(itiote 17 and Note 41)

The current portion of the grants, amounting to B&®Y thousand (31 December 2012: BGN 463
thousand), will be recognised as current income dle following 12 months from the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position anpresented as 'other current liabilitigdote 40)

35. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

The short-term bank loansf the Groupas at 31 December are as follows:

Currency Contracted amount Maturity 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Bank loans (overdrafts)
EUR 20,000 31.05.2014 38,52: 39,091
EUR 27,382 31.08.2014 24,51¢ 3,359
EUR 19,529 30.06.2014 19,52¢ 19,55¢
EUR 7,000 23.03.2015 13,691 -
EUR 10,757 25.04.2014 10,757 -
BGN 10,000 30.06.2014 10,00z 10,00z
BGN 10,000 30.06.2014 9,98( -
BGN 5,000 31.05.2014 9,80¢ 9,785
EUR 12,500 17.02.2014 8,472 24,384
BGN 5,000 31.05.2014 5,07z -
EUR 5,867 25.04.2014 4,87¢ 5,859
EUR 2,108 28.08.2014 4,19z -
EUR 4,009 30.08.2014 3,94 2,252
USD 600 08.06.2014 727 -
EUR 500 15.09.2014 677 -
USD 490 22.12.2014 44¢ -
UsD 250 21.01.2014 252 -
BGN 500 20.09.2014 20€ 285
UsD 4,000 01.05.2013 - 5,93€
EUR 1,968 01.05.2013 - 3,632
EUR 3,000 28.09.2013 - 2,858
165,62¢ 127,00z
Credit lines
EUR 8,434 30.06.2014 15,88¢ 15,90¢
BGN 18,000 30.08.2014 13,041 15,02¢
BGN 15,000 31.01.2014 7,33¢ 19772
EUR 5,000 31.08.2014 6,62¢ 9,772
EUR 129 30.06.2014 12¢ 129
EUR 3,000 25.08.2013 - 5,863
EUR 2,500 20.11.2013 - 4,851
EUR 2,500 06.09.2013 - 3,865
EUR 2,500 31.08.2013 - 1,803
43,017 76,992
Total 208,64: 203,99¢
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The bank loans obtained in Euro are contractedtatdst rate determined on the basis of EURIBOR
plus a mark-up of up to 3.5% or EONIA plus a mapkef up to 2.1%, loans in BGN —SOFIBOR
plus a mark-up of up to 3.75% and in USD — LIBORsph mark-up of up to 3.25%, floating or fixed
9.50% and in UAH — 5.446% (2012: EURIBOR plus a kagp of up to 4.09% , loans in BGN —
monthly SOFIBOR plus a mark-up of up to 3.75%, iBJ- LIBOR plus a mark-up of up to 3.85%
and in UAH — none). Loans are intended for provgdivorking capital.

The bank loans which are due to 25.04.2014 have bemegotiated for a further one year while
maintaining the terms of the contract except feahange in interest which becomes EURIBOR plus
2.8%.

The following special pledges have been establisizsecbllateral for the above loans in favour of the
creditor banks:

- machinery and equipme(itiote 17);

- raw materials, consumables and finished prodihtse 24);

- trade receivable@\ote 25).
As at 31 December 2013, there were establishedaspgledges on receivables from related parties
subject to consolidation and elimination for thegmse of the consolidation financial statementhat
amount of BGN 16,229 thousand (31 December 2012N BI®,500 thousand) as collateral under
received by the Group bank loans and issued baatagteegNotes 30, 35 and 41)

36. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payableinclude: 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Payables to suppliers 60,515 53,760
Advances from clients 1,197 1,482
Total 61,712 55,242
Thepayables to supplienefer to: 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Suppliers outside Bulgaria 39,501 38,988
Suppliers from Bulgar 21,014 14,772
Total 60,515 53,760

The payables to suppliers are regular, interestdrel refer to supplies of materials, goods andcses.
The average credit period for which interest isusatally charged for trade payables is up to 188.da

The payables to suppliers are denominated as fsllow
-in EUR — BGN 29,685 thousand (31 December 2012NEB2,907 thousand);
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-in BGN: BGN 20,978 thousand (31 December 2012NBi@&,499 thousand);

-in USD: BGN 776 thousand (31 December 2012: BGM 1 thousand);

-in BYR: BGN 7,250 thousand (31 December 2012: B%3V7 thousand);

- in other foreign currency: BGN 1,836 thousand [&tember 2012: BGN 1,510 thousand).

37. PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES

Thepayables to related partieefer to:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Payables to companies related through key manggirspnne 3,013 1,273
Payables to companies under a common control 793 250
Payables to main shareholding companies 22 19
Payables to other related par - 18
Total 3,828 1,560

Thepayables to related partidsy type are as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000
Payables for supplies of goods and materials 3,828 1,501
Other - 59
Total 3,828 1,560

The payables to related parties are regular, deraied in BGN, interest-free and are not additignall
secured through a special pledge or guaranteesb@thup.

38. PAYABLES TO PERSONNEL AND FOR SOCIAL SECURITY

Payables to personnel and for social secuiitglude:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

Payables to personnel, includi 5,356 5,366
current wages and salaries 2,536 2,478
tantieme 1,537 1,627
accruals on unused compensated leaves 1,283 1,261
Payables for social security/health insuranceuitiol: 1,401 1,258
current payables for social security/health insurarcontributions 1,216 1,071
accruals on unused compensated leaves 185 187
Total 6,757 6,624
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39. TAX PAYABLES

Tax payablesnclude:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
VAT 2,060 1,603
Income taxes 1,531 397
Withholding taxes 406 14
Individual income taxes payal 374 367
Other 39 27
Total 4,410 2,408

By the date of issue of these consolidated findisté@ements the following inspections and auditgeh
been performed in the Group companies:

Company Full scope tax VAT inspection Inspection under
audit the social security
legislation

Sopharma AD 31.12.2011 30.11.2011 30.09.2013
Sopharma Trading AD 31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2004
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD 31.12.2009 31.01.2010 31.12.2008
Biopharm Engineering AD 31.12.2009 31.10.2010 29.02.2008
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2005 31.10.2006 31.10.2006
Pharmalogistica AD 31.12.2005 31.03.2007 HSIMa
Sopharma Buildings REIT none 30.06.2013 none
Electroncommerce EOOD 31.12.2005 30.04.2006 none
Unipharm AD 31.12.2005 30.04.2006 31.08.2013
Ivanchich i Sinovi d.o.o. none 31.12.2012 none
PAO Vitamini 30.06.2010 14.09.2011 01.04.2012
Briz Itd. 31.12.2010 30.06.2013 31.12.2013
SOOO Brititrade 31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2011
00O Tabina 31.12.2010 31.12.2010 31.12.2006
ZAO Interpharm 31.10.2007 31.10.2007 30.06.2006
ODO Alean 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 none
OO0 Vivaton Plus 29.02.2012 29.02.2012 29.02.2012
SOOO Brizpharm 31.12.2012 31.12.2012 none
00O Med-dent 31.12.2010 31.12.2010 31.12.2007
ODO Vestpharm 30.04.2005 30.04.2005 31.03.2004
OO0O NPK Biotest 31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.03.2007
ODO BelAgroMed 28.02.2003 28.02.2003 30.05.2005
The companies Sopharma Poland Z.0.0. — in ligwdégfoland, Sopharma Warsaw SP.

Z.0.0.,Poland, OOO Sopharma Ukraine, Ukraine, Ext@brporation USA, Extab Pharma
Limited,United Kingdom, Phyto Palauzovo AD,Bulgat@OO Farmacevt Plus, Belarus aBdOO
SpetzApharmacia, Belarus, have not been subjetaxdnspections or audits related to the social
security legislation.
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Tax audit of the companies in Bulgaria is perforrmgthin a 5-year period after the end of the year
when the tax return for the respective liabilitysHeeen submitted. The tax audit confirms finalky thx
liability of the respective company-tax liable pmrsexcept in the cases explicitly stated by law.

For the companies outside Bulgaria a tax auditeégfgpmed as follows: in Ukraine, the Russian
Federation, Latvia and Belarus — within a termlo&é years, in Poland — within a term of five years
Serbia — within a term of ten years and in Lithaaniwithin a term of five years.

40. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilitiesinclude: 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Awarded amounts under litigations 1,380 1,339
Liabilities under sold rights from shares is 941 882
Finance lease liabilitig@Note 33) 700 1,011
Trade loans received from third parties 670 -
Government grantéNote 34) 667 463
Dividends payable 569 539
Deductions from work salaries 222 219
Othel 186 137
Total 5,335 4,590

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigations

Sopharma AD

In 2012, the claim of Sopharma AD against a clientelation with unpaid supplies of goods at the

amount of EUR 1,034 thousand (BGN 2,022 thousarad) satisfied by a ruling dated 23 October 2012
of the Court of Arbitration in Paris.

In 2013 the Court of Arbitration in Paris entitl&@bpharma AD to file a complementary claim as
follows:

» to compensate the loss of business suffered asu#t of a harm on Company's image — at the
amount of EUR 1,240 thousand (BGN 2,425 thousand);

e to compensate court and other expenses at the anodudSD 75 thousand (BGN 106
thousand) and EUR 153 thousand (BGN 298 thousand).
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Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

According to a ruling, dated 8 November 2012, a&f #ppellate Court in Sofia (ACS) as an appeal
instance, the Company was ordered to pay lialsliteea foreign supplier. The principal, interestl an
expenditures at the amount of USD 739 thousand BBl 28 thousand (BGN 1,077 thousand),
including the initial payable under the supply, egeognised in full in company's statement of fiiah
position(Note40). In 2012, additional expenses on interest, pgrsaitnd litigation expenditures at the
total amount of BGN 481 thousand were charged.

At the date of issue of these financial statemeratssation appeals were lodged to the Supreme Gburt
Cassation (SCC) and a guarantee at the amount Nf B3 thousand (USD 389 thousand) was paid to
the SCC account without the interest and experafitfor stopping the execution of the ACS ruling.

By an order of 11 January 2013 the SCC ruled ti@trhplementation of the appellate ruling of ACS of
8 November 2012 shall be stopped.

Biopharm Engineering AD

In 2010, the company was a subject of full-scogeatait, including under the application of VATArfo
periods from 1 February 2007 to 31 October 201Gh#issued tax assessment notice, dated 23 June
2011, the tax authorities assessed tax liabilthethe state budget at the amount of BGN 282 thwlisa
(principal and interest) under the VATA for previoueporting periods the financial result of the
company under the Corporate Income Tax Act (ClTak)drior years was transformed.

By Decision No 394/19.02.2013 the Administrativeu@dn Burgas rejected the additional liabilities
under VATA assessed to the companyand the declsenbeen accepted as final in favour of the
company.

The company appealed the results before the Supdsaneinistrative Court which on its behalf
repealed the decision of the Administrative ConrBurgas and returned the case to the first-instanc
court for a new hearing.The Administrative CourBitrgas started case No 2947 / 2013 and ordered an
accounting expert examination. The hearing undectse is scheduled for 10 June 2014.

The management of the company believes that theuatsioby which the prior-years financial result
under CITA has been increased, are not due andftiner no possible litigation provisions have been
included.

Issued and granted guarantees

Sopharma AD

The company is a co-debtor under received banksl@em a guarantor of the following companies
outside the Group before banks:
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Maturity Currency Amount Status of the

debt
Original 31.12.2013

currency BGN'000 BGN'000

Sopharma Properties REIT 29.12.2020 EUR 30,000 58,675 48,896
Energoinvestment AD 28.08.2014 BGN 2,018 2,018 518
Veta Pharma AD 19.11.2014 BGN 1,000 1,000 503
Mineralcommerce AD 20.09.2017 EUR 100 196 147
Mineralcommerce AD 20.12.2015 EUR 50 98 86
Total 50,150

Sopharma Trading AD

The bank guarantees issued for the Company amo@®&N 9,291 thousand (31 December 2012: BGN
7,382 thousand) and are to guarantee paymentppdiens of goods, for good performance — ensuring
future deliveries of pharmaceutical and medicaldpmts to hospitals under concluded contracts,
customs office guarantees and tender participation.

The bank guarantees have been issued by:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

BGN '000 BGN '000
Raiffeisenbank (Bulgaria) EAD 3,241 2,617
SG Expressbhank AD 3,187 3,746
ING Bank 2,812 -
BNP Paribas — Bulgaria Branch 51 1,019
Total 9,291 7,382

The collateral for issued bank guarantees is éaWel

« Special pledge on goods in circulation at the arha@firBGN 5,867 thousand (31 December

2012: BGN 8,801 thousand)
« Special pledge on TFA (motor vehicles) with a cagyamount of BGN 153 thousand (31

December 2012: BGN 487 thousand)

Unipharm AD

Bank guarantees at the amount of BGN 50 thousame issued to the company within the limit of the
loan agreement:

Electroncommerce EOOD

The issued bank guarantees to the company asl&t. 2013 amount to BGN 48 thousand.
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Assets held under safe custody

Sopharma Trading AD

According to concluded pre-distribution contracise Company received goods for safe custody
amounting to BGN 3,066 thousand as at 31 Decentid @31 December 2012: BGN 449 thousand).

Significant irrevocable agreements and commitments

Sopharma AD

In 2013, the Company assumed a self-participatmnngitment at the amount of BGN 3,000 thousand
under a grant contract under Operational ProgrartDevelopment of the Competitiveness of the
Bulgarian Economy" 2007 2013. The execution of ¢hatract is envisaged to last 18 months and is
related mainly with financing the implementation inhovative products in the ampoule production
section. As at 31.12.2013 no financing relatinthe project has been received.

Tthe Company is a beneficiary under a contract dogovernment grant under the Operational
Programme "Development of the Competitiveness @& Bulgarian Economy” 2007 - 2013 in

connection to a project for technological renovatand modernisation of tablet production facilities
(Note 34 and Note 40). The Company undertook a doment that for a period of 5 years after the
completion of the project, counted as of 11 Mar€i3 the project shall not undergo significant
modifications affecting its essence and the termd eonditions for its execution or giving rise to
unjustified benefits to the Company, neither madifions resulting from change in the nature of
ownership over the assets acquired in relation wfita grant. On non-compliance with these
requirements, the financing shall be returned.h&t date of preparation of the consolidated findncia
statements, all contractual requirements were dechplith.

Sopharma Trading AD

The company is a beneficiary under a governmenttgrantract related to the Operational Programme
for Development and Implementation of Informatiorc@&ity Management System Project in
accordance with ISO 27001:2007 in the amount of BB2XhousandNote 34 and Note 40).

Unipharm AD

As at 31 December 2013, the company has also duttmitgrant contract "Implementation in Regular
Production of Innovative Eye Drops of Artificial des Type, Developed by Unipharm AD" under
Operational Programme "Development of the Competitess of the Bulgarian Economy" 2007 2013.
The project amount is BGN 359 thousand and theeamphtation term is 15 months. The project grant
amount is BGN 323 thousand. There is no financaegived under the project as at 31 December 2013.

The company is beneficiary under three agreememtgidvernment grants for acquisition of assets
(Note 34 and Note 40). According to the clausethefagreements, the tangible fixed and intangible
assets acquired using funds under the projectddihemain within the assets of the beneficiary and
the region of the recipient (the territory of thepblic of Bulgaria) for a term of minimum five ysa
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after the total investment project is executed nOn-compliance with these requirements, the financi
shall be returned.

Under the project "Modernisation and DevelopmentUoipharm AD",the term of the engagement

started in November 2011 while under the projeav@&opment of a New Haemodialysis Solution and
Proving its Therapeutic Effect” to the National dwation Fund the term of the engagement started in
2010. At the date of preparation of the consoliddteancial statements, all contractual requirement

were complied with.

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

The company is a beneficiary under a contract fatuifous financial aid (grant), under Operational
Programme "Development of the Competitiveness efBhlgarian Economy" 2007 — 2013 in relation
with a project for technological renovation anddamisation of tablets production at the amount of
BGN 1,200 thousand (Note 34 and Note 40). The tfrthe contract is 5 years and commenced on 9
February 2011 and according to the contract thdymtoshould not suffer significant changes referrin
to its nature, the conditions of its performancdeading to unjustifiable benefits for the compasy
well as changes resultant from modification in tla¢ure of ownership of infrastructural component or
discontinuance of production activities. On non-ptiamce with these requirements, the financinglshal
be returned. At the date of preparation of the obdated financial statements, all contractual
requirements were complied with.

Biopharm Engineering AD

In 2011, the company assumed a self-participat@mmnaitment at the amount of BGN 2,708 thousand
under a contract for financing under Operating Rrogne "Development of the Competitiveness of the
Bulgarian Economy" 2007 - 2013. The execution @f tbntract is envisaged to last 20 months and is
related with financing the purchase of propertgnpland equipment. At the date of preparation ef th
consolidated annual financial statements no amduaus been drawn under this project.

Other

Sopharma AD has met its obligations under the Wislsteagement Act (WMA) and therefore, has not
included a product charge liability in the consatill statement of financial position as at 31 Ddxm
2013 regardless of the fact that the official doenmmevidencing that Ecobulpack (the organization in
which the parent company is a member) has fulfiledommitments under WMA, has not been issued
yet at the date of preparation of these finan¢&kments.
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42. SEGMENT REPORTING

The segment reporting in the Group is organisedthen basis of two basic business segments —
‘production of pharmaceutical products' and 'distion of pharmaceutical products (goods)'. Theugro
‘other' includes mainly production and distributmfmon-pharmaceutical products.

Theitems of income, expenses and result of busineggrmntsdetermined in the Group include:

Production of Distribution of Other Elimination Consolidated
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
products products (goods)

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

BGN'O00O  BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN000 BGN'000  BGN000  BGN000  BGN'000  BGN'000

External sale 116,55( 123,48t 632,81¢ 550,58 13,324 14,50¢ - 762,68¢ 688,57¢
Intersegmental sales 129,90¢ 113,96¢ 324 67 187 223  (130,416) (114,259) -
Total revenue 246,45¢ 237,457 633,13¢ 550,64 13,511 14,727  (130,416) (114,259) 762,68¢ 688,57¢
Segment result (margin)  131,91% 114,59: 65,92¢ 52,60: 2,48( 4,492 (22,860) (22,693) 177,463 148,99!
Non-allocated operating income 4,911 2,32¢
Non-allocated operating expenses (129,539) (105,855)
Profit from operations 52,83t 45,46¢
Finance (costs)/income, net (15,961) (3,298)
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries (12) (37)
Losses from associates, net (736) (56)
Gain on net monetary position from restatemenhfgerinflation 1,69C 823
Profit before income ta> 37,817 42,90(
Income tax exenst (5,179 (4,934
Net profit for the year before statutory dividend for distribution 32,63¢ 37,96¢
Statutory dividend for distribution - (6)
Net profit for the year 32,63¢ 37,96(
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 29,24¢ 35,19¢
Non-controlling interes 3,39C 2,764
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Theassets and liabilitiesf the business segments include:

Assets by business segn Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical producs pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

BGN'00C  BGN'00( BGN'00C BGN'O0C BGN'00( BGN'00( BGN'00C  BGN'00(

Property, plant and equipment 163,67. 9230¢ 42,45¢ 39,84¢ 13,571 8,11¢ 219,70: 140,27:
Inventories 76,37¢ 71,481 60,71¢ 58,02¢ 2,506 1,43¢ 139,59¢ 130,95(
Receivables from related parties 51,30¢ 57,91t 2,382 3,652 731 - 54,41¢ 61,56¢
Trade receivables 26,37: 26,231 154,46 126,46: 10,294 7,814 191,13: 160,50°
Segment assets 317,73( 247942 260,01¢ 227,99: 27,10z 17,36¢ 604,85( 493,29]
Non-allocated assets 177,93¢ 252,12:
Total assets 782,78¢ 745,41t
Liabilities by business segment Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical produc! pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

BGN'O0O0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'O00 BGN000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000

Payables to personnel and for social

security 1,93: 1,601 1,63¢ 1,34¢ 203 21€ 3,77z 3,167
Trade payables 6,82z 11,17¢ 52,671 43,33¢ 2,21¢ 63€ 61,712 55,15(
Payables to related rties 3,12¢ 29 581 1,52¢ 123 - 3,82¢ 1,554
Segment liabilities 11,88( 12,80¢ 54,88¢ 46,20¢ 2,54t 854 69,313 59,871
Non-allocated liabilities 300,700 294,47
Total liabilities 370,01: 354,34¢

The capital expenditures, depreciation/amortisatiand non-monetary expenses other than
depreciation/amortisation by business segniecitide:

Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
products products (goods)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

BGN'O0O0 BGN'O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Capital expenditures 18,38 61,157 1,71¢ 5,00z 1,125 63 21,22¢ 66,22:

Depreciation/amortisation 11,929 9,016 6,711 2,434 1,278 420 19,918 11,870
Non-monetary expenses, other

than depreciation and
amortisation 1,398 818 1,131 1,108 - - 2,529 1,926
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The distribution of Group revenusy type and by geographic aréeaas follows:

Bulgaria Europe Other countries Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Sales of finished products 85,000 85,702 159,829 160,765 22,734 19,795 267,654 266,262

Sales of goods 433,550 387,722 61,485 34,595 - 495,035 422,317

Total 518,640 473,424 221,315 195,360 22,734 19,795 762,689 688,579

The carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 of Gsonpn-current assets other than financial
instrumentsdistributed by geographic are# as follows:

Bulgaria Europe Other countries Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00O BGN'000  BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Property, plant and

equipment 282,992 268,031 23,383 23,730 406 313 306,781 292,074
Intangible asse 9,417 9,962 6,431 3,501 - - 15,848 13,463
Goodwill 5,635 6,106 7,255 6,811 - - 12,890 12,917
Investment property 9,329 5,905 1,197 1,205 - - 10,526 7,110
Total 307,373 290,004 38,266 35,247 406 313 346,045 325,564

The total revenue from transaction with the largdignts of the Group and the respective business
segment is as follows:

2013 % 2012 % business segment
BGN'000 BGN'000

Distribution of pharmaceutical

Client 1 91,937 12% 79,299 12% products (goods)
Production of pharmaceutical
Client 2 63,237 8% 69,868 10% products

Client 1 is an association of a group of entergriséh similar business characteristics, whichwarder
common control by the Bulgarian state.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ordinary course of business, the Group @m®exposed to a variety of financial risks the most
important of which are market risk (including cuney risk, risk of a change in the fair value aniter
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and risk of intest-bearing cash flows. The general risk manageimen
focused on the difficulty to forecast the financiabrkets and to achieve minimizing the potential
negative effects that might affect the financiaules and position of the Group. The financial siske
currently identified, measured and monitored thiougrious control mechanisms in order to establish
adequate prices for the finished products and seswf the Group companies and the borrowed thereby
capital, as well as to assess adequately the mailceimstance of its investments and the forms for
maintenance of free liquid funds through preventindue risk concentrations.

Risk management is currently performed by the mamagt of the parent company and respectively,
the management of the subsidiaries, in line with pblicy defined by the Board of Directors of the

parent. The Board of Directors has approved the lmciples of general financial risk management,
on the basis of which specific procedures have lestblished for management of the separate specifi
types of risk such as currency, price, interestditrand liquidity risk and the risk of use of non-

derivative instruments.

The structure of financial assets and liabiliteas follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN '000 BGN '000
Financial assets 280,062 269,170
Loans and receivables, including: 271,875 245,745
Receivables and loans (Notes 22, 23, 25, 26 and 27) 245,246 229,978
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 28) 26,629 15,767
Available-for-sale financial assets 8,187 23,425
Available-for-sale investmeng{dlote 21) 8,187 23,425
Financial liabilities 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BGN '000 BGN '000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 341,903 331,225
Short-term and long-term bank loans (Notes 30 &)d 3 271,718 270,397
Other loans and liabilities (Notes 33, 34, 36, 3id&0) 70,185 60,828

Foreign currency risk

The Group companies perform their operations witive exchange with foreign suppliers and clients
and therefore, they are exposed to currency risk.

The Group through the companies in Belarus and ib&rearries out business in these countries and,
therefore, has significant exposure in BYR and UAMe currency risk is related with the adverse
floating of the exchange rate of these currencisnast BGN in future business transactions as o th
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recognised assets and liabilities denominatedrigiga currency and as to the net investments iidor
companies.

The rest of the companies abroad perform saleslyrainhe local markets, which lead to currenck ris
to their currencies as well — , Serbian Dinar (R82) Russian Federation,Polish Zloty (PLN) and
Lithuanian Lit (LTL).

In addition , the total inflation in Belarus foretHast three years exceeded 100% and Belarus was
regarded a hyperinflationary economy, which to rgdadegree resulted in increased volatility of the
functional currency exchange rate of the compampserating in such environment to Group's
presentation currency. As far as all of these memmpomic effects were beyond the control of the
Group companies operating in Belarus the manageofehe Group undertook actions to control this
currency risk by regulating currently the workingpital of these companies and making efforts to
maintain a reasonable balance of their currentassw liabilities whereby to regulate on timelsisa

the significant adverse effects for the Group adale.

The remaining part of most operations of the Groampanies are usually denominated in BGN, in
EUR or in LVL. The fact that the BGN and the LVLeafixed currencies to the EUR reduces the
potential currency volatility for the companiestioé Group.

To control foreign currency risk, there is an impénted system in the whole Group for planning
import supplies, sales in foreign currency as vesll procedures for daily monitoring of US dollar
exchange rates and control on pending paymentseXfnesures of almost all subsidiaries in Bulgasia t
foreign currency risk are insignificant because adtrall sales are performed to the local market in
Bulgarian Levs (BGN). The import of goods is penfied mainly in Euro (EUR). The loans
denominated in foreign currency have been grantidiynin EUR.

The assets and liabilities of the Group denomin&teBGN, presented in different foreign currencies
are as follows:

31 December 2013 in BGN in EUR in BYR in UAH in other Total
currency

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Available-for-sale financial 6.857 13 1,317 8.187
assets - -
Loans and receivables, 169,204  79,07€ 7,893 7000 8702 271875
including:
Receivables and loans 156,278 71,477 6,058 6.176 5,257 245,24¢
Cash and cash equivalents 12,926 7,599 1,835 824 3,445 26,629
Total financial assets 176,061 79,07€ 7,906 7,000 10,019 280,062
Short-term and long-term
bank loans 117,019 153,274 - - 1.425 271,71¢
Other loans and liabilities 26,262 31,834 7,920 1,057 3,112 70,18E
Total financial liabilities 143,281 185,108 7,920 1,057 4,537 341,90:
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31 December 2012 in BGN in EUR in BYR in UAH in other Total
currency

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Available-forsale financia 19,021 ) 3 2734 1,667 23,425
assets
Loans and receivables, 170,74¢ 61,984 2,11C 2,982 7,924  24574¢
including:
Receivables and loans 160,32¢ 59,28¢ 1,861 2763 5,743 229,97¢
Cash and cash equivalents 10,422 2,696 249 219 2,181 15,767
Total financial assets 189,76¢€ 61,984 2,113 5,716 9,591 269,17C
Short-term and long-term c -
bank loans 83,91¢F 180,54¢ - 5.936 270,397
Other loans and liabilities 17,533 32,79E 3,423 1,995 5,082 60,82¢
Total financial liabilities 101,44¢ 213,341 3,423 1,995 11.018 331,22¢

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency sensitivity of the Group expes is mainly related the Ukrainian Hryvnia (UAH)
and the Belarus Ruble (BYR) as a currency in hyplationary economy. The foreign currency risk of
the Group is limited with regard to the other fgrecurrencies in which the Group operates — USdboll
or in which certain Group companies operate — Sartdinar, Polish Zloty and Lithuanian Lit —
because the exposures in these companies areveBladmall and are more easily regulated by the
managing bodies of the respective subsidiaries.

The effect of foreign currency sensitivity to 10iérease/decrease in current exchange rates oftBGN
Belarus Rouble, Ukrainian Hryvnia and in generalthe other foreign currency exposures on the
structure of foreign currency assets and liabgitee 31 December and on the assumption that the
influence of all other variables is ignored, hasrbeneasured and presented as impact on the post-tax
consolidated financial result and on the equitthef Group.

2013 2012
BYR UAH BYR UAH
BGN'00C BGN '00C BGN'00C BGN '000
Financial result (D 487 (107) 301
Retained earnings (1) 487 (107) 301

On 10% increase in the exchange rate of BYR to BB&lultimate impact on Group’s (post-tax) profit

for 2013 would be a decrease by BGN 1 thousan@(3%) and for 2012 — a decrease by BGN 107
thousand (0.3%). The effect in terms of value opupis equity — through the component ‘retained
earnings’ — would be the same. Due to the funatigrif the companies in Belarus in hyperinflationary
environment — the management of the Group analfsescurrency exposure in this currency and
undertakes timely measures to reduce its effecthéoresults of the group.
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On a 10% increase (2012: 10%) of the exchangeofatee UAH to BGN, the ultimate impact on the
(post-tax) profit of the Group for 2013 would bedaincrease by BGN 487 thousand (1.7%) and for
2012 the impact would be an increase by BGN 80ghod (0.8%). The same ultimate impact on the
(post-tax) profit of the Group would be equal aadiprocal of the stated above.

On a 10% decrease in the exchange rates of UAHBaRIto BGN, the ultimate impact on the (post-
tax) profit of the Group would be equal and reciaioof the stated above.

Due to the significant reduction of the exchange & the Ukrainian hryvnia to the Bulgarian lev fo
the period from the end of the reporting periodthe date of issue of the consolidated financial
statements, the management has undertaken aniarlise currency sensitivity of the net exposare
this currency with 50% increase/decrease and feetain the profit of the Group (after tax) for Wear
2013 would have been BGN 2,437 thousand increasefase.

“In other currency” are included mainly: BGN 282ousand in USD net financial liabilities, BGN
2,010 thousand in PLN net financial assets, BGN@ fBousand in RSD net financial assets (for 2012:
BGN 6,906 thousand in USD net financial liabiliti@&GN 317 thousand in PLN net financial assets,
BGN 1,589 thousand in RSD net financial assets).

The impact of the remaining currencies (other thi#H, BYR, EUR and LVL) on 10% increase in
their exchange rates to BGN on Group’s (post-tagjifis:.

2013 2012
usD PLN RSD usD PLN RSD
BGN'000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000

Financial result (24) 163 159 (585) 26 143
Retained earnings (24) 163 159 (585) 26 143

On a 10% decrease respectively in the exchangs o&itedSD, PLN and RSD to BGN, the ultimate
impact on the (post-tax) profit of the Group wobklequal and reciprocal of the stated above.

The effect on equity is of the same amount andditection of a decrease and reflects in the corapbn
‘retained earnings’.

Group’s management is of the opinion that the pregseabove currency sensitivity analysis based on
the balance sheet structure of foreign currencyhémated assets and liabilities is representativehie
usual currency sensitivity of the Group for theasimg year.

Price risk
The Group companies are exposed to price riskvehitories based on three main factors:

(a) a possible increase of purchase prices of raw raBtand consumables, since a significant portion
of the raw materials used are imported and thegsept a significant share of production costs;

(b) a possible increase in supplier prices of goods and
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(c) the growing competition on the Bulgarian pharmacaltmarket, affecting the prices of
pharmaceuticals.

For the purpose of mitigating this influence, thanmagement of the Group applies a strategy aimed at
optimisation of production costs, validation ofeaftative suppliers that offer beneficial commercial
conditions, expanding product range by means of gemeric products development and last but not
least, adoption of a flexible marketing and pricdiqy. Price policy is a function of three main tlars —
structure of expenses, prices of competitors anchpsing capacity of customers.

The Group is exposed to a significant price rigoakith regard to the shares held thereby, clagsds
available-for-sale investments, mostly through plagent company. For this purpose, the management
monitors and analyses all changes in security nsmmded also uses consulting services of one of the
most authoritative in the country investments imiediaries. In addition, at this stage, becausdef t
economic and financial crisis, the management &leenta decision for a reduction in its operatioms o
stock markets, retaining of the purchased sharedofmer periods with current monitoring of the
reported by the respective issuer financial andniegs indicators as well as the development of the
operations in the environment of crisis.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that any of the Group’sealis will fail to discharge in full and within thrmally
envisaged terms the amounts due under trade rbtesval he latter are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position at net value afteducting the impairment related to doubtful and ba
debts. Such impairment is made where and when ®vleate existed identifying loss due to
uncollectability as per previous experience.

In the years of its trade experience, the Groupitmptemented different schemes of distribution to
reach its efficient approach of today, in confoymitith the market conditions, using various ways of
payment as well as relevant trade discounts. Thmu@works on its main markets with counterparts
with history of their relations on main markets,igthinclude a big number of licensed Bulgarian and
foreign traders of pharmaceuticals.

The cooperation with the state hospitals also regtie implementation of deferred payments policy.
There is a concentration of significant credit iiskhis type of counterparts that form 49 % of G's trade
receivables (31 December 2012: 48%). Its is miigidhrough implemented procedures for selection and
current monitoring of the liquidity and financidhbility of these trade partnei®n delay in payments of
the receivables from these counterparts, the Ghagpset a period of 30 days after which it starts
activities for collection of receivables. With reddo clients - hospitals, in case of 30 days daylafter

the date on which the credit period expires, irgefer delay is being charged and if delays peedisr
further 30 days, a meeting with the managementringed for the purpose of signing rescheduling
agreement. If the agreement is not complied wibal proceedings are initiated. With regard tonttie

— pharmacies, on a 5-day delay after the expirthefcredit period, the sales under deferred payment
terms are suspended. If delinquencies continu¢hed s’ day all sales are ceased and negotiations are
held for concluding an agreement. If the agreerigendt complied with, legal proceedings are indtht

Deferred payments (credit sales) to other counterae offered only to clients having long accoofnt
business relations with the Group, good finanaiaifion and no history of credit terms violations.
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The credit policy of the Group envisages that eveew client shall be investigated with regard o it
creditworthiness prior to being offered the staddarms of supply and payment. The analysis, pedr
by the Group, includes but is not limited to visitclients premises, collection of information oonthly
turnovers and in some cases a promissory notejisreel in favour of the Group company for 130% -
135% of the credit granted. These limits are regittan a monthly basis. The clients that cannotrcihee
creditworthiness criteria may perform purchasesash.

Collectability of receivables is controlled dirgctby the Executive Director, the Finance and Trade
Directors of the parent company and, respectivbly,the management of the subsidiaries. Their
responsibility is to provide operating control ardulate receivables in conformity with the actualrket
situation and the needs of the Group.

The Group has developed policy and proceduressiesaghe creditworthiness of its counterparts and t
assign credit rating and credit limits by groupslants.

The management of the Group currently monitorsragdlates the concentration of receivables froemtli
and counterpart of the Group as a whole.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no condentiattrade receivables from a single counteribet
exceeds 10% of the total amount of trade receigasepresented in the consolidated statementasfdial
position. The concentration of the first five cliemwith regard to trade receivables of the Groupsis
follows:

31.12.2013 % credit exposure 1 31.12.2012% credit exposure t
total trade receivables total trade
receivables

BGN'000 BGN'000
Client 1 12,779 7% 11,935 7%
Client 2 11,922 6% 11,870 7%
Client & 11,45 6% 9,58¢ 6%
Client 4 4,695 3% 6,129 4%
Client & 4,531 2% 4,567 3%

The financial resources of the Group as well as#tdement operations are concentrated in diffefnest-
class banks. To distribute cash flows among thdwm, management of the parent company and the
subsidiaries take into consideration a great defalators, as the amount of capital, reliabilitguidity, the
credit potential and rating of the bank etc.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the adverse situation when theo@r encounters difficulty in meeting unconditiogall

its obligations within their maturity, including t&use of the existence of hyperinflation and the
indexation of the trade accounts of the companpesating in such environment.

The Group generates and maintains a significantmeelof liquid funds. An internal source of liquid
funds for the Group is its main economic activifyits companies generating sufficient operational
flows. Banks and other permanent counterparts septeexternal sources of funding. Existing open
positions in Belarusian Roubles (BYR) and the hiygkation in this market during the period 2011 -
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2013 represented an additional source of risk. Wewethe exit of Belarus from the hyperinflation
market eliminates this risk in 2014. In order tolage any possible general liquidity risk, the Grou
implements a system of alternative mechanisms tsfad prognoses, the final aim being to maintain
good liquidity and, respectively, ability to finamdts economic activities. This is supplemented by
current monitoring of the maturities of assets &allilities, control over cash outflows and ensgrin
their current balancing with inflows, including emgotiation of maturities and optimisation of debt
structure, increase and internal restructuringetifgenerated funds and their investment.

Maturity analysis

The table below presents the financial non-denveatiabilities of the Group, classified by remaigin
term to maturity, determined against the contrdatgturity at the consolidated financial statements
date. The table is prepared on the basis of ungiged cash flows and the earliest date on which the
payable becomes due. The amounts include prinaighinterest.

31 December 2013 uptol from1lto 3 from3to 6 from6to fromlto from2to5 over5 Total
month months months 12 months 2 years years years
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN'000 BGN '000

Short-term and long-termbank g /o 35 458 119575 59694 12811 28,862 17,603 283418

loans
Other loans and liabilities 29,163 26,803 8,046 5,183 654 1,291 - 71,140
Total liabilities 38,608 62,231 127,621 64,877 13,465 30,153 17,603 354,558

uptol from1lto 3 from3to 6 from6to fromlto from2to5 over5
month months months 12 months 2 years years years

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN '000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN '000

31 December 2012 Total

Short-term and long-term bank 26273 77,546 47,76z 12,387 29,062 24,064 283,49

loans 66,397
Other loans and liabilities 29.21% 23,90C 3,194 2,295 814 2,987 - 62,40¢
Total liabilities 95 61¢ 50,173 80,742 50,057 13,201 32,04¢ 24,064 345,897

Due to renegotiations in 2013 of 3 of the curramtlbloans for the Group, presented according tio the
original maturity in the table above in the catég®ifrom 1 to 3 months and from 3 to 5 months, the
amounts related to them (Note 35) are being tramsfevith 12 months forward.

Risk of interest-bearing cash flows

Interest-bearing assets are presented in the wsteuof Group’s assets by cash, bank deposits ams lo
granted, which are with fixed interest rate. Ondtteer hand, Group’s borrowings in the form of ldagnm
and short-term loans are usually with a floatirtgriest rate. This circumstance makes the cash fibvse
Group partially dependent on interest risk. Tk i$ covered in two ways:

(a) optimisation of resources and structure of cresliburces for achieving relatively lower price of
attracted funds; and
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(b) combined structure of interest rates on loans dgimgrtwo components — a permanent one and a
variable one, the correlation between them, as aglheir absolute value, can be achieved and
maintained in a proportion favorable for the Gragmpanies. The permanent component has a
relatively low absolute value and sufficiently higilative share in the total interest rate. This
circumstance eliminates the probability of a sigaifit change in interest rate levels in case of
variable component updating. Thus the probability &n unfavourable change of cash flows is
reduced to a minimum.

The management of the Group companies togethertiathof the parent company currently monitor and
analyse the exposure of the respective companketahanges in interest levels. Various scenaries ar
simulated taking into consideration refinancingieseal of existing positions, and alternative finagc
Based on these scenarios, the impact of a defibeckst rate shift, expressed in points or pergentan the
financial result and equity is calculated. For esichulation, the same assumption for interest shif is
used for all major currencies. The calculationsaaee for major interest-bearing positions.

with floating with fixed

Interest analysis interes-free interest % interest % Total
31 December 2013 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Available-for-sale financial assets 8,187 - - 8,187
Loans and receivables, including: 192,049 20,833 58,993 271,875
Receivables and loans 190,113 15 55,118 245,246
Cash and cash equivalents 1,936 20,818 3,875 26,629
Total financial assets 200,236 20,833 58,993 280,062
Short-term and long-term bank loans 267 271,451 - 271,718
Other loans and liabilities 67,098 3,082 5 70,185
Total financial liabilities 67,365 274,533 5 341,903
Interest analysis interest-free  with floating with fixed Total
31 December 2012 interest % interest %

BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Available-for-sale financial assets 23,425 - - 23,425
Loans and receivables, including: 150,359 11,548 83,838 245,745
Receivables and loans 148,841 - 81,137 229,978
Cash and cash equivalents 1,518 11,548 2,701 15,767
Total financial assets 173,784 11,548 83,838 269,170
Short-term and long-term bank loans 334 269,760 303 270,397
Other loans and liabilities 57,311 3,517 - 60,828
Total financial liabilities 57,645 273,277 303 331,225
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The table below demonstrates the Group’s sengitivipossible changes in interest rates by 0.5%cdbas
the structure of assets and liabilities as at 3deBwer and with the assumption that the influefiedl other
variables is ignored. The effect is measured aadegmted as impact on the financial result aftezstand
respectively, on equity.

Effect on the financial result and share capital &fr

Increase/decrease of interest % . .
taxation — profit/loss

201z 201z
BGN’000 BGN’000

Increase (2,230) (1,222)
Decreas 1,23( 1,222

Capital risk management

The capital management objectives of the Groupt@reuild and maintain capabilities to continue its
operation as a going concern and to provide retre investments of shareholders and economéfiteen
to other stakeholders and participants in its fassiras well as to maintain an optimal capital siracto
reduce the cost of capital. Analogous approachpéiea also at the level of a separate Group cognpéth
regard to its capital structure and financing.

The Group currently monitors capital availabilitydastructure on the basis of the gearing ratios Tdtio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital@rhdNet debt is calculated as total borrowingsrént and
non-current ones) as presented in the consolidstegément of financial position less cash and cash
equivalents. Total employed capital is calculatetha sum of equity and net debt.

It is a characteristic feature for both presentedogls that the Group finances its operations both
through its own generated profit and by maintairangertain level of trade and other current payable
and loans (bank, commercial ones). In 2013, thetegly of the parent company management was to
maintain the ratio within 35 -45 % at a Group lef2812: 35 - 40 %). The table below shows theiggar
ratios based on capital structure as at 31 December

2013 2012
BGN'000 BGN'000

Total borrowings, including: 274,800 273,917
Bank loans 271,718 270,397
Loans and finance lease liabilities 3,08: 3,52(
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (26,629) (15,767)
Net debt 248,171 258,150
Total equity of the Group 358,598 345,879
Total capital of the Group 606,769 604,029
Gearing ratio 0.41 0.43

The liabilities shown in the table are disclosebtlates 30, 33, 35 and 40.
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Fair values

The fair value concept presumes realisation ofittencial instruments through sales. However, irstmo
cases especially in regard of trade receivablegpagdbles as well as loans and deposits with baimks,
Group expects to realise these financial assetstlateugh their total refund or respectively, sattént
over time. Therefore, they are presented at tleartsed cost.

In addition, a large part of the financial assetd Babilities are either short-term in their naytrade
receivables and payables, short-term loans) op@sented in the consolidated statement of financia
position at market value (deposits placed with Baitkvestments in securities) and therefore, tiadir
value is almost equal to their carrying amountt B&the investments in other companies as minority
interests represent an exception to this rule esirgther market nor objective conditions existheat
their fair value could be reliably determined. Téfere, they are presented at acquisition cost).cost

As far as no sufficient market experience, stabditd liquidity exist in regards of purchases aalgs
of certain financial assets and liabilities, stith adequate and reliable quotes of market prices ar
available thereof.

The management of the parent company is of thei@pitat the estimates of the financial assets and
liabilities presented in the statement of finangiakition are as reliable, adequate and trustwaathy
possible for financial reporting purposes underekisting circumstances.

44. ACQUISITIONS AND INCREASING THE INTERESTS IN SU BSIDIARIES

44.1. Acquisition of subsidiaries
In 2013, the Group acquired via its subsidiary Bz the following new subsidiaries:

date of % acquired net
acquisition interest assets at fair
value
BGN '000
OOO Farmaceuvt Plus, Belarus 01.06.2013 26.01% 412
TBS Pharma UAB, Lithuan 01.03.2(13 26.01Y 2
ODO Vestphart, Belaru: 04.07.201 31.62¥% 255
ODO Alean, Belarus 07.02.2013 24.48% 85
OOO NPK Biotest, Belarus 02.09.2013 29.07% 651
ODO BelAgroMey, Belaru: 30.07.201 29.07¥% 87

The principal activities of the acquired subsidiarare disclosed Mote 1

The companies were acquired through the purchatse dbllowing shares in their capital by the sdlasiy
Briz Itd., Latvia:
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share
OO0 Farmacevt Plus, Belarus 51%
ODO Vestpharm, Belarus 62%
ODO Alear, Belaru: 57%
OOO NPK Biotest, Belarus 57%
ODO BelAgroMed, Belarus 57%

TBS Pharma UAB, Lithuania, was established by Bdz Latvia, through contribution at the amount
of BGN 3 thousand for 51% of the shares in comzacgpital.

In 2012, the Group acquired the following new sdiasies:

date of % interest acquired net assets
acquisition at fair value
BGN '000
SOOO Brizpharm, Belarus 20.12.2012 26.01% (4)
00O Sopharma Ukraine, Ukraine 04.08.2012 100.00% 198
Phyto Palauzovo A 21.09.201 50.13% 95

The principal activities of the acquired subsidiarare disclosed Mote 1
SOOO Brizpharm, Belarus, was acquired through threhase of 51% of the capital by the subsidiary
Briz Itd., Latvia.

Phyto Palauzovo AD was established by BulgarianeR®&svtopolis AD with interest of 95% in the
capital of the company, amounting to BGN 95 thodsan

OO0 Sopharma Ukraine, Ukraine, was establisheddph&ma AD through a contribution in-kind of
non-current assets at the amount of BGN 198 thalisan

The carrying amounts and fair values of the nettassn acquisition of the new subsidiariiste 2.3)
are presented below:

In 2013:
fair carrying
value amount
BGN'000 BGN'000
Property, plant and equipme(Note [7) 752 752
Intangible assei(Note :8) 4,363 1
Inventories 5,707 5,707
Other receivables and assets 5,725 6,078
Cash and cash equivalents 324 324
Loans (1,324) (1,324)
Trade payable (9,120 (9,120
Other current liabilities (1,152) (366)
Total net assets 5,275 2,052
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Share of non-controlling Net assets acquired by the

Net assets at: Non- .
. interest Group
. controlling . .
carrying . carrying carrying
. interests . .
fair value amount fair value amount  fair value amount
BGN'O00 BGN'000 % BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'O0O0  BGN'000
OO0 Farmacevt
Plus, Belarus 1,585 386 74% 1,173 286 412 100
ODO Vestpharm,
Belarus 807 97 68% 552 66 255 31
ODO Alean,
Belarus 346 18 76% 261 14 85 4
00O NPK
Biotest, Belarus 2,239 1,489 71% 1,588 1,056 651 433
OoDO
BelAgroMed,
Belarus 298 62 71% 211 44 87 18
5,275 2,052 3,785 1,466 1,490 586
In 2012:
SOOO Brizpharm
fair carrying
value amount
20.12.201 20.12.201
BGN'000 BGN'000
Property, plant and equipme(Note 7) 16 14
Intangible assel(Note :8) 43E i,
Inventories 190 192
Other receivables and assets 49 346
Cash and cash equivale 12 12
Loan: (421, (421,
Trade payables (249) (249)
Other current liabilities (48) (22)
Net assets (16) (128)
. ) Share of non-controlling Net assets acquired by the
Net assets at: No_n interest Group
. controlling . ,
carrying . carrying carrying
. interests . .
fair value amount fair value amount fair value amount
BGN'0O00 BGN'000 % BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
SO00
Brizpharm,
Belaru (16) (128 73.99¥% (12) (95) 4) (33)
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The investment price on the acquisition of subsieéaand the resulting goodwill at the date of the

transaction for acquisition of control by the pareompany itself were as follows:

In 2013:
000 ODO ODO ODO OO0 NPK
Acquisition cost (cost) Farmacevt BelAgroMed, Vestpharm, Alean, Biotest, Total
Plus, Belarus Belarus Belarus  Belarus  Belarus
BGN'000 BGN'OO0O BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Interest to the date of acquisition
of control - 92 401 181 491 1,165
Measurement to fair value of
previous interest by the date of
acquisition of control (331) (35) (128) (23) (72) (589)
Amounts paid in current period 1,901 161 391 58 95¢ 3,47(
Share of the non-controlling
interests in the investment on
indirect acquisition (932) (124) (388) (131) (710) (2,285)
Total acquisition cost 638 94 27€ 85 668 1,761
Fair value of the acquired net
assets (412) (87) (255) (85) (651)  (1,490)
Goodwill 226 7 21 - 17 271
UAB TBS Pharma, Lithuania, was established by Bdz Latvia.
In 2012:
SO0O0
Brizpharm
BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Amounts paid in current period 146
Share of the non-controlling interests in the i@t on indirect acquisition (71)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesth®ydate of acquisition of cont (33)
Total acquisition cost 42
Fair value of the acquired net assets (4)
Goodwill 46

OO0 Sopharma Ukraine, Ukraine, and Phyto PalauZivowvere established by Sopharma AD and

Bulgarian Rose - Sevtopolis AD.
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The cash outflows from acquisition of control wassfollows:

In 2013:
000 ODO ODO ODO 00O NPK

Cash flows on acquisition of Farmacevi BelAgroMed, Vestpharm, Alean, Biotest,
control Plus, Belarus Belarus  Belarus Belarus Belarus Total

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Consideration paid in cash 1,901 161 391 58 95¢ 3,47(
Cash and cash equivalents in the
acquired companies (81) (48) (39) (9) (147) (324)
Cash outflow on acquisition of
control, net 1,82( 113 352 49 812 3,14¢

Share of the capital of TBS Pharma UAB, Lithuaaimpunting to BGN 3 thousand, was paid in 2013.

In 2012:
Cash flows on acquisition of control SO00
Brizpharm
BGN'000
Consideration paid in cash 146
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies (12)
Cash outflow on acquisition of control, net 134

The capital of Sopharma Warsaw SP. Z.0.0. at theuatmof BGN 316 thousand and that of Phyto
Palauzovo AD at the amount of BGN 95 thousand veéd ip 2012.

44.2. Increasing interest (purchases of non-contia) interests)

The Group performed the following transactions forchase of additional shares of non-controlling
interests:

In 2013:
Increases in interests transaction % change in acquired
(purchases of non-controlling interests) date interest net assets
BGN '000
Sopharma Buildings REIT 31.12.2013 0.25% 4
ODO BelAgroMe 31.12.201 1.22% 5
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2013 1.99% 154
ODO Alean 31.12.2013 13.25% 40
SOOO Brizpharm 31.12.2013 5.34% (8)
Briz Itd. 31.12.201 2.14% 397
SOOO Brititrade 31.12.2013 2.11% (36)
OO0 Farmacevt Pli 31.12.201 1.09% 5
ODO Vestpharr 31.12.201 11.42% 94
OOO NPK Biotest 31.12.2013 1.22% 31
Total 686
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In 2012:
Increases in interest transaction % changein acquired net
(purchases of non-controlling interest) date interest assets
BGN '000
Biopharm Engineering AD 31.12.2012 27.72% 2,719
Unipharm AD 31.12.2012 0.16% 44
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2012 0.20% 9
SOOO Brititrade 31.12.2012 0.51% 9
Bulgarian Ros«Sevtopoli: AD 31.12.201 0.01% -
Total 2,781

The acquisition cost of the purchased additionateshin 2013, the effects and the cash outflows,
relating to these transactions, were as follows:

Increases in interests (urchases of nor-controlling interests) Total
BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Paid through issue of capi (2,218
Consideration paid in cash (904)
Indirect acquisition through interest increasBriz Itd. (110
Share of the non-controlling interests on indiejuisition 2,075
Total acquisition cost (1,157)
Fair value of the acquired net assets 686
Effects assumed by the Group at the account of i30tetained earnings’ reserve (471)
Cash outflow on increases in interests (purchases$ mon-controlling interests) (904)

The acquisition cost of the purchased additionalresh in 2012, the effects and the cash outflows,
relating to these transactions, were as follows:

Increases in interests (purchases of non-controllginterests) Total
BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Paid through issue of capital (1,536)
Consideration paid in cash (199)
Share of the nc¢-controllinginterests on indirect acquisiti (336
Total acquisition cost (2,071)
Fair value of the acquired net assets 2,781
Effects assumed by the Group at the account of i30retained earnings’ reserve 710
Cash outflow on increases in interests (purchases$ mon-controlling interests) (199)
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44.3. Acquisition of a share in a joint venture
In 2013 the Group acquired shares in a joint vential its subsidiary Briz Itd, Latvia:

date of % interest acquired net
acquisition assets at fair
value
BGN '000
OO0 Med-dent, Belarus 17.12.2013 26.57% 55

OO0 Med-dent

fair carrying
value amoun
17.12.2013 17.12.2013
BGN'000 BGN'000
Property, plant and equipmeiote 17) 3 3
Intangible asset@Note 18) 128 3
Inventories 117 117
Other receivables and assets 14 15
Cash and cash equivalents 5 5
Trade payable (135 (134
Other payables and liabiliti (27) (5)
Net assets 104 3
Non-controlling interests (%) 47% 47%
Share of non-controlling interests (BGN'000) 49 1
Net assets acquired by the Group 55 2

The principal activities of the acquired joint vt are disclosed in Note 1.

The Group acquired indirect share in OOO Med-dBetarus, through the purchase of 50% interest of
the its capital (joint-venture) by the subsidianyzBtd., Latvia.

In 2012 the Group acquired shares in a joint vential its subsidiary Briz Itd, Latvia:

date of acquired net assets

acquisition % interest at fair value

BGN '000

00O Vivaton Plus, Belarus 20.12.2011 25.50% (4)
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OOO0O Vivaton Plus

fair carrying
value amount
20.12.2012 20.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Property, plant and equipmeiMote 17) 47 47
Intangible assetéNote 18) 244 -
Inventories 197 197
Trade receivablt 3 3
Other receivables and assets 121 121
Cash and cash equivale 20 20
Trade payable (245 (245
Other payables and liabilities (132) (88)
Net assets 255 55
Non-controlling interests (%) 49% 49%
Share of non-controlling interests (BGN'000) 125 27
Net assets acquired by the Group 130 28

The principal activities of the acquired joint vt are disclosed in Note 1.

The Group acquired indirect share in OOO VivatamsPBelarus, through the purchase of 50% interest
of the its capital (joint-venture) by the subsigli&riz Itd., Latvia.

OO0 Med-dent

BGN ‘000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Amounts paid in current period 498
Share of the non-controlling interests in the i@t on indirect acquisition (234)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesth®ydate of acquisition of control 162)
Total acquisition cost 102
Fair value of the acquired net assets 55
Goodwill 47
00O Vivaton
Plus
BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)
Amounts paid in current period 314
Share of the non-controlling interests in the i@t on indirect acquisition (157)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesth®ydate of acquisition of control (18)
Total acquisition cost 139
Fair value of the acquired net assets 130
Goodwill 9
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The cash outflows from acquisition of joint contvegre as follows:

In 2013:

Cash flows on acquisition of shares in a joint ventre

Consideration paid in cash
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies
Cash outflow on acquisition of control

In 2012:

Cash flows on acquisition of shares in a joint venre

Consideration paid in cash
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies
Cash outflow on acquisition of control

OO0 Med-dent
BGN'000

498
)

493

OO0 Vivaton
Plus
BGN'000

314

(20)

294

45. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES AND DECREASING THE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
45.1. Total disposal of subsidiaries and joint vergs

In 2013 the Group disposed of its total intereghmfollowing joint venture:

Company Date of sale

Sopharma Zdrovit SA 25.02.2013

The net assets of the disposed of company arerpeesas follows:

Disposal with loss of contrc
Date of disposal of interes

Cash and cash equivalents

Total net assets
Totally disposed of share of net assets

% interest

50.01%

100%
25.02.201
BGN ‘000
21¢

218

109
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The financial result from the disposal of the sdlasly is as follows:

Fair value of the consideration received
Recycling of reserve from transformation

Less:
Disposed of share of net assets (50%)

Loss on disposal of the joint venture

Net cash flows on disposal of the joint venture
Cash receive

Less:

Cash inthejoint venturt

Net cash flows on disposal of the joint venture

In 2012 the Group disposed of its total intereghimfollowing subsidiary:

Company Date of sale
ZAO Rostbalkanpharm 04.04.2012

The net assets of the disposed of company aremnpessas follows:

Disposal with loss of control
Date of disposal of interest

Property, plant and equipm:
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables and assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other payables and liabiliti

Total net assets
Losses assumed by the Group

Total disposal of share of net assets and losseswased by the Grouy

BGN'000
109
11

120

109

11

BGN ‘000
10¢

(109)

% interest

51.00%

100%
04.04.2012
BGN ‘000
494
14
14¢€
35
29
(326)
(874
482
(327)
809
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The financial result from the disposal of the sdlasly is as follows:

Fair value of the consideration received
Recycling of translation reserve in the currentfoceign operations

Less

Disposed of share of net assets (51%)

Assumed losses by the Group related to the subgidisposed ¢
Loss on disposal of the subsidiary

Net cash flows on disposal of the subsidiary
Cash receive

Less:

Cash in disposed of the subsidiary

Net cash flows on disposal of the subsidiary

45.2 Decreasing interests (sales of non-controlliimgerests)

In 2013:

BGN'000
5

(2)
3

246
(286,

I 1) 8

BGN ‘000
5

29
(24)

The decrease (partial disposals of) in interesdrgs) in subsidiaries without loss of control, éfiects

and cash flows, relating to the transactions, vasréollows:

Decreases in interests transaction
(sales of non-controlling interests) date
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2013
Sopharma Trading A 31.12.201
Bulgarian RosSevtopoli: AD 31.12.201
Unipharm AD 31.12.2013
Phyto Palauzovo A 31.12.201
ZAO Interpharm 31.12.2013
OO0 Tabina 31.12.2013

% change
in interest

-1.04%
-5.10%
-2.78%
-0.34%
-2.64%
-6.60%
-0.65%

net assets
sold

BGN '000
(53)
(3,022
(677,
(84)

(2)

(95)

(2)

(3,935)
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Decreases in interests Total
(sales of non-controlling interests)

BGN'000

Proceeds from partial disposal of shares in sidr#d 4,718
Deductible portion for non-controlling interests (440)
Proceeds from partial disposal of shares in subsidiies for the Group 4,278
Carrying amount oilhe net assets at the date of partial disposshares ir

subsidiarie (3,935
Effects assumed by non-controlling interests abitwunt of Group’s

‘retained earnin( reserve 181
Cash inflow on partial disposal of shares in subsidries 4,718
In 2012:

The decrease (partial disposals of) in interesdrgst) in subsidiaries without loss of control, ¢fiects
and cash flows, relating to the transactions, \asréollows:

Decreases in interests transaction date % change in net assets
(sales of non-controlling interests) interest sold
BGN '000
ZAO Interpharn 31.12.201: -0.79% (152
OO0 Tabin: 31.12.201¢ -0.79% a7
Sopharma Trading AD 31.12.2012 -0.32% (181)
(350)
Decreases in interests Total
(sales of non-controlling interests)
BGN'000
Proceeds from partial disposal of shares in sutsedi 1,343
Share of the non-controlling interests on indiexjuisition (570)
Proceeds from partial disposal of shares in subsidiies for the Group 773
Carrying amount of the net assets at the datertibpdisposal of shares in
subsidiaries (350)
Effects assumed by n-controlling interests at the account of Groujretainec
eanings reserve 42:
Cash inflow on partial disposal of shares in subsidries 1,343
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties Relation type Relation period
Telecomplect Invest AD Main shareholding company 2012 and 2013
Donev Investments AD Main shareholding company 2012 and 2013
Pharmachim Holding AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 @1iB2
Elpharma AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 &fB2
Kaliman RT AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 #1B2
SCS Franchise AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 &B2
Seiba Pharmacies and Drugstores Aldmpany under a common indirect control 2012 &fB2
Sanita Franchising AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 &fB2
Sopharma Properties REIT Company under a common indirect control 2012 @1iB2
Sofia Inform AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 &B2
Sofprint Group AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 &B2
Sofconsult Group AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 #1B2
Mineralcommerce AD Company under a common indirect control 2012 B2
Telecomplect AD Company related through key managing personnel 2204 2013
Telso AD Company related through key managing personnel 2204 2013
Riton P AD Company related through key managing personnel 2208 2013
DOH Group Company related through key managing personnel 2208 2013
Media Group Bulgaria Holding OODBCompany related through key managing personnel 2012% %Zdz%qtg
Related party transactions are as follows:
Supplies from related parties: 2013 2012
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Supply of inventories from:
Companies under a common indirect col 9,84( 10,761
Companies related through key managing personnel 660 4,761
10,500 15,522
Supply of services from:
Companies related through key managing pers 2,831 3,02¢
Companies under a common indirect col 2,93¢ 2,45;
Main shareholding companies 325 625
6,092 6,103
Supply of tangible fixed assets from:
Companies related through key managing pers 4,07t 313
Companies under a common indirect control 100 18
4,175 331
Supplies for acquisition of non-current assets:
Companies related through key managing personnel 11,760 29,188
11,760 29,188
Total 32,527 51,144
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Sales to related parties 2013 2012
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Sales of inventories to:
Companies under a common indirect col 4,268 7,322
Companies related through key managing personnel 3,806 3,624
8,074 10,946
Sales of services to:
Companies under a common indirect control 197 170
Companies related through key managing personnel 104 120
301 290
Other sales to:
Companies under a common indirect control 187 1
Companies related through key managing pers 11 5
Main shareholding compan - 58
198 64
Interest on loans granted to:
Companies related through key managing personnel 2,917 2,902
Companies under a common indirect col 467 663
Main shareholding compan 166 402
3,550 3,968
Total 12,123 15,268

The accounts and balances with related partiedisectosed in Notes 22, 26 and 37.

The composition of key management personnel oGitoeip includes the disclosed in Note 1 Executive
Director and the members of the Board of Directdrthe parent company. Additionally, it includeg th
Executive Directors, the members of Boards of Doecand the General Managers of the subsidiaries
in the Group.

Salaries and other short-term benefits of key miaugagersonnel amount to BGN 4,561 thousand
(2012: BGN 3,866 thousand), including:

* current wages and salaries — BGN 4,075 thali$2012: BGN 3,394 thousand);
* tantieme — BGN 486 thousand (2012: B&AR thousand).
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47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Transactions with shares
Transactions with shares of the parent company

On 7 February 2014 Rompharm Company OOD purchaga® 000 shares of the capital of Sopharma
AD and as a result of that its interest in the @df the parent company increased to 17.31%.

On 11 February 2014 Universal Pension Fund DovAfesold 3,424,005 shares of the capital of
Sopharma AD and as a result of that its intereliércapital of the parent company decreased &9%4..1

Transactions with shares of companies within thedsip

On 20 January 2014 the Group purchased 12% othtiies of BOOO SpetzApharmacia (through Briz
Ltd, Latvia) whereas the status of the company etasged from an associate to a joint venture of the
Group.

On 28 January 2014 and on 26 February 2014 thepQuetformed a purchase and a sale of shares of
OO0 NPK Biotest, Belarus (through Briz Ltd, Latvem)d as a result of that its interest was increased
to 37.20%.

On 31 January 2014, an increase in the capital raf Btd — Latvia by the parent company was
registered and as a result of that the interesteofsroup increased to 66.13%.

On 4 February 2014 and on 27 February 2014 the fGpeuformed a sale and a purchase of shares of
ODO Vestpharm, Belarus (through Briz Ltd, Latviaddaas a result of that its interest increased to
50.48%.

On 5 February 2014 and on 26 February 2014 the fGpeuformed a purchase and a sale of shares of
ODO BelAgroMed, Belarus (through Briz Ltd, Latviahd as a result of that its interest was increased
to 35.60%.

On 6 February 2014 Sopharma AD sold 616,015 sHeresthe capital of Sopharma Trading AD held
thereby and as a result of that the interest of2fmip decreased to 74.05%.

The political crisis in Ukraine

Starting from the end of 2013, including at theedaft issue of these consolidated financial statésnen
Ukraine continues to be in a process of politicadis due to the annexation of the Crimean Penamsul
by the Russian Federation. As a result of thatEheopean Union and the USA imposed economic
sanctions of the Russian Federation. Furthermdrained relations exist between Ukraine and the
Russian Federation with regard to a number of toimnthe Eastern part of Ukraine. The Western
countries introduce military units in the regionilglthe Russian Federation does the same along the
Eastern border of Ukraine.

As a result, the exchange rate of the Ukrainianvhigyto the Bulgarian Lev has dropped by more than
30% while the interest rates have increased by @%he period until April 2014 compared to the sate
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at the end of 2013 and inflation of about 15% ipested for the year by the Ukrainian National Bank.
The purchasing power of the population shows & downturn.

This situation has a definite effect on the phamm#ical market but the products of the Group ara in
comparatively favourable position by being in thedarate price segment (the refrain from purchase of
medicinal products refers mostly to the high pgegment). Furthermore, the assets of PAO Vitamini
are located in the town of Uman, in the westernt phlUkraine, where no present indications exist th
any possible development of the conflict would pesg in that part of Ukraine.

The management of Sopharma Group closely monit@r&vtents in Ukraine as well as the movements
in the Ukrainian pharmaceutical market. The appledes and the terms of trade are persistently
revised. In addition, the existence of a localribstor (OOO Sopharma Ukraine) for the Group in
Ukraine decreases the risk of receivables uncaltéltly from third parties and the trade policytbfs
subsidiary is primarily focused on sales of goau®ther distributors after their previous obligato
have been paid.

Other

As of 1 January 2014, the companies in Belarusadneady operating in a non-hyperinflationary
environment.

Starting from 1 January 2014, the company in Last@rted to use the Euro as its functional and
presentation currency due to Latvia joining theoeane and respectively, accepting the Euro as its
official currency replacing the Lats.
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